CITY OF ALPINE
WORKSHOP — 4:00 P.M.
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING - 5:30 P.M.
803 W. Holland Avenue, Alpine, Texas 79830
Tuesday, March 5, 2024
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Notice is hereby given that the City Council of the City of Alpine, Texas, will hold a workshop
meeting at 4:00 P.M. and a regular meeting at 5:30 P.M. on March 5, 2024, in City Council
Chambers, at 803 West Holland Avenue, in the City of Alpine, Texas for the purpose of considering
the attached agenda. This notice is posted pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act (Government
Code Sec. 551.043). PUBLIC NOTICE - THE USE OF CELLULAR PHONES AND
ELECTRONIC EQUIPMENT IS PROHIBITED IN THE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS
DURING MEETINGS OF THE CITY COUNCIL EXCEPT FOR PURPOSES EXPLICITLY
AUTHORIZED BY STATE LAW (TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE SEC. 551.023). This
meeting will be conducted in accordance with the official Rules of Decorum for City Council
Meetings available at www.cityofalpine.com/decorum. Public Comments are limited to agenda items
only. Individuals who wish to address the City Council may do so by completing a Public Comment
Card and by placing the completed card on the City Secretary’s desk no later than five minutes before
the commencement of the meeting. The Public Comment Card may also be completed online at
www.cityofalpine.com/councilcomments. A Public Comment Card is not required for speakers who
wish to comment on a Public Hearing item. When speakers are acknowledged, please approach the
microphone at the podium and state your name and Ward for the record. Public Comments are limited
to 3 minutes per person, and a bell will signal the end of each speaker’s time. Please conclude speaker
comments promptly when the bell rings. State law generally prohibits the Council from discussing
or taking any action on any issue not included on the agenda, but if appropriate, the Council may
schedule the topic for future discussion or refer the matter to staff. NO PERSONAL ATTACKS
ON COUNCIL MEMBERS OR CITY STAFF WILL BE ALLOWED. The Mayor and/or City
Council Members may call a point of order to stop personal attacks. If an individual continues to

personally attack an elected official or staff member in a meeting, they may be barred.
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WORKSHOP AGENDA - 4:00 P.M.

1. Call to Order.

2. Workshop —

a. Workshop: Joint City/County workshop regarding Texas Department of Transportation's
(TxDOT) Railroad Safety Concerns.

3. Adjourn.

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA - 5:30 P.M.

1. Call to Order & Pledge of Allegiance to the Flags.
2. Determination of a Quorum and Proof of Netice of the Meeting.

3. Public Comments - (limited to 3 minutes per person)

4. Presentations, Recognitions. and Proclamations — None.
3. Reports -

City Mavor Report.

City Attorney Report — None.

City Manager Report —

¢ Utilities — Wastewater Treatment Plan Update.
¢ Public Works — Hot Patch / Paving Update.

City Staff Update — None.

6. Public Hearings —

I. Public Hearing to obtain citizen views and comments regarding Special Use Permit 2024-01-
02, a special use permit application allowing the applicant, Tehra Vaughn, to establish a one-
chair beauty salon in an R-2 Two-Family District zone. The property in question is located at
401 W. Sul Ross and is legally described as the East 18.89 feet of Lots 8, 9, 10, all of Lots 1, 2,
and 3, and that portion of the platted alley lying between said lots, all out of Block 28, Original
Townsite of Alpine, envelope 184, plat records of Brewster County, Texas. The property ID of
the subject property is 35650. The record property owners are Thomas Robinson and Karen
Chapman. The current zoning of the property is R-2 Two-Family District. The zoning
classification if the special use permit is approved will remain R-2 Two-Family District. The
Planning & Zoning Commission has recommended approval of this special use permit.
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9.

Consent Agenda — (Minutes, Financial reports, Department written reports, board appointments,
etc.) Notice to the Public — The following items are of a routine and administrative nature. The
Council has been furnished with background and support material on each item, and/or it has been
discussed at a previous meeting. All items will be acted upon by one vote without being discussed
separately unless requested by a Council Member, in which event the item or items will immediately
be withdrawn for individual consideration in its normal sequence after the items not requiring
separate discussion have been acted upon. The remaining items will be adopted by one vote.

1. Approval of February 20, 2024 Regular Meeting Minutes. (G. Calderon, City Secretary)

2. Approval of a Letter of Support for the 2024 Keep Texas Beautiful Affiliate Annual Recognition
- Gold Star Level. (M. Antrim, City Manager)

Approval of the retirement of Alpine Police Department K9 Artus. (M. Antrim, City Manager)

4. Approve payment of the January 2024 monthly billing summary for Bojorquez Law Firm
services. (M. Antrim, City Manager)

Information or Discussion Items —
1. Commissioner Court Update by County Liaison. (J. Stokes, City Council)

Action items to be accompanied by a brief statement of facts. including where funds are coming
from, if applicable. (Action items limited to 10 per meeting).

1. Approve acceptance of the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Audit from Gibson, Ruddock, and Patterson
LLC. (M. Antrim, City Manager)

2. Approve the first reading of Ordinance 2024-03-01, an ordinance amending Chapter 70 -
Offenses and Miscellaneous Provisions, Article II - Minors to the Alpine Code of Ordinances;
Repealing Division II - Curfew; Providing Findings of Fact, Repealer, Severability, Effective
Date, Proper Notice, and Hearing Clauses. (M. Antrim, City Manager)

3. Approve Resolution 2024-03-01, a resolution authorizing the City's Police Department to
participate in the Office of the Governor's Public Safety Office, Homeland Security Grants
Division, Operation Lonestar (OLS) Program for Fiscal Year 2025. (M. Antrim, City Manager)

4. Approve Special Use Permit 2024-01-02, a special use permit application allowing the
applicant, Tehra Vaughn, to establish a one-chair beauty salon in an R-2 Two-Family District
zone. The property in question is located at 401 W. Sul Ross and is legally described as the East
18.89 feet of Lots 8, 9, 10, all of Lots 1, 2, and 3, and that portion of the platted alley lying
between said lots, all out of Block 28, Original Townsite of Alpine, envelope 184, plat records
of Brewster County, Texas. The property ID of the subject property is 35650. The record
property owners are Thomas Robinson and Karen Chapman. The current zoning of the property
is R-2 Two-Family District. The zoning classification if the special use permit is approved will
remain R-2 Two-Family District. The Planning & Zoning Commission has recommended
approval of this special use permit. (M. Antrim, City Manager)

5. Approve Order 2024-03-01, an order approving the Certification of Unopposed Candidates for
the May 4, 2024 General Election. (G. Calderon, City Secretary)

6. Approve Order 2024-03-02, an order of cancellation for the unopposed Ward 2 and Mayoral
races for the May 4, 2024 General Election. (G. Calderon, City Secretary)

10. City Council Member Comments - No discussion or action may take place.
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12,

13.

NOTICE: The City Council reserves the right to reconvene, recess, realign, change the order of
business, or adjourn into Executive Session at any time during the course of the meeting prior to
adjournment, to discuss any item listed above, as authorized by Texas Government Code Sections
551.071 (Consultation with Attorney), 551.072 (Deliberations about Real Property), 551.073
(Deliberations about Gifts and Donations), 551.074 (Personnel Matters), 551.076 (Deliberations
about Security Devices), and 551.087 (development).

Executive Session — None.

Action — Executive Session — None,

Adjourn.

NOTICE: In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Alpine will provide
reasonable accommodations for persons attending meetings. This facility is wheelchair accessible,
and accessible parking space is available. Requests for accommodations or interpretive services must
be made 48 hours prior to this meeting. Please contact the Office of the City Secretary at (432) 837-
3301, option 1, or email city.secretary@citvofalpine.com for further information.

CERTIFICATION

I, Geoffrey R. Calderon, do hereby certify that this notice was posted at City Hall, in a convenient and
readily accessible place to the general public, and on the City website at www citvofalpine.com/agenda
pursuant to Section 551.043, Texas Government Code. The said notice was posted by 2:00 P.M. on
Friday, March 1, 2024, and remained so posted for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of the
said meeting.

WITNESS MY HAND AND SEAL
This 1 day of March 2024.

P i = S

Geoffrey R, Caldefon. TRMC
City Secrety & Zhief Governance Officer
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INTRODUCTION OVERVIEW

Call to Order & Pledge of Allegiance to the Flags.

. Determination of a Quorum and Proof of Notice of the Meeting.

Public Comments - (limited to 3 minutes per person)

Presentations, Recognitions, and Proclamations — None.
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5.

REPORTS OVERVIEW

Reports -
City Mavor Report.
City Attorney Report — None.
City Manager Report —

¢ Utilities — Wastewater Treatment Plan Update.
* Public Works - Hot Patch / Paving Update.

City Staff Update — None.




6. Public Hearings —
1.

PUBLIC HEARINGS OVERVIEW

Public Hearing to obtain citizen views and comments regarding Special Use Permit 2024-01-
02, a special use permit application allowing the applicant, Tehra Vaughn, to establish a one-
chair beauty salon in an R-2 Two-Family District zone. The property in question is located at
401 W. Sul Ross and is legally described as the East 18.89 feet of Lots 8, 9, 10, all of Lots 1, 2,
and 3, and that portion of the platted alley lying between said lots, all out of Block 28, Original
Townsite of Alpine, envelope 184, plat records of Brewster County, Texas. The property ID of
the subject property is 35650. The record property owners are Thomas Robinson and Karen
Chapman. The current zoning of the property is R-2 Two-Family District. The zoning
classification if the special use permit is approved will remain R-2 Two-Family District. The
Planning & Zoning Commission has recommended approval of this special use permit.




CONSENT AGENDA OVERVIEW

7. Consent Agenda — (Minutes, Financial reports, Department written reports, board appointments,
etc.) Notice to the Public — The following items are of a routine and administrative nature. The
Council has been furnished with background and support material on each item, and/or it has been
discussed at a previous meeting. All items will be acted upon by one vote without being discussed
separately unless requested by a Council Member, in which event the item or items will immediately
be withdrawn for individual consideration in its normal sequence after the items not requiring
separate discussion have been acted upon. The remaining items will be adopted by one vote.

I. Approval of February 20, 2024 Regular Meeting Minutes. (G. Calderon, City Secretary)

2. Approval of a Letter of Support for the 2024 Keep Texas Beautiful Affiliate Annual Recognition
- Gold Star Level. (M. Antrim, City Manager)

Approval of the retirement of Alpine Police Department K9 Artus. (M. Antrim, City Manager)

4. Approve payment of the January 2024 monthly billing summary for Bojorquez Law Firm
services. (M. Antrim, City Manager)




CITY COUNCIL
MEETING AGENDA ITEM COVER MEMO
MARCH §, 2024

CONSENT AGENDA

1. Approval of February 20, 2024 Regular Meeting Minutes. (G. Calderon, City Secretary)

BACKGROUND

NONE.

SUPPORTING MATERIALS

1. February 20, 2024 Regular Meeting Minutes. (G. Calderon, City Secretary)

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

APPROVE.




1.

6.

City of Alpine
Regular City Council Meeting
Tuesday, February 20, 2024
Minutes

Call to Order & Pledge of Allegiance — Mayor Pro Tem Stephens called the meeting to order at 5:30
P.M. The meeting was held at City Council Chambers located at 803 West Holland Avenue and via
Zoom Videoconference in the City of Alpine, Texas. Mayor Pro Tem Stephens led the pledge of
allegiance to the flags.

Determination of a Quorum and Proof of Notice of the Meeting —-

City Council Members Present: City Staff and Stakeholders Present:
Councilor Judy Stokes, Ward 1 Megan Antrim, City Manager
Councilor Darin Nance, Ward 3 Geoffrey R. Calderon, City Secretary
Councilor Martin Sandate, Ward 4 Joey Delgado, City Attorney

Councilor Rick Stephens, Mayor Pro Tem Abel Hinojos, Airport Supervisor

City Council Members Present Virtually: Others Present: Approximately 3 other
Catherine Eaves, Mayor attendees.

Not Present:

Councilor Chris Rodriguez, Ward 2

Mayor Pro Tem Stephens announced that a quorum of the City Council was present at the City Council
Chambers and City Secretary, Geoffrey Calderon, reported that the meeting agenda was posted by
2:00 P.M. on Friday, February 16, 2024.

Public Comments — (limited to 3 minutes per person) — None.

Presentations, Recognitions, and Proclamations — None.

Reports — Copies of presentations displayed during the meeting are posted on the City website at
www._cityofalpine.com/reports —

City Mayor Report.
City Attorney Report — None.

City Manager Report —

Department of Defense.
Recycling Center Mulcher.
TxDOT Railroad Bridge Study.
Airport Layout Plan.

City Staff Updates — None.

Pl o

Public Hearings —
Open (5:42 P.M.)

Minutes: 02-20-2024
Approved: 03-05-2024



1. Public Hearing to obtain citizen views and comments regarding the second and final reading
of Ordinance 2024-02-02, an ordinance amending Appendix C - Zoning, Article I — Basic
Ordinance to the Alpine Code of Ordinances; Amending the city zoning ordinance to provide
for regulations in the M-1 — Industrial District Zone; Providing the establishment of up to a
$500 penalty per occurrence for violations of the ordinance.

Close (5:42 P.M.)

Consent Agenda — (Minutes, Financial reports, Department written reports, Board appointments, etc.)

— (Notice to the Public — The following items are of a routine and administrative nature. The Council
has been furnished with background and support material on each item, and/or it has been discussed
at a previous meeting. Al items will be acted upon by one vote without being discussed separately
unless requested by a Council Member, in which event the item or items will immediately be
withdrawn for individual consideration in its normal sequence after the items not requiring separate
discussion have been acted upon. The remaining items will be adopted by one vote.) -

1.
2.

5.

Approval of February 6, 2024 Regular Meeting Minutes. (G. Calderon, City Secretary)
Approval of Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024 1st Quarter Investment Report. (M. Antrim, City Manager)
RESOLUTION 2024-02-19: On a motion by Councilor Stokes and seconded by Councilor

Sandate to approve the consent agenda as written, the City Council unanimously adopted the
motion.

Information or Discussion items —

Chapter 23 Review. (M. Antrim, City Manager)
Discuss the Operation Lone Star Grant. (J. Stokes, City Council)

Discuss Alpine Country Club Estates (ACCE) Roads including options, actions, and schedule
for ensuring that ACCE roads are repaired. (R. Stephens, City Council)

Discuss the pending list of priorities and provide feedback to the City Manager on council
priorities. (R. Stephens, City Council)

Discuss tentative workshop schedule. (M. Antrim, City Manager)

9. Action items to be accompanied by a brief statement of facts, including where funds are coming
from, if applicable. (Action items are limited to 10 per meeting.) —

1.

Approve the second and final reading of Ordinance 2024-02-02, an ordinance amending

Appendix C — Zoning. Article I — Basic Ordinance to the Alpine Code of Ordinances: Amending
the city zoning ordinance to provide for regulations in the M-1 — Industrial District Zone:

Providing the establishment of up to a $500 penalty per occurrence for violations of the

ordinance. (M. Antrim, City Manager)

RESOLUTION 2024-02-20: On a motion by Councilor Stokes and seconded by Councilor
Sandate to approve the second and final reading of Ordinance 2024-02-02, the City Council
adopted the motion 3 to (.

Minutes: 02-20-2024
Approved: 03-05-2024



2. Approve Lance, Soll & Lunghard, LLP (LSL) Proposal for Professional Services: Accounting
and Consulting; not to exceed $70.000 for fiscal year 2023-2024. (M. Antrim, City Manager)

RESOLUTION 2024-02-21: On a motion by Councilor Stokes and seconded by Councilor
Sandate to approve Lance, Soll, & Lunghard, LLP Proposal for Professional Services, the City

Council adopted the motion 3 to 0.

10. City Council Member Comments — No discussion or action may take place.

NOTICE: The City Council reserves the right to reconvene, recess, realign, change the order of
business, or adjourn into Executive Session at any time during the course of the meeting prior to
adjournment, to discuss any item listed above, as authorized by Texas Government Code Sections
551071 (Consultation with Attorney), 551.072 (Deliberations about Real Property), 551.073
(Deliberations about Gifts and Donations), 551.074 (Personnel Matters), 551.076 (Deliberations
about Security Devices), and 551.087 (development).

RESOLUTION 2024-02-22: On a motion by Councilor Stokes and seconded by Councilor
Sandate to move into executive session, the City Council adopted the motion 3 to 0. (6:46 P.M.)

Mayor Pro Tem Rick Stephens called a 5-minute recess. (6:46 P.M.)
The meeting resumed. (6:51 P.M.)
11. Executive Session —
Personnel Matters § 551.074, Texas Government Code

I. Deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or
dismissal of a public officer or employee; Utility Manager. (M. Antrim, City Manager)

Consultation with Attorney § 551.071, Texas Government Code

1. City Attorney Update:

a. Discuss Customs and Border Protection Hangar Lease Renewal.

b. Discuss Pending Public Information Requests and Attorney General Responses.
c. Discuss City Council Members Qualifications.

d. Discuss legal aspects of the City changing to a Municipal Court of Record.

e. Discuss issues with non-conformance and operation of an unrecognized mobile home
park in the Northwest portion of Alpine, widely known as "Frontier Village."

f. Discuss the process for the sale/distribution of city property that is abandoned or no
longer needed by the City.

(M. Antrim, City Manager)
12. Action — Executive Session —

RESOLUTION 2024-02-23: On a motion by Councilor Stokes and seconded by Councilor Sandate
to move into regular session, the City Council unanimously adopted the motion. (8:10 P.M.)

Minutes: 02-20-2024
Approved: 03-05-2024



1. Action, if any, concerning any of the matters listed in executive session. (M. Antrim, City
Manager)

RESOLUTION 2024-02-24: Councilor Stokes moved to supplement Johnny Marquez’s salary by
$1,250 per month effective February 7, 2024 for the next 6 months because of his additional
responsibility as Interim Director of Utilities and to make sure that the Council discuss with the City
Manager actions to find a full-time Director of Utilities consistent with the City’s needs. Councilor
Sandate seconded the motion. The Council voied to adopt the motion 3-0.

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned by Mayor Pro Tem Stephens.

13. Adjourn. (8:10 P.M.)

APPROVED: ATTEST:

Catherine Eaves, Mayor Geoffrey R. Calderon, TRMC
City Secretary & Chief Governance Officer

CERTIFICATION

1, Geoffrey R. Calderon, hereby certify that notice of this meeting was posted at City Hall, in a convenient
and readily accessible place to the general public, and to the City website at www cityofalpine.com/agenda
pursuant to Section 551.043, Texas Government Code. The said notice was posted by 2:00 P.M. on Friday.
February 16, 2024, and remained so posted for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of the said
meeting.

WITNESS MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE,
this day of 2024,

Geoffrey R. Calderon, TRMC
City Secretary & Chief Governance QOfficer

Minutes: 02-20-2024
Approved: 03-05-2024



CITY COUNCIL
MEETING AGENDA ITEM COVER MEMO
MARCH 5§, 2024

CONSENT AGENDA

2. Approval of a Letter of Support for the 2024 Keep Texas Beautiful Affiliate Annual
Recognition - Gold Star Level. (M. Antrim, City Manager)

BACKGROUND

The City of Alpine Environmental Services Department has been part of the Keep Texas
Beautiful Program for over 10 years.
The affiliate annual recognition program provides an opportunity for the Keep Alpine
Beautiful program to brag about their accomplishments within the past year.
There are three levels of recognition: Good Standing, Silver Star, and Gold Star.
Each level has certain requirements outlining what must be achieved and documented in
order to apply.
This year the Keep Alpine Beautiful is applying for Gold Star Recognition and must:
o Meet all requirements for Good Standing and Silver Star levels
o Provide a letter of Support from an elected official, civic group, business, or youth
group that describes the value of your affiliate to the community.
o Must complete one of the following options:
* Complete an additional of the three Star online questions through the
Annual Report
= Participate in KTB Affiliate Mentorship Program as an Affiliate Mentor
® Attend 12 hours of approved virtual or in-person training in 2023
= Keep America Beautiful affiliate in Good Standing
Keep Alpine Beautiful has met all the requirements for Good Standing and Siiver Star
levels and completed the additional online questions and 12 hours of training.

SUPPORTING MATERIALS

[

Letter of Support

2. Annual Report




STAFF RECOMMENDATION

1.

APPROVE.
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March 5, 2024
Greetings,

We are writing this letter to express our wholehearted support for Alpine’s Keep Texas
Beautiful program and to commend the exceptional work being carried out by the City of
Alpine’s Environmental Service’s Team.

The Keep Alpine Beautiful program has proven to be an invaluable initiative, contributing
significantly to the environmental well-being of our community. The program’s
commitment to promoting sustainability, enhancing the natural beauty of our surroundings,
and fostering environmental stewardship is truly commendable. Through various initiatives
such as community cleanups, recycling awareness campaigns, and educational outreach
programs. Keep Alpine Beautiful has played a pivotal role in creating a cleaner, more
sustainable living environment for the residents of Alpine.

We would like to specifically highlight the exceptional efforts of our Environmental
Services Coordinator, Adelina Beall. Ms. Beall’s dedication and passion for environmental
conservation have been instrumental in the success of the program. Her ability to
coordinate and implement a wide range of initiatives, from organizing community cleanups
to conducting workshops on waste reduction, has made a positive impact on the
community’s environmental consciousness.

Adelina Beall’s tireless commitment to education has been particularly noteworthy.
Through her and her teams’ efforts, the community has become more aware of the
importance of responsible waste management, sustainable practices, and the preservation of
our natural resources. Ms. Beall’s educational outreach programs have empowered
residents to make informed choices that contribute to a healthier and more sustainable
Alpine.

The benefits of Keep Alpine Beautiful are evident in the positive changes witnessed in
Alpine. The City has become more environmentally conscious, and residents are actively
participating in initiatives that contribute to the overall cleanliness and sustainability of our
community.

COUNCILWOMAN WARD T COUNCILWOMAN WARD 2 COUNCILMAN WARD 3 COUNCILMAN WARD 4 COUNCILMAN WARD §
JUDY STOKES CHRIS RODRIGUEZ DARIN NANCE MARTIN SANDATE RICK STEPHENS



We, the City Council of Alpine, Texas, wholeheartedly endorse the Keep Alpine/Texas
Beautiful program and express our sincere appreciation for the outstanding work that is
done by our employees and community. The combined efforts of the program and our
Team have created a lasting impact on our community, fostering a sense of pride and
responsibility for the environment. We encourage continued support for this invaluable
program and look forward to witnessing further positive changes under the dedication of
our team, community, and Keep Texas Beautiful.

Sincerely,
Mayor Catherine Eaves Councilmember Ward 1 - Judy Stokes
Councilmember Ward 2 — Chris Rodriguez Councilmember Ward 3 — Darin Nance

Councilmember Ward 4 — Martin Sandate Councilmember Ward 5-Rick Stephens



1. In 2023 did your affiliate lead presentations or activities to your general community?

Yes No

Please describe the events and total number of people reached through affiliate-led
presentations/activities:

The City of Alpine/KAB 2023 outreach efforts by hosting nine community events, three
workshops (tree care & landscaping), and assisted three career fairs in the community.
Educational Qutreach was continued during each of these events by explaining event-specific
goals as well as City-wide waste-prevention and beautification goals.

2. In 2023 did your affiliate lead presentations or activities to youth specifically?

Yes No

Please describe the events and total number of youth reached through affiliate-led

presentations/activities:

Keep Alpine Beautiful engaged with youth groups during:
Earth Day where significant youth turn out to name the new Recycling Center mascot (98
votes), also at the event there were multiple environmental education booths and projects
for children.

- The Alpine Cub Scouts GAC (4/28/2023; 16 cub scouts), and during their Spring Service
Project -Community Garden at Kokernot Municipal Park.

- KAB partner up the Big Bend Little League to add recycling collection during their T-ball
games during the 2023 spring and surnmer season.

3. Does your affiliate sponsor or work with a Youth Advisory Council?
Yes No

4. What percentage of your community’s population is low-income/disabled/vulnerable? Do
you implement programs or activities that serve your community’s fow-
income/disabled/vulnerable populations? If so, please explain briefly.

Our city's low income/disabled/disadvantaged community's population is ~22.3%. Staff
implements community outreach during the abatement of these illegal dumping sites which
has help with continued incidents in these areas. Our recycling center is open and free for all
county and city residents. This allows low income and all city residents be able to dispose of
their items properly for free. This will help the public on disposal costs and avoid travel to the
city landfill (20 miles out of town). Keep Alpine Beautiful partnered with Big Bend
Conservation Alliance and Alpine Public Library on a Community Service Day — Native Tree
Giveaway.

5. Did your affiliate serve populations where English is their second language?
Yes No Unknown

Did you provide them with materials and resources in their preferred language? If so, please
identify the language(s) and share which translated materials you provide. Please include a link
to any web page or materials related to this initiative.

Yes. Spanish is the most common, apart from English, in our community. All documentation
(doorknockers) left at households are in both languages. Also, the Environmental Services
Coordinator/KAB coordinator/Code Enforcement Officer, is bi-lingual.

6. What are the main focus areas of your affiliate work? Please choose all that apply.



If you selected "other” please descrive the main focus of your affiliate work below:
JLitter Prevention

v Beautification

+ Recycling & Waste Reduction

« Other (Community education and outreach.)

7. Does your affiliate sponsor an adopt-a-spot/street/creek program?
Yes No

This optional section of the annual report allows Keep Texas Beautiful lear more about your
program initiatives from 2023.

1. What program or project has your organization worked on that you are most proud of in the
past year (Jan. 2023-Dec. 2023)? Examples include: mural projects, veteran housing projects,
school gardens, art contests, etc.

Keep Alpine Beautiful implemented a new program in 2023 partnering with Big Bend Little
league to collect recycling during the spring and summer games. The City/KAB installed two
96-gal poly carts with proper labeling of the accepted recyclables (namely plastic water
bottles and aluminum cans). In 2023, 1,161 Ibs. of recycling were collected. This successful
program will now be done annually, with the intent to expand future partnership with the local
Youth Soccer Association.

2. What steps, if any, have you taken towards having a more diverse and inclusive organization?
Those could be through organizational policy changes, volunteer best practices, marketing
plans, board recruitment, etc. Please share the successes of your efforts (i.e. increased
outreach to underserved communities, translation materials provided)

e In 2023, KAB distributed almost 250 free recycling totes (bought with 2022 grant
funds) to residents at the local Food Pantry (143-low-income), and during Earth Day
(66), Cinco de Mayo (24), and Fiesta 1888 events (10).

¢ The City of Alpine has increased curb-side bulky-pickup to monthly, with 28.72 tons
collected annually.

o City hosted three Tire Amnesty events (5/26-27; 6/16-17; & 7/28-29) offering NO-FEE
tire disposal (usually $5 fee). Total of 21.18 ton of scrap tires were recycled.

e All clean-up events are promoted through various media, with website and newspaper
postings, as well as lllegal Dumping Abatement Program Door Info-hangers, are
promoted/written in both English and Spanish.

+ The ESC/KAB coordinator/Code Enforcement Officers, are bi-lingual.

+ KAB partnered with Big Bend Conservation Alliance and the Alpine Public Library for
Community Service Day Tree Giveaway (11/12), distributing 45 native trees to the
community.

+ The City of Alpine Recycling Center accepts tree limbs, bulky items, and scrap metal
from residents free of charge to contribute to the cleanup efforts in our community.
Adding two large roll-off dumpsters for bulky waste at the Recycling Center resulted in
112.35 tons of waste disposed of in 2023, free-of-charge to residents.

» All city facilities and our largest city park participate in recycling. Our Recycling Center
- including bulky-item roll offs — is open and free for all county and city residents for
proper waste disposal.



3. What is a program or project that you need further funding to initiate in your community?
Please describe the program or project (ex. community gardens, recycling initiatives, public art
installations.)

Funding for the existing public recycling collection station system. The City of Alpine Hal
Flanders Recycling Center currently owns 5 (double) collection stations. Two are currently in
use and are located at Kokernot Municipal Park. The lids for these collection stations are
considerably deteriorated and three of these are not in use. Replacing the lids on all of the
stations will make it possible for the recycling team to place the decommissioned stations in
different locations around town. Tentative locations: Third station South of Kokernot Park,
Baines Park, Medina Park, or Hancock Hill Trail Head. (see location maps 2, 3, 4).

The goal of this project is to expand the public recycling collection station system in town.
This project will impact the community offering recycling option to residents that use the
parks, and/or public areas where these stations will be placed.

The recycling program in Alpine, TX is source separated. Residents collect/sort recycling at
home then have to take them to the center. This funding will address recycling efforts by
giving residents recycling options at public areas in and around town.

4. Please use this space to share any other successes you would like Keep Texas Beautiful to
know about:

(optional) Use this field to upload a picture of a program result you are particularly proud of!
The city hosted a large-scale community outreach event on Earth Day 4/22/2023 in Alpine’s
Murphy’s Street Historic District, where 66 recycling totes were distributed, and information
on options for proper disposal, monthly curb-side bulky pickup schedule, and upcoming clean-
up events was given. Earth Day was a very successful event, where multiple educations and
outreach booths were on site, most had games, and activities for children. Significant youth
turn out to name the new Recycling Center mascot (98 votes) - Vinny the Vulture. School-aged
kids love the new Vinny stickers.

This page will only appear if you indicated on page 3 the intention to seek recognition for
Silver or Gold Star.

If you are seeking recognition for Silver Star Standing or Gold Standing, in addition to meeting all
requirements for Good Standing, please review the options below and check all that apply.
- Submitted TWO Beautify Texas Awards in Spring 2023

Completing one of the three star online questions in this report

Attended 8 hours of approved virtual or in-person training in 2023

Have completed the affiliate feedback survey in October 2023

if you are seeking recognition for Gold Star Standing, in addition to meeting all requirements for
Good Standing and Silver Star, please review the options below and check all that apply.
Completing two of the three star online questions through this report

Participated in the KTB Affiliate Mentorship Program as a mentor

Attended 12 hours of approved virtual or in-person training in 2023

Keep America Beautiful affiliate in Good Standing

We will be recognizing all Silver Star and Gold Star affiliates at our annual conference. Piease
add two sentences about your organization for us to share.



We will be recognizing all Silver Star and Gold Star affilaties at our annual conference. Please
add a high quality photo for us to share.

We will be recognizing all Silver Star and Gold Star affilaties at our annual conference. You may
add an additional high quality photo for us to share here.

Star Questions
The topic area my affiliate is covering in the Star question is: (Responses to these questions are
not mandatory to achieve Silver/Gold Star status. If your affiliate was not directly involved in
any of these focus areas, please do not complete the questions.)
- Outreach: Marketing & Communications
- Youth Engagement
- Recycling

All questions must be answered fully to receive credit for Silver/Gold Star.
Virtual Outreach: Marketing & Communications
1. Does your organization have a written communications plan? No
If so, please provide a copy of the plan.
If your organization does not, please explain how you develop communications throughout the
year. The City's Recycling Center and Keep Alpine Beautiful utilize the City’'s website, social
media (Facebook), Radio and newspaper, bilingual door-hangers, posters and flyers.

2. Does your organization regularly communicate with key stakeholders like volunteers and
sponsors? Yes Please provide a brief description of your communications efforts.

The City’'s Recycling Center and Keep Alpine Beautiful utilize social media (Facebook), and the
City's website, radio, newspaper, posters, and flyers to inform the community on upcoming
Bulk Pick-ups (monthly with 28.72 tons collected in 2023) and KAB clean-up events
throughout the year (9 events in 20223, totaling in 1.79 tons of trash collected) We also use
social media and the city website to post changes to our recycling streams and updates on
materials accepted and to inform on any changes to our operating hours on holidays. Also, we
distribute bilingual door-hangers to educate the neighborhood around illegal dump locations
(Part of the illegal abatement program) of the options they have for proper disposal of their
items.

Virtual Qutreach: Marketing & Communications

3. What metrics do you collect around your communications? If available, please share those for
2023. 116 Facebook posts and 35 website posts, 187+ illegal dumping info door hangers, and
28 radio ads and 9 newspaper ads were made in 2023.

How does your organization use this data to inform future communications? This data helps us
to quantify our efforts and identifies areas we need modify or increase communication.

4. Which of the following does your organization use as a way to reach existing and potential
participants in your programs or supporters of your work?

E-newsletter

v Social Media (please list which platforms) KAB utilize social media (Facebook) and the
City's website

Community Calendar hosted by a third-party

# Civic Clubs (i.e. present at Local Chamber of Commerce, neighborhood associations, Rotary
Club meetings)

+Local Government (i.e. comment at City Council meetings, work with Parks & Rec Dept.)
+/Press releases



Work with local schools and/or churches

Table at community events

Other (please describe) The City’s Recycling Center and Keep Alpine Beautiful utilize social
media (Facebook), and the City’s website, radio, newspaper, posters, and flyers.

Youth Engagement

1. Describe the youth engagement programs that your community offered throughout this past
year. How does your organization educate the youth of different ages and grade levels? What
curriculums do you utilize, if any? Please include any links to program pages.

Keep Alpine Beautiful engages with youth groups (Alpine Cub Scouts Creek Clean-up
(4/28/2023), during community clean-up events, and during their Spring/Summer Project -
Planting a Community Garden at Kokernot Park. In 2023, KAB hosted nine community clean-
up events for a total of: 155 volunteers, that invested 348 hours ($11,066.40) in these clean-
ups. ~1.79 tons of trash, 9.15 miles of city streets/TXDOT roads were covered, and 1.48 mile
of waterways were cleaned.

KAB implemented a new program in 2023 partnering with Big Bend Little league to collect
recycling during the spring and summer games. The City/KAB installed two 96-gal poly carts
with proper labeling of the accepted recyclables (namely plastic water bottles and aluminum
cans). The City’s Environmental Services/KAB coordinator continues to reach out to youth
groups and organizations in the area to promote KAB efforts, goals, and events.

Youth Engagement

2. How does your organization gather data and evaluate the success of your youth programs?
What changes do you plan to implement, or what successes have you experienced based on
this data? During the new recycling program partnering with Big Bend Little league to
collect recycling during the spring and summer games. 1,161 lbs. of recycling were
collected in 2023. This successful program will now be done annually, with the intent
to expand future partnership with the local Youth Soccer Association. At this time,
there is not a youth advisory board or council in our community.

Youth Engagement

3. Describe your method for recruiting youth for your programming. How do you ensure you are
welcoming youth of all backgrounds? KAB reaches out to Cub Scout leaders to organize their
yearly clean-ups, planting community gardens, and Big Bend Little league council to start and
continue the new recycling program during the t-ball spring and summer seasons.

Youth Engagement

4. How have you funded your youth programs (i.e. are you utilizing grant funding or other
sources)? What are the priorities that need to be funded for your programming?

Alpine’s beautification programs are organized & run by two full-time staff members, including
the Environmental Services Coordinator (ESC), and two part-time employees. The ESC
coordinates volunteers from different organizations, student groups, and residents. Programs
are funded through the City's General fund, KTB supplies, support from Texas Disposal,
Brewster County, grants, and local donations. The priorities that need to be funded are:
Funding for the existing public recycling collection station system. The City of Alpine Hal
Flanders Recycling Center currently owns 5 (double) collection stations. Two are currently in
use and are located at Kokernot Municipal Park. The lids for these collection stations are
considerably deteriorated and three of these are not in use. Replacing the lids on all of the



stations will make it possible for the recycling team to place the decommission stations to use
in different locations around town.

Recycling

1. Describe your current recycling program in your community. Do you have a curbside recycling
service and/or a local drop-off location? Do multi-family, apartments, and/or businesses have
access to recycling? What items are accepted? Who manages your recycling program (city,
county, volunteers, other)?

Recycling

2. Describe your current education and outreach strategy. How are you raising awareness of
recycling access in your community? How are you educating on what items are accepted?
Recycling

3. What is the biggest challenge your recycling program is experiencing? (Contamination,
infrastructure needs, volume, market values, staffing concerns, etc.)

Recycling

4. What does your recycling program need to improve or overcome current challenges?

Copy of your communications plan n/a
No file chosen

GOLD STAR SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS
Letters of Support must be uploaded to this form or emailed to corinne@ktb.org not later than 3/8/2024.
Please upload your Letter of Support for Gold Star



CITY COUNCIL
MEETING AGENDA ITEM COVER MEMO
MARCH 5§, 2024

CONSENT AGENDA

3. Approval of the retirement of Alpine Police Department K9 Artus. (M. Antrim, City Manager).

BACKGROUND

e In 2018, K9 Artus was originally stationed with a HIDTA law enforcement agency in the
State of New Mexico. In 2022, the original agency offered the Alpine Police Department
Artus to use within our community

® Artus has assisted the Police Department on numerous narcotic searches, as well as
assisted the Texas Department of Public Safety and Drug Enforcement Administration.

» Recently, K9 Artus has shown signs of hip dysplasia which has affected his ability to
perform his duties.

e The City has verified with the West Texas HIDTA Regional Office on the procedures for
retirerment and have been granted his retirement.

e The Alpine Police Department has requested K9 Artus be retired and actively seeking a
future home.

SUPPORTING MATERIALS

1. K9 Artus Retirement Letter

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

APPROVE.




CITY OF ALPINE

POLICE DEPARTMENT
309 West Sul Ross Avenue
Alpine, Texas 79830
DARRELL LOSOYA Telephone (432) 837-3486
Chief of Police Fax (432) 837-2616
Dear Chief Losoya, February 11, 2024

This letter is very hard to write. As you are aware of the declining health of K9 Artus, I
believe the time has come, and I am officially writing his retirement letter. K9 Artus has served
the Alpine Police Department as well as other departments in New Mexico since 2018. At
approximately eight years of age, he is showing severe signs of hip dysplasia.

During his years of service, Artus has assisted in numerous narcotics searches. During his tenure
with this Department, he has assisted other agencies, including the Texas Department of Public
Safety and the Drug Enforcement Administration.

Many people may not understand what it means to a K9 Handler to constantly have a K9
partner with them at all times and the bond that has been created. In the time that I have been
Artus’ handler, I can proudly say that he has been remarkable at narcotics detection, allowing me
to completely trust him in his job. I knew he was always protecting me, warning me if anyone
came close to me or my patrol unit.

Ideally, Artus would be happy retiring in my care, but due to space restraints with the
introduction of another K9 and his need for medical attention, I am unable to keep him. I have
hopes that he can be placed in a facility for retired military/police working dogs. He has earned
his time to relax and enjoy being a dog. K9 Artus and I would like to thank the Department and
the citizens of Alpine for showing great support for the K9 program.

Sincerely,

K9 Sgt. Valerie Kettani
Alpine Police Department

Proud to SERVE — Ready to PROTECT



CITY COUNCIL
MEETING AGENDA ITEM COVER MEMO
MARCH §, 2024

CONSENT AGENDA

4. Approve payment of the January 2024 monthly billing summary for Bojorquez Law Firm
services. (M. Antrim, City Manager)

BACKGROUND

NONE.

SUPPORTING MATERIALS

1. Bojorquez Law Firm January 2024 Summary Invoice.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

APPROVE.,




BOJORQUEZ
LAWFIRM, ¢

TexasMunicipalLawyers.com

INVOICE

Number 11996
Issue Date 1/31/2024
Due Date  3/6/2024

City of Alpine

Megan Antrim, City Manager
100 N 13th St.

Alpine, TX 79830

Alpine - Annexation

Total for Alpine - Annexation $700.00
Alpine - Axelrod / Jacob
Total for Alpine - Axelrod / $1,790.80
Jacob
Alpine - Elections
Total for Alpine - Elections $1,297.40
Alpine - General
Total for Alpine - General $1,145.00

Alpine - Municipal Court



Total for Alpine - Municipai $1,585.30

Court
Alpine - Open Records
Total for Alpine - Open $1,486.90
Records
Alpine - Utilities
Total for Alpine - Utilities $460.00
Alpine - Water
Total for Alpine - Water $280.00
Total (USD) $8,745.40
Paid $0.00
Balance $8,745.40

Terms & Conditions

WARNING: While this document is a public record subject to release under Tex. Gov't Code Ch. 552.022(a), it might
contain Confidential/Privileged information exempt from disclosure.

Make checks payable to Bojorquez Law Firm, PC

Tax ID#27-0818127

11675 Jollyville Road, Suite 300

Austin, TX 78759

ALL PAST DUE AMOUNTS ARE SUBJECT TO INTEREST CHARGES



Timekeeper Totals
Name
Joey R Delgado
Nicole E Hipp-Follweiler
Hope Avila
Marianella Joseph
Desiree Duarte
Rezzin Pullum
Sylvia B Firth
Chris Gad

Mylinda Murmray

Rate
$200.00
$108.00
$108.00
$210.00
$200.00
$210.00
$239.33
$191.00

$108.00

Hours
14.60
13.00

1.10
0.40
8.40
3.30
0.90
8.30

0.30

Total
$2,920.00
$1,404.00

$118.80
$84.00
$1,680.00
$693.00
$215.40
$1,585.30

$32.40
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INFORMATION OR DISCUSSION OVERVIEW

8. Information or Discussion Items —

1. Commissioner Court Update by County Liaison. (J. Stokes, City Council)




| |

CITY COUNCIL
MEETING AGENDA ITEM COVER MEMO
MARCH §, 2024

INFORMATION OR DISCUSSION

1. Commissioner Court Update by County Liaison. (J. Stokes, City Council)

BACKGROUND
NONE.
SUPPORTING MATERIALS
1. Commissioner Court Report.
STAFF RECOMMENDATION

NONE.




DATE:  February 27, 2024 at 9:30 am

MEMBERS PRESENT: Judge Greg Henington, Commissioners: J
Westerman, S Colando, R. Ortega,

MEMBERS ABSENT: M Morrow

No minutes approved from last meeting.

Recognized Keri Blackman and John Davis for their service to the not only the County
but the City for Art Walk and all their other endeavors over the years.

Comm. Ortega said the last Fish Fry raised over $26,000 which (which less expenses)
will be used to renovate the Marathon Community Center.

Approved ARPA funds in the amount of $1,429,000.00 for General Fund reimbursement
to each department for payroll expenses.

Approved the payment of $7,500 from Sheriff's Office to catch up on payment for the
lease agreement with Mount Ord.

Susan Martin Fire Chief, Terlingua Fire & EMS gave a report.

Patty Roach, Audit Task Force stated most of 2021 Audit was sent in and working on
2022 Audit.

Approved Post Park waste disposal agreement with Republic Services. Went down
from $1206 per month too $990 per month.

Heard Road and Bridge report.

Heard Emergency Mgt Department report.

Approved a 45 day extension to the Brewster County Burn Ban.

Approved Treasurer’s Report.

Approved the CASI donation of $4,000.00 to the Sheriff's Office.

Recessed into closed meeting for a personnel matter

Next meeting is scheduled for March 12. 2024 { | will be unable to attend as | will be out of
town for Spring Break)



9.

ACTION ITEMS OVERVIEW

Action items to be accompanied by a brief statement of facts, including where funds are coming
from, if applicable. (Action items limited to 10 per meeting).

1.

Approve acceptance of the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Audit from Gibson, Ruddock, and Patterson
LLC. (M. Antrim, City Manager)

Approve the first reading of Ordinance 2024-03-01, an ordinance amending Chapter 70 -
Offenses and Miscellaneous Provisions, Article I - Minors to the Alpine Code of Ordinances;
Repealing Division II - Curfew; Providing Findings of Fact, Repealer, Severability, Effective
Date, Proper Notice, and Hearing Clauses. (M. Antrim, City Manager)

Approve Resolution 2024-03-01, a resolution authorizing the City's Police Department to
participate in the Office of the Governor's Public Safety Office, Homeland Security Grants
Division, Operation Lonestar (OLS) Program for Fiscal Year 2025. (M. Antrim, City Manager)

Approve Special Use Permit 2024-01-02, a special use permit application allowing the
applicant, Tehra Vaughn, to establish a one-chair beauty salon in an R-2 Two-Family District
zone. The property in question is located at 401 W. Sul Ross and is legally described as the East
18.89 feet of Lots 8, 9, 10, all of Lots 1, 2, and 3, and that portion of the platted alley lying
between said lots, all out of Block 28, Original Townsite of Alpine, envelope 184, plat records
of Brewster County, Texas. The property ID of the subject property is 35650. The record
property owners are Thomas Robinson and Karen Chapman. The current zoning of the property
is R-2 Two-Family District. The zoning classification if the special use permit is approved will
remain R-2 Two-Family District. The Planning & Zoning Commission has recommended
approval of this special use permit. (M. Antrim, City Manager)

Approve Order 2024-03-01, an order approving the Certification of Unopposed Candidates for
the May 4, 2024 General Election. (G. Calderon, City Secretary)

Approve Order 2024-03-02, an order of cancellation for the unopposed Ward 2 and Mayoral
races for the May 4, 2024 General Election. (G. Calderon, City Secretary)




CITY COUNCIL
MEETING AGENDA ITEM COVER MEMO
MARCH §, 2024

To: Honorable Mayor and City Council
Agenda Item: Action Item 1 — Acceptance of FY 2021-2022 Audit
Agenda Sponsor: M. Antrim, City Manager

SYNOPSIS

Approve the acceptance of the FY 2021-2022 Audit from Gibson, Ruddock, and Patterson LLC,
(M. Antrim, City Manager)

BACKGROUND

Gibson, Ruddock, & Paterson, LLC has completed the FY 2021-2022 Audit.
Delays in the audit preparations were due to changes in staffing and additional time
needed to provide all necessary and required documentation to complete the audit.

e One Finding has been noted in FY2022 Audit pertaining to the reconciliation processes
between the Utility Billing Software and Financial Software. Management is currently
working to correct this finding and determine additional procedures.

SUPPORTING MATERIALS

1. FY 2021-2022 Audit
2. Audit Communication Letter

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

APPROVE
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F 915356-3779 GIBSON RUDDOCK PATTERSON LLC
W GRP-CPA COM certified public accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Alpine, Texas

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the govemnmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Alpine, Texas, (City) as of and for
the year ended September 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Alpine, Texas, as of September 30, 2022, and the respective changes in
financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the City of Alpine, Texas and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of intemal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City’s ability to continue as a going concern for
twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise
substantial doubt shortly thereafter.



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based
on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards, we:

. Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of

the City’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

. Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the City’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we
identified during the audit.

Emphasis of Matter

Change in Accounting Principle

As described in Note I to the financial statements, the City of Alpine, Texas adopted new accounting guidance,
GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.



Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion
and analysis, the budgetary comparison information, the TMRS pension, TESRS pension, and other postemployment
benefits information on pages 5 through 18 and 93 through 108, be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part
of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
ltmited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation
to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 31, 2024, on our
consideration of the City of Alpine, Texas® internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that repart is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City of Alpine, Texas’ internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

Mo Ruddeck Podlaroon LLE

Gibson Ruddock Patterson LLC
El Paso, Texas
January 31, 2024
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TheManagement Discussionand Analysis(MD&A) presents anoverview andanalysis ofthe financial activities of the
City of Alpine (City) for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2022, This document is designed to:

* Provide a comparison of current year to prior year and identify specific economic factors contributing to
changes;

* Help users of the financial statements understand the relationship between the results reported in the
government-wide financial statements for governmental activities and the results reported in the
governmental fund financial statements;

* Help the reader focus on the City's financial condition as a whole, describing currently known facts,
decisions or conditions expected to impact the City's financial condition and the availability of fund
resources for future years; and

* Identify significant vanances between the adopted budget, final budget and actual expenditures,
discussing the impact of these variances on future liquidity.

Since Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to focus on the current year’s activities and resulting
changes, it should be considered in conjunction with the other sections of this audit report.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

On a government-wide basis, the City's total assets and deferred outflows exceeded its liabilities and deferred
inflows by $36,146,448 (net position). Within the Total Net Position, Unrestricted Net Position is $8,587,234.
An increase from the prior year of $1,057,626.

The City of Alpine’s total net position increased by $1,468,320. Governmental activities increased net position
by $1,258,052 while the business-type activities increased by a total of $210,268. In the Statement of Activities,
which reports both governmental and business-type activities, the general revenues for governmental activities were
comprised of property tax, sales taxes, gross receipts business tax, investment earnings, and other taxes, which
totaled $5,276,552. Program revenues for Governmental Activities include charges for services and operating
grants and contributions which totaled $1,784,045. The $7,060,597 sum of general and program revenues less total
expenses of $5,802,545 produced an overall $1,258,052 increase in the governmental activities net position for the
fiscal year. The City continues to operate below budgeted expenditures. Operations continued to return to normal
as the City recovers from the impact of the Coronavirus Pandemic and limited access to needed materials and
resources.

Business-type activities consists of the Water, Sewer, and Sanitation Fund, Airport Fund, and Gas Fund and earned
total revenues and capital contributions of $8,057,987 while accumulating total expenses of $7,847,719, producing
an increase of $210,268.

Total liabilities for the City as a whole equaled $7,437,976 at fiscal year-end compared to $6,796,313 in the prior
year. Long term liabilities totaled $4,718,890 for the current year compared to $4,852,532 in the prior year. The
decrease in liabilities is due to the decrease in bonds payable. The City continues to make their debt payments in
full and in a timely manner. Landfill closure costs liability, and new capital lease obligations all continue to increase
in order to stay in line with requirements. Our goal is to manage our long-term liabilities in order to better respond
to changes in service priorities, revenue inflows, and cost structures.

As of September 30, 2022, governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $4,309,560, an increase
of $587,929. Of the current combined fund balance, $2,220,151 is unassigned and available for the purpose of the
general fund.
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Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City's
finances in a manner that resemble those of private-sector business. All governmental and business-type activities
are consolidated into columns which add to a total for the City of Alpine.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City's assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference being reported as net position. Over time,
increases and decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City
is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities is focused on both the gross and net cost of various functions (including governmental
and business-type) supported by the government's general tax and other revenues. This is intended to summarize
and simplify the user's analysis of the costs of various governmental services and/or subsidies to various business-
type activities.

Governmental activitiesoftheCity include general government, publicsafety, public works, health and welfare, culture
and recreation and interest on debt. Business-type activities reflect private sector type operations (where user charges
or fees for services typically cover all or most of the cost of operations, including depreciation). There are several
business type activities of the City which include the airport and utility services for water, sewer, sanitation, and gas.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a set of self-balancing accounts that are used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Alpine uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three
categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the functions reported as governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental
fund financial statements focus on how cash and other financial assets can readily be converted into available
resources, as well as on the balances at the end of the fiscal year that are available for spending. Such information
may be useful in determining what financial resources are available in the near future to finance the City's
operations.

The focus of govemmental fund financial statements is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements;
therefore, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented
for the governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Because governmental fund financial
statements do not encompass the additional long-term focus of the government- wide financial statement, additional
information is provided that explains the relationship between them.

Both, the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet and the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances provide a reconciliation between governmental funds and governmental activities, The
reconciliation will help readers better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing
decisions.
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The City maintains three governmental fund types for financial reporting purposes which are the general fund, the debt
service fund, and the special revenue funds. The Non-major Governmental Funds or Other Funds consist of the
Community Development Fund, Municipal Court Tech Fund, PD-FED Equity Share Fund, PD Abandon Vehicle Fund,
Municipal Court Security Fund, Pueblo Nuevo Park, Local Border Security Program, Homeland Security Grant,
HIDTA Grant, Public Safety Office Justice Assistance, TX Office of Governor Homeland, and Debt Service Fund.
Individual fund data for the non-major governmental funds is provided in the combining financial statements and
schedules that follow the basic financial statements in this report.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds are generally used to account for services for which the City charges customers- either outside
customers or internal departments of the City. Proprietary funds provide a more detailed report of the same type
of information as shown in the government-wide financial statements. The City maintains two types of proprietary
funds:

0 Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-
wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its Water, Sewer, Sanitation, Airport,
and Gas operations.

0 Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City's
various functions. The City uses itsinternal service funds toaccount for its employee health and welfare benefits.
As these internal services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have
beenincluded within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Fiduciary Funds

Custodial funds are a type of Fiduciary Fund used to report fiduciary activities that are not required to be reported in
pension and other post-employment benefits trust funds, investment trust funds, or private trust funds. The City’s
custodial fund currently consists of funds that are collected on behalf of the State of Texas and cannot be used in the
City’s operations.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The Notes are an integral part of the financial statements and provide additional information that is essential to a
full understanding and fair presentation of the data provided in both the government-wide and fund financial
statements. The notes immediately follow the financial statements.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required
supplementary information of the City. Budgetary comparison schedules have been provided which demonstrate
budgetary compliance. Information pertaining to the retirement benefits offered by the City through Texas
Municipal Retirement System and Texas Emergency Services Retirement System are also included. In addition,
GASB 75 requirements have been addressed and Other Post- Employment Benefits (OPER) schedules are also
included. For fiscal year 2021-2022 the City of Alpine implemented GASB 87, which requires recognition of certain
lease assets and liabilities for leases that were previously classified as operating leases. This GASB addresses both the
City’s lessee and lessor positions in the financial statements.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Comparative information for the current and preceding year is presented below:

Statement of Net Position

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Other Assets $8,314,370 | $6,560,976 $5,524,313 $4,834,717 $13,838,683 | $11,395,693
Capital Assets $10,330,472 | $9,992,678 $20,307,548 | $20,328,015 | $30,638,020 | $30,320,693
Total Assets $18,644,842 | $16,553,654 | $25,831,861 | $25,162,732 | $44,476,703 | $41,716,386
Deferred
Outflows of
resources $117,839 $100,490 $45,220 $59,263 $163,059 $159,753
Total assets and
deferred
outflows $18,762,681 | $16,654,144 | $25,877,081 | $25,221,995 | $44,639,762 | $41,876,139
Other Liabilities | $1,780,998 | $1,035,074 $938,088 $908,707 $2,719,086 $1,943,781
Long-Term
Liabilities $954,041 $1,086,305 $3,764,849 $3,766,227 $4,718,890 $4,852,532
Total Liabilities | $2,735,039 | $2,121,379 $4,702,937 $4,674.934 $7,437.976 $6,796,313
Deferred Inflows | $475,884 $239,059 $579,454 $162,639 $1,055,338 $401,698
Total Liabilities
and deferred
inflows $3,210,923 | $2,360,438 35,282,391 $4,837,573 $8,493,314 $7,198,011
Net investment
in capital assets | $9,547,359 | $9,047,203 $16,764,223 | $16,630,136 | $26,311,582 | $25,677,339
restricted $1,310,396 | $1,391,327 $80,429 $79,854 $1,390,825 $1,471,181
unrestricted $4,694,003 | $3.855,176 $3,750,038 $3,674,432 $8,444.,041 $7,529,608
Total Net
Position $15,551,758 | $14,293,706 | $20,594,690 | $20,348,422 | $36,146,448 | $34,678,128

Analysis of the City's Net Position

The net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. For fiscal year 2022,
the City's assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by
$36,146,448.

The largest portion of the City's net position, $26,311,582, reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g. land,
buildings, equipment, improvements, right-to-use lease assets, construction in progress and infrastructure). The
City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future
spending. Although the City's investment in its capital assets isreported net of related debt, it should be noted that
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the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources because the capital assets themselves
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Aportion of the City's net position, $1,390,825, represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how
they may be used. This restricted net position is held for debt service and amounts restricted by other funding
agencies. Restricted net position decreased $80,356 over the prior fiscal year, due mainly to an increase in the
spending of restricted funds in the Hotel and Motel fund.

There is a remaining unrestricted net position available of $8,444,041 to meet the government’s ongoing
obligations to citizens and creditors at the end of the fiscal year.

Government Net Position at September 30, 2022

$30,000,000
$25,677,339

$25,000,000 $26,311,582

$20,000,000
$15,000,000

$10,000,000 $7,529,608

5,000,000
> $1,471,181
. $1,390,825 $8,444,041
0

Net Investment in captial assests restricted unrestricted

2021 m 2022
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Analysis of the City's Operations

The following table provides a summary of the City’s activities for the years ending September 30, 2022 and
September 30, 2021. Governmental activities increased the City of Alpine’s net position by $1,258,052, business-
type activities increased in position by $210,268 resulting in a total net position increase of $1,468,320.

Statement of Activities
For the Years Ended September 30

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Charges for $1,306,773 $1,291.413 $7,489,370 $7,020,469 $8,796,143 $8,311,832
Services
Operating Grants $477,272 $286,924 $67,010 $7,661 $544,282 $294,585
and
Contnibutions
Capital Grants $0 $0 $224,927 $100,392 $224,927 $100,392
and
Contributions
Total Program $1,784,045 $1,578,337 $7,781,307 $7,128,522 $9,565,352 $8,706,859
Revenues
Ad Valorem $1,968,371 £1,985,724 $0 $0 $1,968,371 51,985,724
Taxes
Sales Tax $2,278,723 $1,876,666 50 $0 $2,278,723 $1,876,666
Gross Receipts $743,428 $735,433 $0 50 $743,428 $735,433
Business Tax
Franchise Tax $86,536 $86,742 $0 50 $86,536 $86,742
Other Taxes $26,983 $15,181 $0 $0 $26,983 $15,181
Penalty and $41,546 $35,628 $0 $0 $41,546 $35,628
Interest
Miscellaneous $67,050 $18,354 $230,589 $196,247 $297,639 $214,601
Revenue
Investment $32,497 $1,889 $46,091 $2,638 $78,588 $4,527
Earnings
Gain on Sales of $31,418 ] $0 50 $31,418 $0
Assets
General $5,276,552 $4,755,617 $276,680 $198,885 $5,553,232 $4,954,502
Revenues
Total Revenues $7,060,597 $6,333,954 $8,057,987 $7,327,407 $15,118,584 $£13,661,361

11
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Governmental Business-Type Total Total

Activities Activities

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
General $1,283,894 $1,474,405 $0 $0 $1,283.894 $1,474,405
Government
Public Safety $1,691,740 $1,742,685 $0 50 $1,691,740 $1,742,685
Public Works $1,342,759 $1,084,887 $0 50 $1,342,759 $1,084,887
Health & $336,687 $337,672 $0 $0 $336,687 $337,672
Welfare
Culture & $1,107,030 $895,275 $0 $0 $1,107,030 $895,275
Recreation
Bond Interest $40,435 $59,863 $0 $0 $40,435 $59,863
Water, Sewer, $0 $0 $4,887,030 $4,886,079 $4,887,030 $4,886,079
Sanitation
Airport $0 $0 $1,053,785 $866,257 $1,053,785 $866,257
Gas $0 $0 $1,906,904 $1,647,119 $1,906,904 $1,647,119
Total Expenses $5,802,545 $5,594,787 $7,847,719 $7,399,455 $13,650,264 $12,994,242
Change in Net $1,258,052 $739,167 $210,268 ($72,048) $1,468,320 $667,119
Position
Net Position - $14,293,706 $13,554,539 $20,384,422 $20,456,470 $34,678,128 $34,011,010
Beginning
Net Position - $15,551,758 $14,293,706 $20,594,690 $20,384,422 $36,146,448 534,678,128
Ending
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The following chart (in thousands) shows the change in governmental activities' revenues from the previous
year.

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES CHANGES IN
REVENUES FROM PRIOR YEAR
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Revenues for governmental activities totaled $7,060,597, an increase of $726,643 or 11.4% from 2021.
Sales Tax collections make up the largest portion of the increase.
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The total taxable valuation increased from the prior year. The City adopted a no-new-revenue (effective tax) rate
of $0.508345. Ad valorem property tax revenues increased slightly more than 1%. The increase is contributed to
the addition of new taxable property. Salestaxesincreased by $402,057 or21%. Hotel Occupancy taxes increased
by $7,995 (1%), while franchise fees remained fairly consistent at $86,536, a slight decrease of $206 from the
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The following chart (in thousands) shows changes in governmental activities' expenses from 2022,

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES CHANGE IN EXPENDITURES
FROM PRIOR YEAR

$300 s258
$250 5212

5200
$150
$100

$50

4(s0} General Government Public. Safery Public Works Heaith and Welfare Culture and Recreation Bond Interest
${19}

${100} 5(51} $(1)

$[150}

$(200}

5(250}

5(191)

General Government includes Administration, City Council, Municipal Court, Finance, Building Services, and Human
Resources. During FY 2021-2022 the category decreased due to changes in personnel. Culture and Recreation continues
to increase as the Federal and State agencies remove Pandemic regulations and re-opened the economy allowing traveling
and increased participation in events throughout the Country and State. City facilities, such as the pool, civic center, and
pavilion continued to be utilized by residents and events. Changes in staffing within Public Safety (police department,
dispatch, fire, and building services) reduced overall expenses. Outsourced paving increased the overall all expenses
within Public Works.

Program Revenues and Expenses - Business-type Activities

Charges for services increased $468,901 to $7,489,370. Operating expenses increased $448,264 to $7,847,719,
which includes depreciationexpense of $877,027. No significant changes were made to the Water and wastewater
rates. Council reviews the annual rates set for each of the utilities — water, wastewater, sanitation, and garbage.
However, water consumption did increase. Gas rates are adjusted based on City Council approved contract with
outside vendor and fluctuates contract to contract. The increase in operating expenses is primarily due to increased
infrastructure repairs.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE FUND LEVEL STATEMENTS

Governmental Funds

The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near term inflows, and balances of spendable
resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's financing requirements. In particular, unrestricted fund
balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal
year.

The cost of general fund programs and services was $5,028,576, a decrease 0f$150,196 from 2021.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City's govemmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of
$4,309,560. General fund revenues totaled $5,611,220 for the fiscal year, while expenditures were $5,028,576. The
hotel/motel tax fund and other funds reported $1,411,444 in hotel occupancy tax and state/federal contract revenue while
expenditures were recorded as $1,515,584 for special programs and administration. To summarize, the City's total fund
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balance increased by $587,929.

Proprietary Funds

The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government wide financial statements for
Business Type Activities, but in more detail. An analysis of the major proprietary funds are as follows:

Regarding the September 30, 2022 balance sheet for proprietary funds, Water, Sewer, Sanitation, Gas, and Airport posted
total net position of $20,594,690, which is an increase of 1% from the previous year figure of $20,384,422 mainly due
to capital contributions. Regarding the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund balance, total enterprise
funds operating revenues were $7,719,959 while operating expenses were $7,814,150, producing an operating decrease
of $94,191.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. During the 2022 fiscal year, the City adopted and amended
general fund revenues of $5,131,362. The actual revenues for the fiscal year were $5,611,220, providing a $479,858
favorable budget variance.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2022, the City anticipated that general fund expenditures would exceed revenues.
Initial adopted and amended budgeted expenditures totaled $6,350,060 and $6,348,220, respectively. Actual
expenditures were $5,028,576, resulting in a positive variance of $1,319,644 budget variance and an excess of revenues
under expenditures of 582,644,

CAPITAL ASSETS

The City's investment in capital assets includes land, buildings & improvements, machinery & equipment, vehicles,
infrastructure, and right-to-use leases. The carrying value of the governmental capital assets equaled $10,330,472 (net
of accumulated depreciation) at fiscal year-end, an increase of $348,516 from the previous year’s total of $9,992,678.

Water and Sewer capital assets equaled $13,494,994 (net of accumulated depreciation) at fiscal year-end, a decrease of
$40,170 from the previous year’s total of $13,535,164.

Airport capital assets equaled $5,209,705 (net of accumulated depreciation) at fiscal year-end, an increase of $84,072
from previous year total of $5,125,633.

Gas capital assets equaled $1,602,849 (net of accumulated depreciation) at fiscal year-end, a decrease $64,369 from
previous year’s total of $1,667,218.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

At the end of the current year, the City had total principal bond debt outstanding of $2,918,000 which consists of debt
obligations in the form of CO Series 2005 — obtained March 2005, CO Series 2011 — obtained April 2011, and GO
Refunding Series 2011 — obtained March 2011, for expenses related to and capital improvement projects including
building renovations, new animal shelter, street improvements, water and sewer utility system improvements, and lease
obligations. The debt also consists of prior debt consolidation. The City’s three tax-backed debt issues are not rated. In
addition to the bonds, the City also has loans for fleet vehicles used to assist in the growing need to replace a number of
older and unreliable vehicles.
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CURRENTLY KNOWN FACTS, DECISIONS, OR CONDITIONS

In fiscal year 2021-2022, the City continued to have one of the lowest tax rates for a city its size in Texas. The City’s tax
rate was $0.508345 for fiscal year 2021-2022. The City continues to establish reserve accounts and designate funds
accordingly to plan for future projects. In fiscal year 2021 - 2022 the City made all required debt payments and continued
to address reserves for future projects and infrastructure needs. The 2012 Tax and Revenue Certificate of Obligation
Series and Fire Department Pumper Truck Lease were both paid off during the fiscal year ending September 30, 2022.

The City continued to improve City assets by managing and repairing infrastructure. The Gas Utility Department
consistently meets required infrastructure replacement set by the Railroad Commission and PHMSA. The department
continues to replace steel pipe with poly and replaced an additional 3,673 feet of infrastructure in Alpine and Fort Davis
combined. In addition, the department removed and replaced 37 risers in Alpine and 7 risers in Fort Davis. The Gas
Utility Department is also diligent in maintaining and improving safety features of the infrastructure.

During the fiscal year 2021-2022, the Water and Waste Water Departments focused on continued maintenance of an
aging infrastructure, Wastewater Treatment Plant improvements, staffing and training. City Council continued to address
financial concerns by committing funds to assist with the improvements of the department’s infrastructure. The work
on engineering the parts for the wastewater treatment plant are being addressed as well as wastewater infrastructure
issues. Improvements were initiated at the Wastewater Treatment Plant with the replacement of the bar screen to an
automated bar screen and preparations for new aerators. Inventory for the departments was addressed in order to meet
the demands of ongoing maintenance.

The airport completed the design phase of the runway light replacement project and received final approval from TXDOT
Aviation to move forward with the construction phase. Alpine Casparis Municipal Airport has one of the oldest lighting
systems in Texas. The seal coat project for Runway 1/19 was completed. The City continues to utilize grant funding to
improve assets at the airport.

The City council and administration monitor the national economy, federal and state legislature and its effects on the
local economy and the city's budget. The Coronavirus Pandemic continues to be a concern for the community with both
health, wellness and longer-term impacts on our economy.

The City Council has been proactively working to meet the basic quality of life needs of the citizens of Alpine. The City
obtained a grant for improvements to Pueblo Nuevo Park through the Texas Parks and Wildlife and dedicated funds to
projects benefiting the community. The current direction continues to focus on maintaining and improving an aging
utility infrastructure, street improvements, and economic development.

City Council and the administration of the City work with other entities such as Brewster County and other state or
federal agencies to reduce the future financial burden on Alpine residents in the pursuance of providing efficient services
and improvements to the community. The City and Brewster County have worked on agreements to cover expenses for
sanitation (recycling) and fire calls. Local law enforcement worked with state and federal agencies to obtain grants for
safety equipment and enhanced border protection. The City received the second of two traunches from the American
Rescue Plan Act, and plan to allocate these funds to improvements at the wastewater treatment plant.
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CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors with a general
overview of the City’s finances and to show the City’s accountability for the funds it receives. Questions concerning any
of the information provided in the report or requests for additional information should be addressed to the City Secretary,
100 N. 13® St., Alpine, Texas 79830.
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CITY OF ALPINE TEXAS EXHIBIT A-! {Cont'd)

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMEER 34, 2022
Primary Government
Data BT e i
Business -
Control Governmental Type
Codes Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
1010 Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 5,214,751 8 4,063,047 b 9,277,798
1050  Taxes Receivable, Net 215,981 - 215,981
1150 Accounts Receivable (Net) 198,612 503,587 702,199
1260 Due from Other Governments 227,838 59,268 287,106
1290 QOther Receivables 2,508 53,328 55,836
130¢  Due from Other Funds 817,757 (836,136) (18,379)
1410 Inventories - 312,109 312,109
1430 Prepaid Items 12,088 95,000 107,088
1611 Restricted Cash - 80,429 80,429
Capital Assets:
1710 Land 806,665 336,981 1,143,646
1760 Capital Assets, Net 9,387,376 19,402,859 28,790,235
1770 Right to Use Lease Assets, Net 67,993 27,145 95,138
1780  Construction in Progress 68,438 540,563 609,001
1800 Net Pension Asset-TMRS 1,578,796 214,504 2,493,300
1990  Noncurrent Lease Receivable 46,039 279,177 325,216
1000 Total Assets 18,644,842 25,831,861 44,476,703
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
1997 Deferred Outflow Related to TMRS 77,616 31,843 109,459
1998 Deferred Resource Outflow TESRS 14,523 5 14,523
1999  Deferred Resource Outflow QPEB 25,700 13,377 39,077
1500 Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 117,839 45220 163,059
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CITY OF ALPINE TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 39, 2022
Data
Control Governmental
Codes Activities
LIABILITIES
2010 Accounts Payable 150,708
2020 Wages and Salaries Payable 64,261
2030 Compensated Absences Payable 67,386
2140 Accrued Interest Payable 2,283
2230 Unearned Revenues 1,488,535
2270 Other Current Liabilities 7,825
Noncurrent Liabilities:
2501  Debt Due Within One Year 222,072
2502  Long Term Debt - Noncurrent 561,041
2570 Landfill Closure Costs -
2580  Net Pension Liability-TESRS 35,696
2590  Total OPEB Liability 135,232
2000 Total Liabilities 2,735,039
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
2602 Deferred Inflow Related to TMRS 412,130
2603 Deferred Resource Inflow TESRS 2,192
2604 Deferred Resource Inflow OPEB 14,447
2605 Deferred Inflows Related to Leases 47,115
2500 Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 475,884
NET POSITION
3200 Net Investment in Capital Assets 9,547,359
Restricted for:
3810  Restricted for Federal and State Grants 77,967
3820  Restricted for Landfill Closure Costs -
3860  Restricted for Debt Service 111,704
3890  Restricted for Other Purposes 1,120,725
3900 Unrestricted Net Position 4,694,003

3000 Total Net Position

15,551,758

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Primary Government

Business -

Type

Activities

245,889
37,800
45,065

1,374

114,855

493,105

323,101
2,269,223
1,094,194

78,331
4,702,937

296,455

6,290
276,709
579,454

16,764,223

80,429

3,750,038
20,594,690

EXHIBIT A-1

Total

396,597
102,061
112,451
3,657
1,603,390
500,930

545,173
2,830,264
1,094,194

35,696

213,563

7,437,976

708,585
2,192
20,737
323,824

1,055,338

26,311,582

77,967
80,429
111,704
1,120,725
8,444,041

3 36,146,448



CITY OF ALPINE TEXAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

Program Revenues
Data Operati p—
ting apil
Controt Charges for Grants and Grants and
Codes Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Primary Government:
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES:
100 General Government $ 1,283,894 § 1,082,549 § - 8 -
200 Public Safety 1,691,740 109,746 457434 -
300 Public Works 1,342,759 50,248 & "
400 Health and Welfare 336,687 42,549 - -
500 Culture and Recreation 1,107,030 21,681 19,838 -
720 Interest on Debt 40,435 S = .
Total Governmental Activities 5,802,545 1,306,773 477,272 S
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES:
701 Water, Sewer, Sanitation Fund 4,887,030 4,798,759 1,739 S
702 Airport Fund 1,053,785 907,204 59,271 224,927
703 Gas Fund 1,906,904 1,783,407 - =
Total Business-Type Activities 7,847,719 7,489,370 67,010 224,927
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT $ 13,650,264 % 8,796,143 § 544,282 § 224,927
Data
Control  Oeneral Revenues:
22 Taxes:
010 Property Taxes, Levied for General Purposes
01l Property Taxes, Levied for Debt Service
120 General Sales and Use Taxes
150 Gross Receipts Business Tax
170 Franchise Tax
180 Other Taxes
196 Penalty and Interest on Taxes
700 Miscellaneous Revenue
800 Investment Eamings
51 Gain on Sale of Assets

Total General Revenues and Special Items

Change in Net Position
Net Position - Beginning

Net Position - Ending

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT B-1

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position
Primary Government
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
$ (201,345) § - 5 (201,345)
(1,124,560) = (1,124,560)
(1,292,511) - (1,292,511)
{294,138) - (294,138)
(1,065,511) = (1,065,511)
(40,435) N (40,435)
(4,018,500) - (4,018,500)
& (80,532) (80,532)
s 137,617 137,617
3 (123,497} (123,497)
- (66,412) (66,412)
(4,018,500) (66,412) {4,084,912)
1,814,340 N 1,814,340
154,031 - 154,031
2,278,723 - 2,278,723
743,428 = 743,428
86,536 . 86,536
26,983 = 26,983
41,546 s 41,546
67,050 230,589 297,639
32,497 46,091 78,588
31,418 - 31,418
5,276,552 276,680 5,553,232
1,258,052 210,268 1,468,320
14,293,706 20,384,422 34,678,128

§ 15551,758 8 20,594,690 $ 36,146,448
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EXHIBIT C-1

CITY OF ALPINE TEXAS
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

Data Total
Control General Hotel and Other Governmental
Codes Fund Motel Fund Funds Funds

ASSETS
1010 Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 3,553415 § 1,040,666 % 198,931 § 4,793,012
1050  Taxes Receivable 158,166 103,842 14,089 276,097
1051 Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes (credit) (55,358} - (4,758) {60,116)
1150 Accounts Receivable (Net) 198,612 S - 198,612
1260 Due from Other Governments 28,355 - 199,483 227,838
1280 Other Receivables 48,547 - - 48,547
1300 Due from Other Funds 1,036,746 19,311 93,767 1,149,824
1430 Prepaid Items 12,088 - - 12,088
1000 Total Assets $ 4980,571 § 1,163,819 % 501,512 $§ 6,645,902

LIABILITIES
2010 Accounts Payable $ 75,129 § 70,824 § 4702 § 150,655
2020  Wages and Salaries Payable 62,256 2,005 S 64,261
2080  Due to Other Funds 269,907 - 200,610 470,517
2230 Unearned Revenues 1,488,535 S - 1,488,535
2270 QOther Current Liabilities 7,825 - - 7.825
2000 Total Liabilities 1,903,652 72,829 205,312 2,181,793

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
2601  Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes 98,928 - 8,506 107,434
2605 Deferred Inflows Related to Leases 47,115 - - 47,115
2600 Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 146,043 - 8,506 154,549

FUND BALANCES

Restricted Fund Balance:
3450 Federal or State Funds Grant Restriction - - 77,967 77,967
3480  Retirement of Long-Term Debt - - 104,966 104,966
3490  Other Restricted Fund Balance . 1,090,990 29,735 1,120,725
Committed Fund Balance:

3545  Other Committed Fund Balance 710,825 s 75,026 785,851
3600 Unassigned Fund Balance 2,220,051 = = 2,220,051
3000 Total Fund Balances 2,930,876 1,090,990 287,694 4,309,560

4000 Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows & Fund Balances § 4,980,571 $ 1,163,819 § 501,512 3 6,645,902

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT C-2
CITY OF ALPINE TEXAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ 4,309,560

The City uses an internal service fund to charge the costs of certain heaith insurance 560.136
activities to appropriate functions in other governmental funds. The assets and ’
liabilities of the internal service fund are included in governmental activities in the

statement of net assets. The net effect of this consolidation is to increase net

position.

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and 8.980.617
therefore are not reported in governmental funds. In addition, long-term liabilities, R
including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period, and,

therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds. The net effect of including the

beginning balances for capital assets (net of depreciation and amortization) and long-

term debt in the governmental activities is to increase net position.

Current year capital outlays and long-term debt principal payments are expenditures 1.345.685
in the fund financial statements, but they should be shown as increases in capital T
assets and reductions in long-term debt in the government-wide financial statements.

The net effect of including the 2022 capital outlays and debt principal payments is to

increase net position.

Included in the items related to debt is the recognition of the City's net pension asset 1.244.282
and other components for TMRS required by GASB 68. The net position related to T
TMRS includes a deferred resource outflow in the amount of $77,616, a deferred

resource inflow in the amount of ($412,130), and a net pension asset in the amount

of $1,578,796. The recognition of the various components related to the net pension

asset resulted in an increase in net position of $1,244,282.

Included in the items related to debt is the recognition of the City's net pension (23,365)
liability and other components for TESRS required by GASB 68. The net position ’
related to TESRS includes a deferred resource outflow in the amount of $14,523, a

deferred resource inflow in the amount of ($2,192), and a net pension liability in the

amount of ($35,696). The recognition of the various components related to the net

pension liability resulted in an decrease in net position of ($23,365).

Included in the items related to debt is the recognition of the City's total OPEB (123,979)
liability and other components required by GASB 75. The net position related to

OPEB includes a deferred resource outflow in the amount of $25,700, a deferred

resource inflow in the amount of ($14,447), and a total OPEB liability in the amount

of ($135,232). The recognition of the various components related to the OPEB

liability resulted in an decrease in net position of ($123,979).

The 2022 depreciation and amortization expense increases accumulated depreciation (848,612)
and accumulated amortization. The net effect of the current year's depreciation and
amortization is to decrease net position.

Various other reclassifications and eliminations are necessary to convert from the 107.434

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT C-2
CITY OF ALPINE TEXAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

modified accrual basis of accounting to accrual basis of accounting. These include
recognizing deferred revenue as revenue, eliminating interfund transactions,
reclassifying the proceeds from the issuance of debt as an increase in long term debt
payable, and recognizing the liabilities associated with maturing long-term debt and
interest. The net effect of these reclassifications and recognitions is to increase net
position.

Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 15,551,758

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT C-3

CITY OF ALPINE TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022
Data Total
Control General Hotel and Othet Governmental
Codes Fund Motel Fund Funds Funds
REVENUES:

Taxes:
5110 Property Taxes $ 1,808924 % - % 154,031 § 1,962,955
5120 General Sales and Use Taxes 2,278,723 - - 2,278,723
3150 Gross Receipts Business Tax - 743,428 - 743,428
5170 Franchise Tax 86,536 - - 86,536
5180 Qther Taxes 26,983 e 5 26,983
5190 Penalty and Interest on Taxes 37,290 - 4,256 41,546
5200 Licenses and Permits 105,323 - - 105,323
5300  Intergovernmental Revenue and Grants 1,368 1,645 456,065 459,078
5400 Charges for Services 1,053,251 - 10,474 1,063,725
5510 Fines 71,241 - - 71,241
5610 Investment Earnings 22,909 8,645 943 32,497
5620 Rents and Royalties 6,665 - - 6,665
5640 Contributions & Donations from Private Sources - 18,194 - 18,194
5700 QOther Revenue 112,007 7,500 6,263 125,770
5020 Total Revenues 5,611,220 779,412 632,032 7,022,664

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
0100  General Govemment 1,406,197 S 2,609 1,408,806
0200  Public Safety 1,397,930 - 479,046 1,876,976
0300  Public Works 1,419,573 - - 1,419,573
0400  Health and Welfare 305,936 - - 305,936
0500  Culture and Recreation 361,183 883,347 S 1,244,530

Debt Service:
0710 Principal on Debt 117,050 1,426 123,600 242,076
0720  [Interest on Debt 20,707 358 25,158 46,263
6030 Total Expenditures 5,028,576 885,171 630,413 6,544,160
1100 Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) 582,644 (105,759) 1,619 478,504

Expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

7912 Sale of Real and Personal Property 23,260 - 22,250 45,510
7913 Right to Use Leases 63,915 5 - 63,915
7915 Transfers In - - 75,000 75,000
8911 Transfers Out (Use) (75,000) e S (75,000)
7080 Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 12,175 e 97,250 109,425
1200 Net Change in Fund Balances 594 819 (105,759) 98,869 587,929
0100 Fund Balance - October 1 (Beginning) 2,336,057 1,196,749 188,825 3,721,631
3000 Fund Balance - September 30 (Ending) $ 2930876 $ 1,090990 § 287694 § 4,309,560

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT C4
CITY OF ALPINE TEXAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ 587.929

The City uses an internal service fund to charge the costs of certain health insurance (21,778)
activities primarily to the governmental funds. The net loss of this internal service fund ’

is reported with governmental activities. The net effect of this consolidation is to

(decrease) the change in net position.

Current year capital outlays and long-term debt principal payments are expenditures in 1,353,796
the fund financial statements, but they should be shown as increases in capital assets ’
and reductions in long-term debt in the government-wide financial statements. The net

effect of removing the 2022 capital outlays and debt principal payments is to increase

the change in net position.

GASB 68 required that certain expenditures related to the TMRS pension be de- 187.334
expended and recorded as a deferred outflow of resources. The current fiscal year ’
contributions made after the measurement date of the plan caused the change in ending

net position to increase in the amount of $33,762. Contributions made during the

measurement year and during the fiscal year were also de-expended and recorded as an

addition to the net pension asset for the City. This caused an increase in the net

position totaling $10,981. Finally, the City's pension expense for the plan had to be

recorded. The net pension expense allocation increased the change in net position by

$142,591. The net result is to increase the change in net pension by $187,334.

GASB 68 required that certain expenditures related to TESRS be de-expended and 1,500
recorded as deferred outflow of resources. There were no current fiscal year

contributions made after the measurement date of August 31, 2022. Therefore there is

no effect on net position for the current fiscal year. Contributions made during the

measurement year and during the current fiscal year were also de-expended and

recorded as a reduction in net pension liability for the City. This caused an increase in

the change in net position totaling $4,248. The City's pension expense for the plan had

to be recorded. The net pension expense decreased the change in net position by

(32,748). The net result of this activity is to increase the change in net position by

$1,500.

GASB 75 required that certain plan expenditures be de-expended and recorded as a (7,533)
deferred outflow of resources. These contributions made after the measurement date of

the plan caused the change in ending net position to increase in the amount of $1,929.

Contributions made during the measurement year and during the fiscal year were also

de-expended and recorded as a reduction in the total OPEB liability. This caused an

increase in the net position totaling $2,132. Finally, the City's OPEB expense for the

plan had to be recorded. This expense decreased the change in net position by

{$11,594). The net result is to decrease the change in net position by ($7,533).

Depreciation and amortization are not recognized as an expense in governmental funds (848,612)
since it does not require the use of current financial resources. The net effect of the
current year's depreciation and amortization are to decrease the change in net position.

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT C4
CITY OF ALPINE TEXAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

Various other reclassifications and eliminations are necessary to convert from the 5.416
modified accrual basis of accounting to accrual basis of accounting. These include ’
recognizing deferred revenue as revenue, adjusting current year revenue to show the

revenue eamed from the current year's tax levy, eliminating interfund transactions,

reclassifying the proceeds of the issuance of debt, and recognizing the liabilities

associated with maturing long-term debt and interest. The net effect of these

reclassifications and recognitions is to increase the change in net position.

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 1,258,052

The notes to the financial staterents are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF ALPINE TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Restricted Assets - Current:
Restricted Cash

Accounts Receivable (Net)

Due from Other Governments

Other Receivables

Due from Other Funds

Inventories

Prepaid Items

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:

Capital Assets:
Land
Capital Assets
Accumulated Depreciation - Capital Assets
Right to Use Lease Assets
Accumulated Amortization-Right to Use Lease Assets
Construction in Progress

Net Pension Asset-TMRS

Long Term Lease Receivable

Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Outflow Related to TMRS
Deferred Resource Outflow OPEB

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Water, Sewer,

$

Sanitation
Fund

2,469,842 §

80,429
395,784

48,205

117,292

3,111,552

192,397
25,095,645
{12,249,347)
20,669

(4,068)
439,698
514,098

14,009,092

17,120,644

10,993
7,520

18,513

Business-Type Activities

Airport
Fund

185,070

27,217
59,268
5,123

49,683
95,000
421,361

99,584
7,030,511
(1,998,590)

78,200
71,278
279,177

5,560,160

5,981,521

9,521
1,131

10,652



EXHIBIT D-1 (Cont'd)

- Enterprise Funds Gﬂ}m"ﬂ
Total
Gas Enterprise Internal
Fund Funds Service Fund

5 1,408,135 § 4,063,047 § 421,739

. 80,429 -

80,586 503,587 :

- 59,268 -

- 53,328 -

- - 138,450

145,134 312,109 -

- 95,000 -
1,633,855 5,166,768 560,189
45,000 336,981 E
2,361,580 34,487,736 =
(836,940) (15,084,877 =
16,368 37,537 :
(6,324) (10,392) =
22,665 540,563 "
329,128 914,504 .

- 279,177 "
1,931,977 21,501,229 -
3,565,832 26,667,997 560,189
11,329 31,843 .
4,726 13,377 -
16,055 45,220 =
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CITY OF ALPINE TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022
Buginess-Type Activitics
Water, Sewer,
Sanitation Airport
Fund Fund
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 209,698 1,233
Wages and Salaries Payable 18,020 3,483
Compensated Absences Payable 19,483 5,294
Due to Other Funds 224,578 131,541
Accrued Interest Payable 1,374 -
Unearned Revenues 78,816 5
Loans Payable - Current 12,416 5
Bonds Payable - Current 228,600 -
Right to Use Lease Liabilities - Current 3,755 -
Other Current Liabilities 295,496 S
Other Long Term Debt - Current - -
Total Current Liabilities 1,092,236 141,551
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Bonds Payable - Noncurrent 2,113,400 -
Loans Payable - Noncurrent 23,862 -
Right to Use Lease Liabilities - Noncurrent 13,416 -
Other Long Term Debt - Noncurrent - -
Landfill Closure Costs 1,094,194 S
Total OPEB Liability 44,035 6,104
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 3,288,907 6,104
Total Liabilities 4,381,143 147,655
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflow Related to TMRS 163,153 23,765
Deferred Resource Inflow OPEB 3,311 557
Deferred Inflows Related to Leases - 276,709
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 166,464 301,031
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 10,005,351 5,209,705
Restricted for Landfill Closure Costs 80,429 -
Unrestricted Net Position 2,505,770 333,782
Total Net Position $ 12,591,550 $ 5,543,487

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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- Enterprise Funds “m;"
Total
Gas Enterprise Internal

Fund Funds Service Fund
34,958 245,889 5
16,297 37,800 -
20,288 45,065 -
480,017 836,136 -
- 1,374 -
36,039 114,855 -
25,456 37,872 -
- 228,600 E
5,143 8,808 =
197,609 493,105 -
47,731 47,731 -
863,538 2,097,325 53
- 2,113,400 -
17,318 41,180 -
5,765 19,181 -
95,462 95,462 .
- 1,094,194 .
28,192 78,331 -
146,737 3,441,748 -
1,010,275 5,539,073 53
109,537 296,455 -
2422 6,290 -
- 276,709 x
111,959 579,454 -
1,549,167 16,764,223 -
- 80,429 -
910,486 3,750,038 560,136
b3 2,459,653 § 20,594,690 § 560,136
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CITY OF ALPINETEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES INFUNDNET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2022

Business-Type Activities

Water, Sewer,
Sanitation Airport
Fund Fund
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for Services $ 4798759 § 907,204
Rents and Royalties 165,724 14,341
Other Revenue 40,397 -
Total Operating Revenues 5,004,880 921,545
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Proprietary Fund Function - Water
Personnel Services - Salaries and Wages 386,899 -
Personnel Services - Employee Benefits 76,408 -
Purchased Professional & Technical Services 57,199 -
Purchased Property Services 268,058 -
Other Operating Costs 200,092 -
Supplies 75,118 -
Total Proprietary Fund Function - Water 1,063,774 -
Proprietary Fund Function - Gas
Personnel Services - Salaries and Wages - -
Personnel Services - Employee Benefits - -
Purchased Professional & Technical Services - -
Purchased Property Services - -
Other Operating Costs - -
Supplies - -
Total Proprietary Fund Function - Gas - -
Proprietary Fund Function - Sanitation
Personnel Services - Salaries and Wages 72,770 -
Personnel Services - Employee Benefits 16,378 -
Purchased Property Services 1,728,659 -
Other Operating Costs 466,248 -
Supplies 2,200 -
Total Proprietary Fund Function - Sanitation 2,286,255 -
Proprietary Fund Function - Sewerage
Personnel Services - Salaries and Wages 195,975 -
Personnel Services - Employee Benefits 43,509 -
Purchased Professional & Technical Services 40,360 -
Purchased Property Services 126,230 -
Other Operating Costs 131,342 -
Supplies 41,166 -
Total Proprietary Fund Function - Sewerage 578,582 -
Proprietary Fund Function - Airport
Personnel Services - Salaries and Wages - 99,073
Personnel Services - Employee Benefits - 16,659
Purchased Property Services - 21,345
Other Operating Costs - 57,200
Supplies - 647,517
Total Proprietary Fund Function - Airport - 841,794

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBITD-2(Contd)

- Enterprise Funds Governmental
—Activities
Total
Gas Enterprise Internal
Fund Funds Service Fund

$  1,783407 § 7489370 § s
7,526 187,591 s
2,601 42,958 8,541

1,793,534 7,719,959 8,541

- 386,899 -
- 76,408 -
- 57,199 -
. 268,058 -
- 200,092 -
- 75,118 -

463,425 463,425 -
88,720 88,720 e
32,108 32,108 -
80,394 80,394 -

339,150 339,150 -

782,568 782,568 -

1,786,365 1,786,365 -

- 72,770 -
- 16,378 -
- 1,728,659 -
- 466,248 -
- 2200 -
C__ameass -

- 195975 -
- 43,509 -
- 40,360 =
- 126,230 -
- 131342 -
- 41,166 -
- 578,582 -

- 99,073 -
- 16,659 -
- 21,345 -
- 57,200 -
- 647,517 -
; L7 -
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CITY OF ALPINETEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, ANDCHANGES INFUNDNET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2022

Business-Type Activities

Water, Sewer,
Sanitation Airport
Fund Fund
Health Insurance
Other Operating Costs - -
Proprietary Fund Function - Nondepartmental
Personnel Services - Salaries and Wages 46,284 -
Personnel Services - Employee Benefits 15,809 -
Purchased Professional & Technical Services 7,673 -
Purchased Property Services 1,377 -
Other Operating Costs 264,999 -
Supplies 38211 -
Total Proprietary Fund Function - Nondepartmental 380,353 -
Depreciation and Amortization 552,214 211,991
Total Operating Expenses 4,861,178 1,053,785
Operating Income (Loss) 143,702 (132,240}
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Grants (Not Capital Grants) 7,739 59,271
Investment Earnings 21,527 13,536
Interest Expense - Non-Operating {25,852) -
Total Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses) 3414 72,807
Income (Loss) Before Contributions 147,116 (59,433)
Capital Contributions - 224927
Change in Net Position 147,116 165494
Total Net Position - October 1 (Beginning) 12,444 434 5,377,993
Total Net Position - September 30 (Ending) $ 12,591,550 §  5,543.487

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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- Enterprise Funds Governmental
et
Total
Gas Enterprise Internal
Fund Funds Service Fund
= - 33424
- 46,284 -
- 15,809 -
- 7,673 -
- 7,377 -
- 264,999 -
- 38211 -
- 380,353 -
112,822 877,027 -
1,899,187 7,814,150 33424
(105,653) (94,191) (24.883)
- 67,010 -
11,028 46,091 3,105
(7,717 (33,569) -
3,311 79,532 3,105
(102,342) (14,659) (21,778)
- 224927 -
(102,342) 210,268 (21,778)
2,561,995 20,384,422 581,914
$ 2459653 % 20,594,690 $ 560,136

EXHIBITD-2



CITY OF ALPINETEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2022

Business-Type  Activities

Water, Sewer,
Sanitation Airport
Fund Fund
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Cash Received from User Charges $ 5,087,093 § 880,484

Cash Received Other Operating - -

Cash Payments to Employees for Services {938,585) (127,348)

Cash Payments for Insurance Claims - -

Cash Payments for Suppliers (2,466,208) (741,092)

Cash Payments for Other Operating Expenses (947,577) (57,200)
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating

Activities 734,723 (45,156)
Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities:

Non Capital Grants 7,739 59,271
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:

Acquisition of Capital Assets (491,375) (71,136)

Principal Paid on Debt (273,585) -

Interest Paid on Debt (26,095) S
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Capital and

Related Financing Activities (791,055) (71,136)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Interest and Dividends on Investments 20,952 13,536
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (27,641) (43,485)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of the Year 2,497,483 228,555

§ 2,469,842 3 185,070

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT D-3{Cont'd}

- Emterprisc Funds Governmental
Activities
Total
Gas Enterprise Internal
Fund Funds Service Fund

¥ 1,838,735 § 7806312 § -

. - 8,541
(587,037)  (1,652,970) -
. - (33,385)
(743,156} (3,950,456) -
(339,150)  (1,343,927) -
169,392 858,959 (24,844)
: 67,010 -
(31,586) (594,097) -
(33,610) (307,195) -
(1,717) (33,812) .
(72,913) (935,104) 5
11,028 45,516 3,105
107,507 36,381 (21,739)
1,300,628 4,026,666 443 478

§ 1,408,135 § 4,063,047 $ 421,739




CITY OF ALPINETEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2022

Business-Type  Activitics

Water, Sewer,
Sanitation Airport
Fund Fund

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided By (Used For) Operating Activities:
Operating Income (Loss) 3 143,702 §  (132,240)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income
To Net Cash Provided by (Used For} Operating Activities:

Depreciation and Amortization 552,214 211,991

Effect of Increases and Decreases in Current
Assets and Liabilities:

Decrease (Increase) in Receivables (4,768) (317,770)
Decrease (Increase) in Inventories (7,673) (16,123)
Decrease (Increase) in Prepaid Expenses - (36,000)
Decrease (Increase) in Net Pension Assets (159,491} (7,995)
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable (68,634) (20,107)
Increase (Decrease) in Payroll Deductions (5,397} (89)
Decrease (Increase) in Deferred Qutflows 14,070 (6,858)
Increase (Decrease} in Interfund Balances 2,350 -
Increase (Decrease} in Other Current Liabilities 80,345 153
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Inflows 67,529 280,677
Increase (Decrease) in OPEB Liability 5,372 (795)
Increase (Decrease) in Landfill Closure Costs 115,104 -
Increase (Decrease) in Other Long Term Payable - -
Net Cash Provided by (Used for)
Operating Activities § 14723 3 (45156)
Reconciliation of Total Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Restricted Cash - Statement of Net Assets $ 80,429 $ -
Noncash Investing, Capital and Financing Activities:
Contributions of Capital Assets from Others b3 - 3 224,927

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT D-3

- Enterprise Funds Governmental
Activities
Total
Gas Enterprise Internal
Fund Funds Service Fund

§ (105653) § (94,191) § (24,883)

112,822 877,027 -
6,981 (315,557) :
11,468 (12,328) 2
- (36,000) .
(120,151) (287,637) 39
721 (88,020) -
1,507 (3,979) =
6,831 14,043 <
(3,468) (1,118) i
88,856 169,354 2
68,609 416,815 .
5,407 9,984 .

- 115,104 -
95,462 95,462 -

$§ 169392 § 858959 §  (24,844)

$ - 3 80,429 § s

b3 - 8 224927 § -
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EXHIBIT E-1

CITY OF ALPINE TEXAS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022
Custodial
Fund
ASSETS
Due from Other Funds $ 18,379
Total Assets 18,379
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 18,379
Total Liabilities 18,379

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
42



EXHIBIT E-2
CITY OF ALPINE TEXAS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY FUND NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

Custodial
Fund
ADDITIONS:
Fines 5 59,098
Total Additions _ 59,098
DEDUCTICNS:
Other Operating Costs 59,098
Total Deductions B 59,098
Net Change in Fiduciary Net Position 8
Total Net Position - October 1 (Beginning) =
Total Net Position - September 3¢ (Ending) 5 -

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF ALPINE, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Alpine, Texas (City) is a municipal corporation governed under the Home Rule City Act pursuant to
the passage of the Home Rule Charter (Charter) by the citizens of Alpine at the general city election on May 1, 1993,
Under the Charter, the City operates under a Council/City Manager form of government. It is governed by a five
member City Council elected by the registered voters of the City. In addition to general administrative services such
as court services, the City also provides public safety services which includes police, fire, and code enforcement.
The public works services include maintaining the city streets and the health and welfare services include expenses
for animal control. The City’s culture and recreation expenses are related to tourism, parks, and other recreational
services. The City provides utility services such as water, sewer, sanitation and gas. The City also maintains an
airport.

The City prepares its basic financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and it complies with the requirements of
contracts and grants of agencies from which it receives funds.

A. REPORTING ENTITY

Because the City Council (the Council) is elected by the public; has the authority to make decisions, appoint
administrators and managers, and significantly influence operations; and has the primary accountability for fiscal
matters; the City is not included in any other governmental "reporting entity” as defined by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board.

The decisions to include or exclude a potential component unit in the reporting entity were made by applying
standards contained in GAAP. The most primary standard for including or excluding a potential component unit
is whether it is financially dependent on the reporting entity. The fiscal dependency criterion also requires that a
financial benefit or burden relationship be present in order for a potential component unit to be included in the
financial reporting entity. Other manifestations of the ability to exercise oversight responsibility include, but
certainly are not limited to, the selection of the goveming authority, the designation of management, the ability to
materially influence operations and accountability for fiscal matters. The second standard used to evaluate potential
component units is the scope of public services. Application of this standard entails considering whether the activity
benefits the City, or whether the activity is conducted within the geographic boundaries of the City and is generally
available to its citizens. The third standard involved in evaluating whether potential component units are included
or excluded from the reporting entity is the existence of special financing relationships, regardless of whether the
City is able to exercise oversight responsibilities.

Based upon the above standards, the City does not have any component units.
B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities are government-wide financial statements. They report
information on all of the City's nonfiduciary activities with most of the interfund activities removed. Governmental
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues and grants, are reporte separately
from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. All activities, both
governmental and business-type, are reported in the government-wide financial statements using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, which includes long-term assets and receivables
as well as long-term liabilities and obligations. The government-wide financial statements focus more on the
sustainability of the City as an entity and the change in aggregate financial position resulting from the activities in
the fiscal period.



CITY OF ALPINE, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

NOTE i — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

In addition fo assets, the statement of net position reports a separate section for deferred outflows of resources, if
applicable. This separate financial statement category represents a consumption of net position that applies to a
future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources {expense/expenditure) until that time. For
pensions and OPEB, these outflows may result from pension plan and OPEB contributions made after the
measurement date of the net pension and total OPEB liabilities or net pension asset and the results of differences
between expected and actual actuarial experiences, changes in actuarial assumptions, changes in proportionate share,
and the difference between actual and projected investment earnings. The deferred outflows of resources related
to pensions and OPEB resulting from City contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as
areduction of the net pension and total OPEB liabilities or an increase in the net pension asset in the next fiscal year.
The pension and OPEB related deferred outflows will be amortized over a systematic and rational method over a
closed period.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position reports a separate section for deferred inflows of resources,
if applicable. This separate financial statement category represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a
future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. For pensions and
OPEB, these deferred inflows may result from the results of differences between expected and actual actuarial
experiences, changes in actuarial assumptions, changes in proportionate share, and the difference between actual
and projected investment earnings. These amounts will be amortized over a systematic and rational method over
a closed period. For leases with the City as lessor, the deferred inflow of resources occurs at the time the value of
the leases receivable is measured plus any payment received at or before the commencement of the lease term that
relates to future periods. This deferred inflow will be amortized in a systematic and rational manner over the term
of the lease.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates how other people or entities that participate in programs the City operates
have shared in the payment of the direct costs. Interest on long-term debt is not allocated to the various functions.
The “charges for services” column includes payments made by parties that purchase, use, or directly benefit from
goods or services provided by a given function of the City. Also included in this column is a franchise and
administrative fee that the general fund charges to the enterprise funds for the administration of activities related
to these funds. The “grants and contributions” columns include amounts paid by organizations outside the City to
help meet the operational or capital requirements of a given function. If a revenue is not a program revenue (charges
for services or grants and contributions), it is a general revenue used to support all of the City’s functions. Taxes
are always general revenues.

The City reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities. Direct expenses are those that are
clearly identifiable with a function. The City does not currently employ indirect cost allocation systems.

Depreciation expense is specifically identified by function and is included in the direct expense of each function.
Interest on general long-term debt is considered an indirect expense and is reported separately on the Statement of
Activities.

Interfund activities between governmental funds and between governmental and proprietary funds and between
governmental and fiduciary funds appear as due to/due from on the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet, the
Proprietary Fund Statement of Net Position, and the Statement of Fiduciary Net Position or as other financing
sources and uses on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures/Expenses and Changes in Fund Balances/Position.
All interfund transactions between governmental funds are eliminated on the government-wide statements.
Interfund activities between governmental funds and enterprise funds and between governmental funds and fiduciary
funds remain as due to/due from on the government-wide Statement of Net Position.
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CITY OF ALPINE, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The fund financial statements report on the financial condition and results of operations for three fund categories
- governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. Since the resources in the fiduciary funds cannot be used for District
operations, they are not included in the government-wide statements. The City considers some governmental and
enterprise funds major and reports their financial condition and results of operations in a separate column.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues result
from providing goods and services in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations; they
usually come from exchange or exchange-like transactions. All other revenues are nonoperating. Operating
expenses can be tied specifically to the production of goods and services, such as materials and labor and direct
overhead. Operating expenses include activities that have the characteristics of an exchange transaction, such as a)
employee salaries, benefits, and related expenses; b) utilities, supplies, and other services; ¢) professional fees; d)
repairs and maintenance; and e) depreciation expenses related to City’s capital assets and long-term debt.
Nonoperating expenses include activities that have the characteristics of nonexchange transactions, such as interest
on capital asset related debt that are defined as nonoperating expenses. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION

The govermment-wide financial statements use the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting, as do the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Other taxes and fees are
recognized as revenue in the year they are earned. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which
they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed
by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements use the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting. With this measurement focus, only current assets, deferred outflows of resources,
current liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and fund balances are included on the balance sheet. Operating
statements of these funds present net increases and decreases in current assets (i.¢., revenues and other financing
sources and expenditures and other financing uses).

The modified accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenues in the accounting period in which they become both
measurable and available, and it recognizes expenditures in the accounting period in which the fund liability is
incurred, if measurable, except for unmatured interest and principal on long-term debt and leases, which is
recognized when due. The expenditures related to certain compensated absences and claims and judgments are
recognized when the obligations are expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources. The
City considers all revenues, other than property tax revenues, available if they are collectible within one year after
year end.
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CITY OF ALPINE, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenues from local sources consist primarily of property and sales taxes and charges for services. Property tax
revenues are recognized under the “susceptible -to- accrual” concept, that is, when they are both measurable and
available. The City considers them “available” if they will be collected within 60 days of the end of the fiscal year.
Sales taxes are recognized when eamed based upon the reporting date from the Texas Comptroller of Public
Accounts reports. Charges for services are primarily from franchise and administrative fees charged. Miscellaneous
revenues are recorded as revenue when received in cash because they are generally not measurable until actually
received. Investment earnings and interest income from leases are recorded as earned, since they are both
measurable and available.

Unavailable revenue from property taxes arises only under the modified accrual basis of accounting. The
governmental funds report this unavailable revenue as a deferred inflow of resources and recognize revenue in the
period that the amounts become available. The governmental funds also report a deferred inflow of resources from
leases, which is recognized as revenue over the term of the lease.

Grant funds are considered to be eamed to the extent of expenditures made under the provisions of the grant.
Accordingly, when such funds are received, they are recorded as uneamed revenues until related and authorized
expenditures have been made. If balances have not been expended by the end of the project period, grantors
sometimes require the City to refund all or part of the unused amount.

The proprietary fund types are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus and utilize the
accrual basis of accounting. This basis of accounting recognizes revenues in the accounting period in which they
are eamned and become measurable and expenses in the accounting period in which they are incurred and become
measurable. With this measurement focus, all assets and deferred cutflows of resources and all liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources associated with the operation of these funds are included on the fund Statement of Net
Position. Net position is segregated into net investment in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted.

The Fiduciary Funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus and utilize the accrual
basis of accounting. This basis of accounting recognizes revenues in the accounting period in which they are earned
and become measurable and expenses in the accounting period in which they are incurred and become measurable.
With this measurement focus, assets and liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included on the
fund Statement of Fiduciary Net Position.

D. FUND ACCOUNTING

The City uses funds to report its financial position and activities. Fund accounting segregates funds according to
their intended purpose and is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by
segregating transactions related to certain governmental functions or activities. A fund is a separate accounting entity
with a self-balancing set of accounts, which includes assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, deferred inflows, fund
balances, revenues and expenditures.

The City reports the following major govemmental funds:

1. General Fund - The General Fund is the City's primary operating fund. It is used to account for all activities
except those legally or administratively required to be accounted for in other funds.
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CITY OF ALPINE, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.

Hotel and Motel Fund - This special revenue fund is used to account for the taxes collected from hotels and
motels and the related expenditures to promote tourism paid for from those funds that meet the legally
established requirements of the State for allowable expenditures.

The City reports the following major enterprise funds:

1.

Water, Sewer, and Sanitation Fund - This enterprise fund is used to account for the activity related to the
management of the City’s Water, Sewer, and Sanitation utility.

Airport Fund - This enterprise fund is used to account for the activity related to operation of the City’s
Airport including aviation operations and leasing activities on Airport properties.

Gas Fund - This enterprise fund is used to account for the activity related to the management of the City’s
Natural Gas utility.

Additionally, the City reports the following other funds:

Governmental funds:

1.

Special Revenue Funds - Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources that are legally restricted for expenditures for certain purposes. Most Federal and some State
financial assistance is accounted for in a Special Revenue Fund.

Debt Service Fund — The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the property taxes which have been
levied to fund the City’s long-term debt obligations.

Proprietary Funds:

3.

Internal Service Fund - This fund was established to manage the City's partially self-funded insurance plan.
However, effective October 1, 2020, the City switched to a fully funded health insurance plan and a Health
Reimbursement Arrangement ( HRA) program. This fund continued to pay out the remaining claims during
the fiscal year ending September 30, 2022, and the fund continues to be utilized to cover City contributions
for employee heaith benefits towards the HRA program and COBRA.

Fiduciary Funds:

4.

Custodial Fund - This fund is used to report fiduciary activities that are not required to be reported in
pension (and other employee benefit) trust funds, investment trust funds, or private trust funds. The City’s
custodial fund is used to account for various fees charged through the court for which a portion is collected
on behalf of the State of Texas and cannot be used in the City’s in operations.
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CITY OF ALPINE, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
E. OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purpose of the proprietary fund Statement of Cash Flows, the City considers all highly liquid investments

to be cash equivalents if they have a maturity of three months or less when purchased. Cash and cash equivalents
also includes all demand and savings accounts. Restricted cash represents cash set aside to be in compliance with
legal restrictions related to the landfill.

The funds of the City must be deposited and invested under the terms of a contract, contents of which are set out
in the Depository Contract Law. The depository bank places approved pledged securities for safekeeping and trust
with the City’s agent bank in an amount sufficient to protect City funds on a day-to-day basis during the period of
the contract. The pledge of approved securities is waived only to the extent of the depository bank’s dollar amount
of Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insurance.

The Public Funds Investment Act (Govemment Code Chapter 2256) contains specific provisions in the areas of
investment practices, management reports and establishment of appropriate policies. Among other things, it requires
the City to adopt, implement, and publicize an investment policy. That policy must address the following areas: (1)
safety of principal and liquidity, (2) portfolio diversification, (3) allowable investments, (4) acceptable risk levels,
(5) expected rates of return, (6) maximum allowable stated maturity of portfolio investments, (7) maximum average
dollar-weighted maturity allowed based on the stated maturity date for the portfolio, (8) investment staff quality and
capabilities, (9) and bid solicitation preferences for certificates of deposit.

Statutes authorize the City to invest in (1) obligations of the U.S. Treasury, certain U.S. agencies, and the State of
Texas; (2) certificates of deposit, (3) certain municipal securities, (4) money market savings accounts, {5) repurchase
agreements, (6) bankers’ acceptances, (7) mutual funds, (8) investment pools, (9) guaranteed investment contracts,
(10) and common trust funds. The Act also requires the City to have independent auditors perform test procedures
related to investment practices as provided by the Act. Management asserts that the City is in substantial compliance
with the requirements of the Act and with local policies.

Additional policies and contractual provisions governing deposits and investments for the City are specified below:

Credit Risk:
Deposits - Credit risk is not applicable to deposits.

Temporary Investments (Cash Equivalents) — To limit the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment
will not fulfill its obligations, the City limits investments in public funds investments pools to those that have
received top ratings issued by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations (NRSROs). As of September
30, 2022, the City’s investments in the Texas Class and TexStar investment pools were rated AAAm by Standard
& Poor’s.
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CITY OF ALPINE, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Custodial Credit Risk:

Deposits - State law requires governmental entities to contract with financial institutions in which funds will be
deposited to secure those deposits with insurance or pledged securities with a fair value equaling or exceeding the
amount on deposit at the end of each business day. The pledged securities must be in the name of the governmental
entity and held by the entity or its agent. Since the City has a contract that complies with this law, it has minimal
custodial credit risk for deposits.

Temporary Investments (Cash Equivalents) — To limit the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty
to a transaction, the City will not be able to recover the value of invesiment or collateral securities that are in
possession of an outside party, the City requires counterparties to register the securities in the name of the City and
hand them over to the City or its designated agent. Investment pools are not categorized or exposed to custodial risk
because they are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form.

Concentration of Credit Risk:
Deposits - Concentration of credit risk is not applicable to the deposits.

Temporary Investments (Cash Equivalents) — To limit the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government’s
investment in a single issuer, the City’s policy states that the portfolio must be diversified. Concentration of Credit
Risk is not applicable to investment pools since the purpose of these pools is to diversify the City’s investment
portfolio.

Interest Rate Risk:
Deposits - Interest rate risk is not applicable to deposits.

Temporary Investments (Cash Equivalents) — To limit the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the
fair value of the investments, the City requires its investment portfolio to have maturities of less than 1.5 years on
a weighted average maturity (WAM) basis. Each pool invests in different investment instruments, and each
portfolio has varying maturities.

Foreign Currency Risk:

Deposits - The City limits the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect a deposit by not having any
deposits denominated in a foreign currency.

Temporary Investments (Cash Equivalents) - The City attempts to limit the rigk that changes in exchange rates will
adversely affect the fair value of an investment by avoiding investment pools or securities which are denominated
in a foreign currency.

Receivables

In the government-wide statements and enterprise funds, receivables consist of all revenues eamed at year-end and
not yet received. Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable are based upon historical trends and the periodic
aging of accounts receivable. Major receivable balances for the governmental activities include sales and use taxes,
franchise taxes, grants, police fines, and ambulance fees. Business-type activities major receivables are related to
services rendered to customers.
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CITY OF ALPINE, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

In the fund financial statements, receivables in governmental funds include revenue accruals such as sales tax,
franchise tax, and grants and other similar intergovernmental revenues since they are usually both measurable and
available. Non-exchange transactions collectible but not available are unearned in the fund financial statements in
accordance with modified accrual, but not unearned in the government-wide financial statements in accordance with
the accrual basis. Interest and investment earnings are recorded when eamed. Proprietary fund receivables consist
of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet received. Utility accounts receivable compose the majority of
proprietary fund receivables. Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable are based upon historical trends and
the periodic aging of accounts receivable. As of September 30, 2022, the allowance in the Water, Sewer, and
Sanitation fund was $217,540, and the allowance in the Gas fund was $107,578. There is no allowance for the
receivables in the Airport Fund or the General Fund as management believes the balances to be fully collectible.

Lease Receivables

The City’s receivables from leases as a lessor are measured at the present value of the lease payments expected to
be received during the lease term. Under the lease agreements, the City has agreements with lease payments that
include periodic fixed increases and some agreements have variable lease payments that are dependent on changes
in the consumer price index. The variable payments are recorded as revenue in the period the payment is received.
The current portion of the lease receivable is included in Other Receivables and the noncurrent portion is listed as
such.

Interfund Receivables and Payables
During the course of operations, numerous transactions oceur between individual funds for goods provided or

services rendered. The resulting receivables and payables from these transactions are classified as “due from other
funds” or “due to other funds.” Interfund receivables and payables between funds within governmental activities
are eliminated in the Statement of Net Position. Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates,
are treated as revenues and expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the
appropriate benefitting funds and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are
treated as transfers. Transfers between governmental funds are netted as part of the reconciliation to the
government-wide financial statements. See Note 6 for details of interfund transactions, including receivables and
payables at year-end.

Inventories
Inventories of materials and supplies consist primarily of expendable items held for consumption. The City reports
jet fuel inventory at weighted average cost. Supplies inventories are reported at cost.

Capital Assets
Capital assets, which include land, infrastructure, buildings, furniture, vehicles, equipment, and right-to- use lease

assets are reported in the governmental activities and business-type activities columns in the government-wide
financial statements, and assets are also reported in the proprietary fund financial statements for the enterprise funds.
Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $2,500 and an estimated
useful life in excess of one year. All individual federally funded assets shall be capitalized in accordance with the
aforementioned policies.
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CITY OF ALPINE, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Such assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual is unavailable, except for donated capital
assets, which are recorded at their acquisition value at the date of donation. Assets acquired through contributions,
such as from developers, are capitalized and recorded at acquisition value as of the date of donation. Estimated
historical cost was used to value many of the infrastructure assets acquired prior to October 1, 2003. The cost of
normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not
capitalized. Additions, improvements, and major outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are
capitalized. Capital assets of the City are depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated
useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings and Improvements 10-50
Improvements 05-50
Machinery and Equipment 03-75
Utility Systems 25-75
Infrastructure 10-75
Vehicles 05-20

Right-to-Use lease assets are defined by the City as asset agreements with a present value of $4,000 or more with
the asset having an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Right-to-use lease assets are amortized in a
systematic and rational manner over the shorter of the lease term or the useful life of the underlying asset. When
a lease contains a purchase option the City chooses to exercise, the leased asset is amortized over the useful life of
the underlying asset. The amortization expense is combined with depreciation expense for financial reporting

purposes.

Restricted Assets

Restricted assets are held for a specific purpose and therefore not available for immediate or general business use.
Restricted assets include cash and cash equivalents of the various funds which are restricted as to their use generally
by contractual agreements or regulatory requirements. When the City incurs an expense for which it may use either
restricted or unrestricted assets, it uses the restricted assets first whenever they will have to be returmned if they are
not used.

Compensated Absences
The City’s policies regarding vacation time permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation leave.

Employees may carry over a maximum of 120 hours from the end of one fiscal year to the beginning of the next
fiscal year. Any vacation time accrued but not taken in excess of 120 hours is forfeited at the end of each fiscal year.
As of September 30, 2022, the total liability for compensated absences amounted to $112,451. The amount related
to the governmental funds is included in the government wide Statement of Net Position. The amount related to
enterprise funds is included in the Statement of Net Position — Proprietary Funds and the government wide Statement
of Net Position.
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Long-term Debt
In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term

debt, right-to-use lease liabilities and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities or business-type activities Statement of Net Position. The long-term debt consists primarily
of bonds, certificates of obligation, and capital leases. Premiums and discounts are presented as a component of
liabilities while deferred losses on refundings are presented as deferred outflows of resources and deferred gain on
refunding as deferred inflows of resources. These items are deferred and amortized over the life of the related debt
using the straight line method. Long-term debt is reported net of the applicable premium or discount. The right-to-
use lease liability is calculated as the present value of the reasonably certain expected payments to be made over the
term of the lease and the interest included in the lease payment is recorded as an expense.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize debt issuance and the costs associated with the
issuance of debt and new right-to-use lease arrangements, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued
is reported as other financing sources. If applicable, premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other
financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether
or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. For new right-to-
use leases, the initial measurement is reported in governmental fund types as an other financing source during the
current period. Monthly or quarterly payments are reported as principal and interest payments during the reporting
period in the fund financial statements. The accounting for long-term debt in the proprietary funds is the same in
the fund statements as it is in the government-wide statements.

Net Position
Net Position on the Statement of Net Position includes the following:

Net investment in capital assets — This component of net position consists of capital assets, net accumulated
depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds or other borrowings that are attributable to the
acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets or related debt will
be included in this component of net position.

Restricted for Federal and State Grants — This component of net position consists of restricted assets reduced by
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources related to those assets, which are restricted by federal and state granting
agencies.

Restricted for Landfill Closure Costs — This component of net position consists of restricted assets that have been
set aside due to regulations for the closure of the landfiil.

Restricted for Debt Service — This component of net position consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources related to those assets. The assets arise from bond issuances which have constraints
placed on them by the bond covenants for the purpose of future debt service payments.

Restricted for Other Purposes - This component of net position consists of constraints by contributors or restrictions
due to laws or regulations placed on the City.
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Unrestricted — This component of net position is the net amount of assets, liabilities, deferred outflows of resources,
and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the determination of net investment in capital assets or
the restricted components of net position.

When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position are available, the
City considers restricted resources to have been spent first.

Fund Balance Classification Policies and Procedures

If applicable, the City reports the following fund balance categories to make the nature and extent of the constraints
placed on a government's fund balances more transparent. The following classifications describe the relative strength
of the spending constraints:

—  Nonspendable — Represents amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable form
or (b} legally or contractually required to be maintained intact, such as inventories.

—  Restricted fund balance — Represents amounts with constraints placed on the use of resources which are
either: (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws
or reguiations of other govemments; or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions; or © enabling
legislation.

—  Committed fund balance — Represents amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to
constraints imposed by council resolution or formal action of the City Council which is the government’s
highest level of decision-making authority. These amounts can only be re-allocated by the same formal
action that was taken to originally commit those funds. The City Council shall take action to commit funds
for a specific purpose prior to the end of the fiscal year.

—  Assigned fund balance — Represents amounts that are constrained by the government’s intent to be used for
specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. Intent is expressed by (a) the City Council
action or (b) by the City Manager who is the official delegated by the City Council with the authority to
assign amounts to be used for specific purposes.

—  Unassigned fund balance ~ Represents amounts that are available for any purpose and have not been
restricted, committed, or assigned for specific purposes.

For the classification of fund balances the City considers restricted amounts to have been spent when an expenditure
is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available, and the City considers
committed and assigned amounts to have been spent when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which
amounts in any of those unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used. The City has not formally adopted
a minimum fund balance policy.

Intemal Service Funds

Since Internal Service Funds support the operations of governmental funds, they are consolidated with the
governmental funds in the government-wide financial statements. The expenditures of governmental funds that
create the revenues of internal service funds are eliminated to avoid “grossing up” the revenues and expenses of the
City as a whole.
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Property Tax
The City’s property tax is levied each October 1 on the assessed value listed as of January 1 for all real and personal

property located in the City. Taxes are due by January 31 following the October 1 levy date.

The methods of property assessment and tax collection are determined by Texas statute. The statutes provide for
a property tax code, countywide appraisal districts and certain exemptions from taxation, such as intangible personal
property, household goods and family-owned automobiles.

The City is authorized to set tax rates on property within the City limits. However, if the adopted tax rate for
operations exceeds the effective operating rate as calculated pursuant to the property tax code for the previous year
by more than 8%, qualified voters of the City may petition for an election to determine whether to limit the tax rate
increase to no more than 8§%.

The Brewster County Tax Collector bills and collects the property taxes and remits to the City its portion. In the
fund financial statements, property taxes are recorded as revenue in the period levied to the extent they are collected
within 60 days of year-end. Taxes are due on receipt of the tax bill and are delinquent if not paid before February
1 of the year following the year in which imposed. On January 31, of each year, a tax lien attaches to the property
to secure the payment of all taxes, penalties, and interest ultimately imposed.

Delinquent taxes are prorated between maintenance and debt service based on rates adopted for the year of the levy.
Allowances for uncollectible tax receivables within the General and Debt Service Funds are based on historical
experience collecting property taxes. Uncollectible personal property taxes are periodically reviewed and written
off, but the City is prohibited from writing off real property taxes without specific statutory authority from the Texas
Legislature.

Sales Tax

The City presently levies a 1.5% sales tax on taxable sales within the City. The sales tax is collected by the Texas
Comptroller of Public Accounts and remitted to the City in the month following receipt by the Comptroller. The
Comptroller receives the sales tax approximately one month after collection by vendors. The sales tax is recorded
entirely in the General Fund.

In addition, the City receives Hotel/Motel Occupancy tax that is recorded in the Hotel and Motel special revenue
fund. As of September 30, 2022, the amount due from hotels and motels was $103,842, which is included in taxes
receivable,

Interfund Transfers

Permanent reallocation of resources between funds of the reporting entity is classified as interfund transfers. For
the purposes of the government-wide Statement of Activities, all interfund transfers between individual
governmental funds have been eliminated.
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Budgets and Budgetary Basis
As set forth in the city charter, the City Council adopts an annual budget for all funds at the department level. The

annual budget is prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The City Manager is authorized to transfer
budgeted amounts within and among departments, offices, or agencies, but no amounts may be transferred to
increase a salary appropriation without the approval of the Council. Upon written request by the City Manager, the
Council may, by ordinance, transfer part or all of any unencumbered appropriation from one department, office or
agency to another. Budgeted amounts shown in the financial statements represent the final budget after any
amendments. All budgets are prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting which is required by Texas Law.

Encumbrances
Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods or services. There were no
significant encumbrances outstanding at fiscal year-end.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, if any, at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Pensions

The fiduciary net position of the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) and the Texas Emergency Services
Retirement System (TESRS) has been determined using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and full
accrual of accounting. For purposes of measuring the net pension asset or net pension liability, deferred outflows
of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the
Fiduciary Net Position of TMRS and TESRS and additions to/deductions from TMRS and TESRS Fiduciary Net
Position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by TMRS and TESRS. For this purpose, plan
contributions are recognized in the period that compensation is reported for the employee, which is when
contributions are legally due. Benefit payments and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance
with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Newly Implemented GASB
The City implemented GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, which requires recognition of certain lease assets and

liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases. The standard introduces new terminology
for lease arrangements, calling them a right-to-use lease and is defined as a contract that conveys control of another
entity’s nonfinancial asset as specified in the contract for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like
transaction. See Note 5 for information regarding the District as lessor and Notes 7, 10, and 11 for information
regarding the District’s right-to-use lease assets and the related liabilities. In addition, Note 23 provides information
on how the restatement impacted the financial statements.
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The City’s total cash deposits were held with the contracted depository institution West Texas National Bank in
interest bearing accounts. The accounts were secured at September 30, 2022 by FDIC coverage of $250,000 and
two irrevocable letters of credit in the amount of $7,500,000 and $500,000, issued by Federal Home Loan Bank of
Dallas, expiring February 1, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively. The total bank balance as of September
30, 2022 was $6,123,028. The difference between book and bank balances represent items in transit at year-end,
usually outstanding checks that clear in the following month. The following is disclosed as of September 30, 2022:

Total
Hotel and Non-Major Internal Governmental
Govemmental Activities: General Fund ~ Motel Fund Funds Service Fund Activities
Cash $ 850273 8§ 954026 % 123,905 § 421,739 § 2,349,943
Cash Equivalents - Texas Class 710,825 86,640 75,026 - 872,491
Cash Equivalents - TexStar 1,992,317 - - - 1,992,317

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $§ 3553415 $ 1040666 & 198931 $ 421,739 § 5214751

Water, Sewer, Total

and Sanitation Business-Type
Business-Type Activities: Fund Airport Fund Gas Fund Activities
Cash $ 1,564,301 § 156,588 § 1,408,135 § 3,129,024
Cash Equivalents-Texas Class 905,541 28482 - 934,023

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 2469842 § 185070 § 1408135 $ 4,063,047

Restricted Cash $ 80.4@ $ - g - $ 80.429

Water, Sewer and Sanitation restricted cash of $80,429 is restricted for landfill closure and post-closure costs.

Texas Class (Texas Cooperative Liquid Assets Securities System Trust) is a pooled investment program
administered by Public Trust Advisors, LLC. Texas Class is governed by the Board of Trustees which has appointed
an Advisory Board composed of Participants and other persons who are qualified to advise the Trust. The fair value
of the City’s position in Texas Class is the same as the value of Texas Class shares. Texas Class issues publicly
available financial reports that include financial statements and required supplementary information. The report may
be obtained by calling Texas Class at 1-800-707-6242 or online at www.texasclass.com. TexStar is an investment
pool created under the Inter-local Cooperation Act and is administered by First Southwest and JP Morgan Asset
Management. TexStar is measured at amortized cost which approximates the value of pool shares.
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Receivable balances for the various funds as of September 30, 2022 are summarized below:

Total
Governmental
General Fund Activities
Administrative and Franchise Fee $ 148,612 § 148,612
Road Repair Fees 50,000 50,000
Total $ 198612 § 198,612=
Water, Sewer,
and Sanitation Total Business-
Fund Airport Fund Gas Fund Type Activities
Water, Sewer, Sanitation Sales, net $ 389,054 § - $ = $ 389,054
AV fuel = 22,588 - 22,588
Gas Sales, net - - 62,836 62,836
Miscellaneous 6,730 4,629 17,750 29,109
Total $ 395784 § 27,217 % =80,586 b 503,587

NOTE 4 - DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS

The City participates in a variety of federal and state programs from which it receives grants to partially or fully
finance certain activities. Management has deemed no allowance for doubtful accounts is necessary for fair
presentation as there is usually no risk of uncollectibility. Amounts due from federal and state governments as of

September 30, 2022 are summarized as follows:

Total
General Fund Non-Major Government
Description Funds Activities
Miscellaneous Taxes 5 21,680 § - b 21,680
HIDTA S 21,140 21,140
Local Border Security - 39,432 39,432
Homeland Security - 72,611 72,611
Texas Office of Governor - 56,754 56,754
Other Miscellaneous 6.675 9.546 16,221
Total $ 28355 % 199483 § 227838
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For the governmental funds, the City reports the current portion of leases receivable as part of other receivables.
At the beginning of the year, the City as lessor had an existing lease agreements for a ground lease with the local
post office. The remaining lease term at October 1, 2021 was for approximately 13 years and monthly payments
varied from $367 to $456. In accordance with the agreements, the monthly payments are subject to periodic fixed
increases of 13% per every five years and 10% for the last five years. The lease receivable is measured at the present
value of the future minimum rent payments expected to be received during the lease term using a discount rate of
4.0%. During fiscal year 2022, the City recognized $3,840 in lease revenue and $1,992 in interest revenue related
to leases. At September 30, 2022, the City reports a total receivable of $48,547 with a current portion of $2,508 and
a noncurrent portion of $46,039 and a related deferred inflow of resources of $47,115, which will be recognized as
revenue over the lease term.

For the Airport enterprise fund, the City also reports the current portion of leases receivable as part of other
receivables. At the beginning of the fiscal year, the Airport Fund as lessor had thirty previously existing ground
lease agreements for City owned land and one new ground lease that was effective October 1, 2021 in the amount
of $10,276. The remaining lease terms at October 1, 2021 vary from 13 to 54 years and yearly payments varied
from $136 to $2,340. In accordance with the agreements, the yearly payments for some leases are subject to
periodic fixed increases of 1 cent per square foot while other leases are increased based on the consumer price index.
The increases related to the consumer price index are considered variable payments. The leases receivable are
measured at the present value of the future minimum rent payments expected to be received during the lease term
using the rate of 4%. During fiscal year 2022, the City recognized $12,055 in lease revenue and $11,460 in interest
revenue related to leases. At September 30, 2022, the City reports a total receivable of $284,300 with a current
portion of 35,123 and a noncurrent portion of $279,177 and a related deferred inflow of resources of $276,709,
which will be recognized as revenue over the lease terms.

Other Receivable balances for the various funds as of September 30, 2022 are summarized below:

Total
Governmental
General Fund Activities
Lease Receivable - current $ 2,508 % 2,508
Total $ 2508 % 2,508
Water, Sewer,
and Sanitation Total Business-
Fund Airport Fund Type Activities
Landfill dumping charges $ 48,205 $ - $ 48,205
Leases Receivable - current - 5,123 5,123
Total 5 48,205 % 5,123 $ 53,328
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Interfund transactions are the result of normal operations and resulted in the following amounts due from and to
other funds which have been reported as assets or liabilities in the fund basis and govemment wide financial
statements. Management intends to pay out these balances usually within one year. Following is a summary of due
from and due to balances as of September 30, 2022;

Due From Due to
Other Funds Other Funds
General Fund:
Hotel and Motel Fund $ - $ 19,311
Non-Major Funds 200,610 93,767
Water, Sewer & Sanitation Fund 224,578 -
Airport Fund 131,541 -
Gas Fund 480,017 -
Health Internal Service Fund - 138,450
Custodial Fund - 18,379
Total General Fund 1,036,746 269,907
Hotel and Motel Fund:
General Fund 19,311 -
Non-Major Funds:
General Fund 93,767 200,610
Water, Sewer, & Sanitation Fund:
General Fund S 224,578
Airport Fund;
General Fund - 131,541
Gas Fund:
General Fund - 480,017
Health Internal Service Fund:
General Fund 138,450 -
Custodial Fund:
General Fund 18,379 -
Total 3 1,306,653 3 1306653

Interfund transfers generally fall within two categories: (1) transfers to cover debt service payments to comply with
debt covenants, and (2) transfers to charge other funds fees or a permanent reallocation of resources. During the
year, a total of $75,000 was transferred to the Pueblo Nuevo Park Fund for park improvements.

The general fund charged for administration and franchise costs to the Water, Sewer, and Sanitation Fund, the
Airport Fund, and the Gas Fund, and charged indirect costs to the Hotel and Motel Fund in the following amounts:
$654,659, $48,558, $232,704, and $38,618, respectively.
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The following is a summary of changes to capital assets in the government wide financial statements relative to
governmental fund activities:

Restated
Balance Transfers/ Balance
Oct. 1, 2021 Additions Deductions Sept. 30, 2022
Land $ 806,665 § - $ - b 806,665
Construction in Progress 465,070 854,541 (1,251,173) 68,438
Landscaping 56,383 - - 56,383
Buildings and Improvements 3,015,203 17,800 508,359 3,541,362
Infrastructure 8,853,121 - - 8,853,121
Improvements other than bldgs. 5,113,970 - 742.814 5,856,784
Vehicles 3,292,124 14,950 (168,686) 3,138,388
Furniture & Equipment 1,117,328 234,492 (6,412) 1,345,408
22,719,864 1,121,783 (175,098) 23,666,549
Right-to-Use Lease assets:
Vehicles - 33,713 - 33,713
Furniture and equipment 14,800 30,202 - 45,002
Total Right-to-Use Lease assets 14,800 63,915 - 78,715
Total Governmental Assets 8 22734664 § 1185698 $ (175098) § 23,745.264
Accumulated Depreciation:
Landscaping $ {56,383) - - $ (56,383)
Buildings and Improvements (1,601,151) (108,451) - (1,709,602)
Infrastructure (5,224,026) (199,011) - (5,423,037)
Improvements other than bldgs. (2,622,093) (307,270) - {2,929,363)
Vehicles (2,587,053) (153,618) 155,770 (2,584,901)
Fumiture & Equipment (636,480) (69,540) 5,236 {700,784)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (12,727,186) (837,890) 161,006 (13,404,070)
Less accurnulated amortization for:
Right-to-Use Lease assets:
Vehicles - - - -
Fumiture and equipment - {10,722) - (10,722)
Total accumulated amortization - {10,722) - (10,722)
Net Governmental Capital Assets $ 10007478 % 337086 § (14.092) § 10,330472
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Depreciation and amortization expense was charged to governmental functions as follows:

Depreciation Amortization

General Government $ 39,674 § 9,138
Public Works 520,048 -
Health and Human Services 57,160 -
Culture and Recreation 101,065 1,584
Public Safety 119,943 -
Total Depreciation Expense $ 837.890 § 10,722

Depreciation and amortization expense totaled $848,612 for the year ended September 30, 2022 as reported in the
govemment wide financial statements.

The following is a summary of changes to capital assets in the proprietary fund financials:

Restated

Balance Transfers/ Balance
Water, Sewer, and Sanitation Oct. 1, 2021 Additions Deductions Sept. 30, 2022
Land 5 192,397 $ - $ - $ 192,397
Construction in Progress 48,518 391,180 - 439,698
Buildings and Improvements 1,160,965 - - 1,160,965
Furniture, Equipment, & Vehicles 2,579,614 - - 2,579,614
Water System 14,453,819 84,007 - 14,537,826
Wastewater System 6,801,052 16,188 - 6,817,240

25,236,365 491,375 - 25,727,740
Right-to-Use Lease assets:

Fumniture and equipment 20,669 - - 20,669
Total Right-to-Use Lease assets 20,669 - - 20,669
Total Water, Sewer, and Sanitation Assets 25,257,034 491,375 - 25.748.409
Accumulated Depreciation:

Buildings and Improvements (653,597) (36,577) - (690,174)
Fumniture, Equipment, & Vehicles (1,436,434) (152,909) - (1,589,343)
Water System (6,277,466) (249,510) - (6,526,976)
Wastewater System (3,333.704) {109,150) - (3,442 .854)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (11,701,201} {548,146} - {12,249.347)
Accumulated Amortization:

Right-to-Use Lease assets:

Furniture and equipment - (4,068) - (4,068)
Total Accumulated Amortization - (4,068) - (4,068)
Net Water, Sewer, and Sanitation

Capital Assets $ 13555833 % (60.839) § - § 13494994
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Balance Transfers/ Balance

Airport Oct. 1,2021 Additions Deductions Sept. 30, 2022
Land $ 99,584 § - 5 - $ 99,584
Construction in Progress 96,302 251,931 (270,033) 78,200
Buildings 18,253 - - 18,253
Equipment 162,827 - - 162,827
Improvements other than bldgs. 6,535,266 44,132 270,033 6,849,431
Total Airport Assets 6,912,232 296,063 - 7,208,295
Accumulated Depreciation:

Buildings (4,202) (390) - (4,592)
Equipment (52,229 (4,962) - (57,191)
Improvements other than bldgs. (1,730,168) (206,639) - (1,936,807)
Total Accumulated Depreciation {1,786,599) (211,991) - (1,998,590}
Net Airport Capital Assets $ 5125633 § 84072 % - $ 5,209,705
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Restated
Balance Transfers/ Balance
Gas Oct. 1, 2021 Additions Deductions Sept. 30, 2022
Land $ 45,000 $% - 3 - $ 45,000
Construction in Progress - 22,665 - 22,665
Buildings 217,000 - - 217,000
Vehicles 486,150 - (3,500) 482,650
Fumiture and Equipment 210,452 8,921 - 219,373
(Gas Distribution System 1,442,557 - - 1,442,557
2,401,159 31,586 (3,500) 2,429,245
Right-to-Use Lease assets:
Fumiture and equipment 16,868 - - 16,868
16,868 - - 16,868
Total Gas Assets 2,418,027 31,586 {3.500) 2,446,113
Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings (83,183) (8,680) - (91,863)
Vehicles {240,949) (48,435) 3,500 (285,884)
Furniture and Equipment {121,851) (15,852) - (137,703)
Gas Distribution System (287,959) (33,531) - (321,490)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (733,942) (106,498) 3,500 (836,940)
Less accumulated amortization for:
Right-to-Use Lease assets:
Furniture and equipment - (6,324) - (6,324)
Total Accumulated Amortization - (6,324) - {6,324)
Net Gas Capital Assets $ 1684085 % (81,236) - $ 1602849

Depreciation and amortization expense for the enterprise funds’ capitals assets totaled $877,027 for the year ended
September 30, 2022 as reported in the proprietary and government wide financial statements.
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NOTE 8§ - UNEARNED REVENUES

Unearned revenue balances for the various funds as of September 30, 2022 are summarized below:

Total
Governmental
General Fund Activities
Coronavirus Local Fiscal Recovery
Fund-Emergency Protective
Measures $ 1,488,535 § 1,488,535
Total $ 1,488,535 § 1,488,535
Water, Sewer,
and Sanitation Total Business-
Fund Gas Fund Type Activities
Prepaid Utility payments $ 78816 $ 36,039 § 114,855
Total $ 78,816 $ 36039 % 114,855

NOTE 9 - OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

As of September 30, 2022, other current liabilities consisted of the following:

Total
Government
General Fund Activities
Rental Deposits $ 6,160 § 6,160
Other 1,665 1,665
Total $ 7,82_5__ 5 7,825
Water, Sewer, Total
and Sanitation Business-Type
Fund Gas Fund Activities
Customer Deposits $ 293,693 § 197,040 % 490,733
Other 1,803 569 2,372
Total $ 205496 $ 197,609 § 493,105
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NOTE 10— GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES LONG-TERM DEBT

For the year ended September 30, 2022, the City had the following governmental activities long-term debt:

Loans from Direct Borrowing:

In fiscal year 2010, the City acquired a fire truck in the amount of $260,756. The term requires annual
payments of $29,753 which includes interest at 5.37% with final payment made November 11, 2021. The
unpaid principal balance at September 30, 2022 was zero.

In fiscal year 2018, the City acquired five vehicles totaling $108,085. The terms require monthly payments
of differing amounts for each vehicle including interest ranging from 9.43% to 12.96% with final payments
due in 2023. The unpaid principal balance at September 30, 2022 was $15,428.

In fiscal year 2019, the City acquired eight vehicles totaling $180,760. The terms require monthly payments
of differing amounts for each vehicle including interest ranging from 9.91% to 12.92% with final payments
due in 2024. The unpaid principal balance at September 30, 2022 was $63,183.

In fiscal year 2020, the City acquired a truck in the amount of $28,051. The term requires monthly payments
of $616 which includes interest at 11.44% with final payment due December 26, 2024. The unpaid principal
balance at September 30, 2022 was $14,604.

In fiscal year 2021, the City acquired two vehicles totaling $63,809. The term requires monthly payments
of $634 per vehicle which includes interest at 7.14% with final payments due January 21, 2026. The unpaid
principal balance at September 30, 2022 was $45,006.

Certificates of Obligations and Bonds Payable:

Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation — Series 2011 - 56% ($695,000) of the bond was allocated to
governmental activities and is reported with long-term debt in the governmental activities and 44% ($535,000)
was allocated and to the Water, Sewer, and Sanitation Fund and is reported with the Water, Sewer, and
Sanitation Enterprise fund. The interest rate is 4.23% with final payment due September 30, 2031. As of
September 30, 2022, the outstanding balance in the governmental activities was $387,000. See Note 11 for
the outstanding balance for the Water, Sewer, and Sanitation Fund.

General Obligation Refunding Bonds — Series 2011 - 60% ($1,890,000) of the bond was allocated to
governmental activities and is reported with long-term debt in the governmental activities and 40%
($1,260,000) was allocated to the Water, Sewer, and Sanitation Fund and is reported with the Water, Sewer,
and Sanitation Enterprise fund. The interest rate is 3.56% with final payment due March 1, 2024. As of
September 30, 2022, the outstanding balance in the governmental activities was $189,000. See Note 11 for
the outstanding balance for the Water, Sewer, and Sanitation Fund.
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NOTE 10 - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

Right-to-Use Lease Liabilities:

The City has entered into multiple lease agreements as lessee to lease office equipment for governmental funds with
lease terms of five years. In addition, during fiscal year 2022, the City entered into a lease agreement as lessee for
a vehicle with a term of five years. A right-to-use lease liability of $14,800 for existing leases at October 1, 2021
has been established based upon the present value calculations of future minimum lease payments and an interest
rate of 7.14%. In addition, an initial liability of $63,915 for the new lease entered into during fiscal year 2022 has
been recorded based on present value calculations of future minimum lease payments and an interest rate of 12.23%.
The City is required to make monthly or quarterly payments, during the lease terms. During fiscal year 2022, the
City made principal payments of $9,823 for governmental funds and interest payments of $2,294.

Changes in governmental activities long-term debt follows:

Restated Due in
Funded Balance Balance Pue Within  More Than
by 10/01/21 New Issues Payments 9/30/22 One Year One Year
Loans General § 246,874 § - $ 108,653 $ 138221 § 76638 § 61,583
Certificates of Obligation: Debt
56% Series 2011 Service 420,600 - 33,600 387,000 36,400 350,600
General Obligation Bond: Debt
60% Series 2011 Service 279,000 - 90,000 189,000 93,000 96,000
Right-to-Use leases liability General 8,584 63,915 8,397 64,102 14,502 49,600
Hotel &
Right-to-Use leases liability Motel 6216 - 1,426 4,790 1,532 3,258

$ 961274 3 63915 § 242076 § 783,113 § 222072 § 561,041
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NOTE 10 - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

The future principal and interest maturities of long-term debt for Governmental Activities as of September 30, 2022
are as follows:
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Loans
Year Ending September 30, Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 76,638 $ 9904 $ 86,542
2024 40,438 3,160 43,598
2025 16,103 950 17,053
2026 5,042 75 5,117
Total $ 138221 § 14,089 § 152,310

Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation Series 2011 (56%)

Year Ending September 30, Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 36,400 § 15,338 % 51,738
2024 36,400 13,798 50,198
2025 39,200 12,199 51,399
2026 39,200 10,541 49,741
2027 42,000 8,824 50,824
2028-2031 193,800 16,286 210,086
Total § 387000 % 76986 $ 463,986

General Obligation Refunding Bonds Series 2011 (60%)

Year Ending September 30, Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 93,000 % 5078 § 98,078
2024 96,000 1,711 97,711
Total 3 189,000 § 6,789 §$ 195,789

Right-to-Use Lease Liability

Year Ending September 30, Principal Interest Total
2023 3 16,034 § 6,065 % 22,099
2024 13,413 4,656 18,069
2025 14,575 3,342 17,917
2026 14,288 1,957 16,245
2027 10,582 600 11,182
Total $ 68,802 % 16,620 § 85,512
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NOTE 10 - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL LONG-TERM DEBT

Year Ending September 30, Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 222,072 % 36,385 § 258,457
2024 186,251 23,325 209,576
2025 69,878 16,491 86,369
2026 58,530 12,573 71,103
2027 52,582 9,424 62,006
2028-2031 193,800 16,286 210,086
Total 3 783,113 % 114484 % 897,597

NOTE 11 — BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES LONG-TERM DEBT

Bonds Pavable - The greatest portion of the long-term indebtedness of the City is reflected in the Water, Sewer, and
Sanitation fund and is described as follows:

In July 2005, Series 2005 combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation were issued as direct placement
with Texas Water Development Board (TWDB) with no interest and final payment due March 1, 2036. The
proceeds were used for improvement to the water supply system. The City’s outstanding balance as of September
30, 2022 was $1,923,000. These bonds are equally and ratably secured by and payable from a first lien on and
pledge of the net revenue of the Water, Sewer, and Sanitation Fund. The pledge of net revenue is in effect until the
bonds are extinguished.

As previously discussed, in March 2011 the City issued $1,230,000 in Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation
Series 2011 of which 44% ($535,000) was allocated to the Water, Sewer, and Sanitation fund and 56% ($695,000)
was allocated to the governmental activities and is reported as governmental activities debt based on the use of bond
proceeds. This Certificates of Obligation have an interest of 4.23% with final payment due September 30, 2031.
The proceeds were primarily used for equipment acquisitions and building and street improvements. As of
September 30, 2022, the outstanding balance was $293,000 for the Water, Sewer, and Sanitation Fund. See Note
10 for the outstanding balance for the governmental activities. These bonds are equally and ratably secured by and
payable from a first lien on and pledge of the net revenue of the Water, Sewer, and Sanitation Fund. The pledge
of net revenue is in effect until the bonds are extinguished.

The City also issued $3,150,000 in General Obligation Refunding Bonds Series 2011 of which 40% ($1,260,000)
was allocated to the Water, Sewer, and Sanitation fund and 60% ($1,890,000) was allocated to the governmental
activities and is reported as governmental activities debt based on the use of bond proceeds. These bonds have an
interest of 3.56% with final payment due March 1, 2024. The bond proceeds were used to pay off Certificates of
Obligation Series 1997, 1999, 2001 and 2009 and General Obligation Refunding Bonds Series 2001, As of
September 30, 2022, the outstanding balance was $126,000 for the Water, Sewer, and Sanitation Fund. See Note
10 for the outstanding balance for the governmental activities.
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NOTE 11 - BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

In December 2012, the City issued combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation Series 2012 for up to
$95,728 with interest ranging from .27% to 2.82% with final payment due March 1, 2022. The proceeds were used
to fund improvements to the wastewater system. As of September 30, 2022, the bonds were paid in full.

The City has pledged future water and sewer customer revenue, net of specified operating expenses, to repay water
and sewer system revenue bonds. Management has calculated the net revenues available for the Water and Sewer
debt service as of September 30, 2022 to be $621,192 and the required principal and interest for the debt covered
by the pledge to be $313,151. Management calculates the debt service ratio to be 1.98 for the year ending
September 30, 2022.

Loans from Direct Borrowing

. In fiscal year 2017, the City acquired one vehicle for the Gas Fund in the amount of $24,377 and five vehicles
for the Water, Sewer, and Sanitation Fund in the amount of $114,038. The terms require monthly payments
of $527 including interest at 10.72% for the Gas Fund and $2,499 with interest rates ranging from 10.26% to
12.39% for the Water, Sewer, and Sanitation Fund with the final payments made in 2022.

. In fiscal year 2018, the City acquired one vehicle for the Water, Sewer, and Sanitation Fund in the amount of
$19,342. The term requires monthly payments of $443 with interest rate of 12.96% for five years with final
payment due March 2023. The unpaid principal balance at September 30, 2022 was $2,556.

. In fiscal year 2019, the City acquired three vehicles for the Gas Fund in the amount of $66,428. The terms
require payments of differing amounts for each vehicle including interest ranging from 12.01% to 12.92%
with final payments due in 2024. The unpaid principal balance at September 30, 2022 was $22,664.

. In fiscal year 2020, the City acquired one vehicle for the Gas Fund in the amount of $43,161. The term
requires monthly payments of $936 with interest rate of 10.91% for five years with final payment due in
September 18, 2024. The unpaid principal balance at September 30, 2022 was $20,110.

. In fiscal year 2021, the City acquired two vehicles for the Water, Sewer, and Sanitation Fund in the amount
of $50,746. The terms require monthly payments of $1,048 with interest rate of 8.75% for five years with
final payment due in October 2025. The unpaid principal balance at September 30, 2022 was $33,722.

Right-to-Use Lease Liabilities:

The City has entered into multiple lease agreements as lessee to lease office equipment for the enterprise funds with
lease terms of five to six years for both the Water, Sewer, and Sanitation Fund and the Gas Fund.

For the Water, Sewer, and Sanitation fund a right-to-use lease liability of $20,669 for existing leases at September
30, 2021 has been established based upon the present value calculations of future minimumn lease payments and an
interest rate of 7.14%. The City is required to make monthly payments, during the lease term. During fiscal year
2022, the City made principal payments of $3,498 and interest payments of $1,362 for the Water, Sewer, and
Sanitation Fund.
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NOTE 11 — BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

For the Gas fund a right-to-use lease liability of $16,868 for existing leases at Septernber 30, 2021 has been
established based upon the present value calculations of future minimum lease payments and an interest rate of
7.14%. The City is required to make monthly payments, during the lease term. During fiscal year 2022, the City
made principal payments of 35,960 and interest payments of $1,012 for the Water, Sewer, and Sanitation Fund.

Changes in the Business-type Activities long-term debt is as follows:

Restated Due in
Funded Balance Balance More Than
by 10/01/2021 Issues Payments  09/30/2022  One Year One Year
Water Sewer & Sanitation
Fund (WSS):
Tax and Revenue Certificates
_of Obligation:
2012 Series -

Private Placement WSS h 5728 % - $ 5728 § - $ - 3 -
44% of 2011 Series WSS 319,400 - 26,400 293,000 28,600 264,400
TWDB Series 2005 -

Direct Placement WSS 2,061,000 - 138,000 1,923,000 138,000 1,785,000
General Obligation Refunding

Bonds:

40% of Series 2011 WSS 186,000 - 60,000 126,000 62,000 64,000
Other liabilities:

Loans WSS 76,237 - 39,959 36,278 . 12,416 23,862
Right-to-Use Lease Liability WSS 20,669 - 3,498 17,171 3,755 13,416
Gas Fund:

Loans Gas Fund 70,425 - 27,651 42,774 25,456 17,318
Vendor Settlement (Gas Fund - 143,193 - 143,193 47,731 95,462
Right-to-Use Lease Liability Gas Fund 16,868 - 5,960 10,908 5,143 5,765
Total Business-type Activities $2.756,327 $ 143,193 $ 307,196 $£2.592324 § 323101 $2,269,223

The future principal and interest maturities of long term debt for the Business-type Activities as of September 30,
2022 are as follows:
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

WSS Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation Series 2011 (44%o)

Year Ending September 30, Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 28,600 $ 12,051 $ 40,651
2024 28,600 10,841 39,441
2025 30,800 9,585 40,385
2026 30,800 . 8,282 39,082
2027 33,000 6,933 39,933
2028-2031 141,200 12,796 153,996
Total $ 293,000 $ 60,488 % 353,488
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WSS Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation Series 2005 Direct Placement Texas Water

Development Board

Year Ending September 30, Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 138,000 §% - 138,000
2024 138,000 - 138,000
2025 138,000 - 138,000
2026 138,000 - 138,000
2027 137,000 - 137,000
2028-2032 685,000 = 685,000
2033-2036 549,000 = 549.000
Total $ 1923000 % - 1,923.000

WSS General Obligation Refunding Bonds Series 2011 (40%)

Year Ending September 30, Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 62000 $ 3,386 65,386
2024 64.000 1,140 65,140
Total $ 126,000 § 4,526 130,526

WSS Loans

Year Ending September 30, Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 12,416 § 2,665 15,081
2024 10,910 1,656 12,566
2025 11,983 664 12,647
2026 962 8 970
Total $ 36271  § 4,=993 41,264

WSS Right-to-Use I.ease Liabili

Year Ending September 30, Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 3,755  § 1,105 4,860
2024 4,032 828 4,860
2025 4,330 530 4,860
2026 4.649 211 4,860
2027 405 s 405
Total 3 17,171 2,674 19,845
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NOTE 11 — BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

Gas Loans

Year Ending September 30, Principal Interest Total
2023 3 25456 % 3636 % 29,092
2024 17,318 849 18,167
Total $ 42,774 4485 § 47.259

Gas Right-to-Use Lease Liability

Year Ending September 30, Principal Interest Total
2023 3 5,143 § 581 § 5,724
2024 2,912 316 3,228
2025 2,853 106 2,959
Total $ 10,508 1,003 § 11,911

TOTAL BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - LONG -TERM DEBT

Year Ending September 30, Principal Interest Total
2023 b 275370 $ 23424 3% 298,794
2024 265,772 15,630 281,402
2025 187,966 10,885 198,851
2026 174,411 8,501 182,912
2027 170,405 6,933 177,338
2028-2032 826,200 12,796 838,996
2033-2036 549,000 - 549,000
Total $ 2449.124 % 78.169 $ 2,527,293

NOTE 12 — PENSION PLANS

A. Texas Municipal Retirement System

Plan Description: The City of Alpine participates as one of 892 plans in the defined benefit cash-balance plan
administered by the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS). TMRS is a statewide public retirement plan
created by the State of Texas and administered in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Title 8, Subtitle
G (the TMRS Act) as an agent multiple-employer retirement for employees of Texas participating cities. The TMRS
Act places the general administration and management of TMRS with a six-member, Governor-appointed Board
of Trustees; however, TMRS does not receive any funding from the State of Texas. TMRS’s defined benefit pension
plan is a tax-qualified plan under Section 401 (a} of the Internal Revenue Code. TMRS issues a publicly available
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (Annual Report) that can be obtained at tmrs.com.
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All eligible employees of the City are required to participate in TMRS.

Benefits Provided: TMRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. The plan provisions are adopted by
the governing body of the City, within the options available in the state statutes governing TMRS. Pension benefits
are provided to all of the City's full-time Members, with the exception of firefighters. The matching ratio (City to
Employee) is 2-1 and a member is considered vested after 5 years of service. Members can retire at certain ages,
based on years of service with the City. The City allows members to retire at age 60 and above with 5 or more years
of service or with 20 years of service regardless of age.

At retirement, the Member’s benefit is calculated based on the sum of the Member’s contributions, with interest,
and the city-financed monetary credits with interest and their age requirement and other actuarial factors. The
retiring Member may select one of seven monthly benefit payment options. Members may also choose to receive
a portion of their benefit as a lump sum distribution in an amount equal to 12, 24, or 36 monthly payments, which
cannot exceed 75% of the Member contributions and interest.

Employees covered by benefit terms

At the December 31, 2021 valuation and measurement date, the following employees were covered by the benefit
terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 36
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 98
Active employees 82

Total 216

Contributions: Member contribution rates in TMRS are either 5%, 6%, or 7% of the Member’s total compensation,
and the City matching percentages are either 100%, 150%, or 200%, both as adopted by the governing body of the
City. Under the state law governing TMRS, the contribution rate for each city is determined annually by the actuary,
using the Entry Age Normmal (EAN) actuarial cost method. The City’s contribution rate is based on the liabilities
created from the benefit plan options selected by the City and any changes in benefits or actual experience over time.
A municipality may elect to increase or reduce its matching ratio effective January 1 of a calendar year. The City
elected a matching ratio of 2 to 1 (200%). Upon an employee’s retirement, the City matches the accumulated
employee contributions plus interest eamned.

Employees for the City of Alpine were required to contribute 5% of their annual compensation during the fiscal year.
The contribution rates for the City for the calendar months in 2021 was 2.01% and 2.13% for the calendar months
in 2022. The City’s contributions to TMRS for the year ended September 30, 2022, were $72,178 and were equal
to the required contributions.

Net Pension Asset: The City’s Net Pension Asset (NPA) was measured as of December 31, 2021, and the Total

Pension Liability (TPL) used to calculate the Net Pension Asset was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that
date,
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NOTE 12 — PENSION PLANS (continued)

Actuarial Assumptions: The Total Pension Liability in the December 31, 2021 actuarial valuation was determined
using the following actuarial assumptions:

Inflation 2.5% per year
Qverall payroll growth 2.75% per year, adjusted down for population declines, if any
Investment Rate of Return 6.75%, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation

Salary increases were based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active members are based on the PUB(16)
mortality tables with the Public Safety table used for males and the General Employee table used for females.
Mortality rates for healthy retirces and beneficiaries are based on the Gender-distinct 2019 Municipal Retirees of
Texas mortality tables. The rates for actives, healthy retirees and beneficiaries are projected on a fully generational
basis by Scale UMP to account for future mortality improvements. For disabled annuitants, the same mortality tables
for healthy retirees is used with a 4-year set-forward for males and a 3-year set-forward for females. In addition,
a 3.5% and 3.0% minimum mortality rate is applied, for males and females respectively, to reflect the impairment
for younger members who become disabled. The rates are projected on a fully generational basis by Scale UMP
to account for future mortality improvements subject to the floor.

The actuarial assumptions were developed primarily from the actuarial investigation of the experience of the TMRS
over the four-year period from December 31, 2014 to December 31, 2018, They were adopted in 2019 and first used
in the December 31, 2019 actuarial valuation. The post-retirement mortality assumption for Annuity Purchase Rates
{APRs) is based on the Mortality Experience Investigation Study covering 2009 through 2011, and dated December
31, 2013.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments is 6.75%. The pension plan’s policy in regard
to the allocation of invested assets is established and may be amended by the TMRS Board of Trustees. Plan assets
are managed on a total return basis with an emphasis on both capital appreciation as well as the production of
income, in order to satisfy the short-term and long-term funding needs of TMRS.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method
in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage
and by adding expected inflation of 2.5%. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return
for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:
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Long-Term Expected Real Rate of Return

Asset Class Target Allocation {Arithmetic)

Global Public Equity 35.0% 7.55%
Core Fixed Income 6.0% 2.00%
Non-Core Fixed Income 20.0% 5.68%
Other Public and Private

Markets 12.0% 7.22%
Real Estate 12.0% 6.85%
Hedge Funds 5.0% 5.35%
Private Equity 10.0% 10.00%

Total 100.0%

Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 6.75%. The long-term municipal
bond rate is 1.84% (based on the daily rate closest to but not later than the measurement date of the Fidelity 20-year
Municipal GO AA Index). The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that member
and employer contributions will be made at the rates specified in statute. Based on that assumption, the pension
plan’s Fiduciary Net Position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current
active and inactive members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was

applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the Total Pension Liability.
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Changes in the Net Pension Liability (Asset) . Increase (Decrease)
Net Pension
Plan Fiduciary Liability
Total Pension Net Position (Asset)
Liability (a) __(b) (a)+b)
Balance at 12/31/2020 $ 7077053 § 8897956 $ (1,820,903)
Changes for the year:
Service cost 322,710 - 322,710
Interest (on the Total Pension Liability) 472,985 - 472,985
Change of benefit terms - - -
Difference between expected and actual experience (57,187) - (57,187
Changes of assumptions - - -
Contributions - employer 74,046 (74,046)
Contributions - employee 184,195 (184,195)
Net investment income 1,157,994 (1,157,994)
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee
contributions (462,448) (462,448) -
Administrative expense - (5,367) 5,367
Other changes - 37 {37)
Net changes 276,060 948,457 (672,397)
Balance at 12/31/2021 S 7353113 § 9846413 § (2,493,300

Sensitivity of the net pension asset to changes in the discount rate: The following presents the net pension asset
of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 6.75%, as well as what the City’s net pension asset would be if it
were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (5.75%}) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.75%)
than the current rate:

Current Single Discount

1% Decrease Rate Assumption 1% Increase
(5.75%) {6.75%) {7.75%)
City’s net pension asset $ (1,530,751) § (2493,300) 3 (3,289,245)
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Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position: Detailed information about the pension plan’s Fiduciary Net Position is
available in a separately-issued TMRS financial report. That report may be obtained on the Internet at
www.imrs.com.

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to TMRS:
For the year ended September 30, 2022, the City recognized pension expense (income) of ($251,569). At September
30, 2022, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from
the following sources:

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual economic experience $ - $ 57,753
Changes in actuarial assumptions - 853
Difference between projected and actual investment earnings - 593,836
Changes in Proportionate Share 56,142 56,143

Contributions subsequent fo the measurement date 53,317 -
Total 3 109459 § 708,585

The $53,317 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions subsequent
to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability or increase in net pension asset
for the year ending September 30, 2023. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ending September 30,

2023 $ (137,606)
2024 (274,818)
2025 (128,545)
2026 (111,474)
2027 -
Thereafter 5
Total $ {652,443)
Changes in Net Pension Asset
Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Reductions Balance
Net Pension Asset 3 1,820,903 § 688,615 § (16,218) § 2,493,300
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B. Texas Emergency Services Retirement System - Alpine Volunteer Fire Department

Plan Description: Alpine Volunteer Fire Department (AVFD) offers a retirement plan to eligible employees
through the Texas Emergency Services Retirement System (TESRS). TESRS administers a cost-sharing multiple
employer pension system (the System) established and administered by the State of Texas to provide pension
benefits for emergency services personnel who serve without significant monetary remuneration. TESRS is an
agency of the State of Texas and its financial records comply with state statutes and regulations. The nine member
Board of Trustees, appointed by the Governor, establishes policy for the administration of the Texas Emergency
Services Retirement System.

The TESRS was created as a standalone agency by the 83rd Legislature via the passage of SB 220, effective
September 1, 2013, to assume the related functions of the abolished Office of the Fire Fighters’ Pension
Commissioner. The System has been in existence since 1977. TESRS, which is under the authority of Title 8,
Subtitle H, Chapters 861-865 of the Texas Government Code, provides death and disability benefits to active
volunteer fire fighters and first responders, and a pension to members with vested service, as well as to their
survivor/beneficiaries. For financial reporting purposes, the State of Texas is considered the primary reporting
government. TESRS’ financial statements are included in the State’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
TESRS issues a publicly available Annual Financial Report, which includes financial statements, notes, and required
supplementary information, which can be obtained at www.tesrs.org. The separately issued actuarial valuations
which may be of interest are also available at the same link.

Benefits Provided: Senate Bill 411, 65® Legislature, Regular Session (1977), created TESRS and established the
applicable benefit provisions. The 79® Legislature, Regular Session (2005), re-codified the provisions and gave the
TESRS Board of Trustees authority to establish vesting requirements, contribution levels, benefit formulas, and
eligibility requirements by board rule. The benefit provisions include retirement benefits as well as death and
disability benefits. Members are 50% vested after the tenth year of service, with the vesting percent increasing 10%
for each of the next five years of service so that a member becomes 100% vested with 15 years of service.

Upon reaching age 55, each vested member may retire and receive a monthly pension equal to his vested percent
multiplied by six times the governing body’s average monthly contribution over the member’s years of qualified
service. For years of service in excess of 15 years, this monthly benefit is increased at the rate of 6.2% compounded
annually. There is no provision for automatic post-retirement benefit increases.

On and off-duty death benefits and on-duty disability benefits are dependent on whether or not the member was

engaged in the performance of duties at the time of death or disability. Death benefits include a lump sum amount
or continuing monthly payments to a member’s surviving spouse and dependent children.
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NOTE 12 — PENSION PLANS (continued)

Funding Policy: Contributions are made by governing bodies for the participating departments. No contributions
are required from the individuals who are members of the System, nor are they allowed. The goveming bodies of
each participating department are required to make contributions for each month a member performs emergency
services for a department (this minimum contributions is $36 per member and the department may make a higher
monthly contribution for its members). This is referred to as a Part One contribution, which is the legacy portion
of the System contribution that directly impacts future retiree annuities.

The state is required to contribute an amount necessary to make the System “actuarially sound” each year, which
may not exceed one-third of the total of all contributions made by participating governing bodies in a particular year.

The board rule defining contributions was amended in 2014 to add the potential for actuarially determined Part Two
contributions that would be required only if the expected future annual contributions from the state are not enough
with the Part One contributions to provide an adequate contribution arrangement as determined by the most recent
actuarial valuation. This Part Two portion, which is actuarially determined as a percent of the Part One portion (not
to exceed 15%), is to be actuarially adjusted every two years based on the most recent actuarial valuation. Based
on the August 31, 2022 actuarial valuation, the Part Two contributions are not required for an adequate contribution
arrangement.

Additional contributions may be made by governing bodies within two years of joining the System, to grant up to
15 years of credit for service per member. Prior service purchased must have occurred before the department began
participation in the System.

A small subset of participating departments have a different contribution arrangement which is being phased out
over time. In this arrangement, contributions made in addition to the monthly contributions for active members, are
made by local governing bodies on a pay-as-you-go basis for members who were pensioners when their respective
departments merged into the System. There is no actuarial impact associated with this arrangement as the pay-as-
you-go contributions made by these govemning bodies are always equal to benefit payments paid by the System.

At August 31, 2022, there were 239 contributing fire or emergency services departments participating in TESRS,
Eligible participants include volunteer emergency services personnel who are members in good standing of a
participating department.

Contributions: The contribution requirement per active emergency services personnel member per month is not
actuarially determined. Rather, the minimum contribution provisions were set by board rule, and there is no

maximum contribution rate.

The City makes biannual contributions to the TESRS on behalf of the Alpine Volunteer Fire Department. The City’s
total contribution to TESRS for fiscal year ending September 30, 2022 was $4,248.
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The pension expense for AVFD is based on their proportionate share of the collective pension expense based on
TESRS’ fiscal year ended August 31, 2022, as shown in the following table:

AVFD Pension
Expense
Service Cost $ 1,354
Interest 10,001
Changes in benefit provisions
Projected earnings on pension plan investments (9,328)
Amortization of differences between projected and actual earnings
on plan investments 2,872
Amortization of changes in assumptions (120)
Amortization of differences between expected and actual experience 440
Pension plan administrative expense 210
Change in Benefit Provisions 2,114
$ 7,543

Actuarial Assumptions: The total pension liability in the August 31, 2022 actuarial valuation was determined using
the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 3.00%
Salary increases N/A
Investment rate of return 7.5%, net of pension plan investment expense,

including inflation

Mortality rates were based on the PubS-2010 (public safety) below-median income mortality tables for employees
and for retirees, projected for mortality improvement generationally using projection scale MP-2019.

The actuarial assumptions were based on the results of an actuarial experience study of the System for the six plan
years ending August 31, 2018.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method
in which expected future net real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and
inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These components are combined to produce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage
(currently 4.61%}) and by adding expected inflation (3.0%). In addition, the final 7.5% assumption was selected by
rounding down. The target allocation and expected arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are
summarized in the following table:
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Long-Term Expected
Net Real Rate of
Asset Class Target Allocation Return
Equities
Large cap domestic 20.0% 5.83%
Small/mid cap domestic 10.0% 5.94%
Developed international 15.0% 6.17%
Emerging markets 5.0% 7.36%
Global infrastructure 5.0% 6.61%
Real estate 10.0% 4.48%
Multi asset income 5.0% 3.86%
Fixed income 30.0% 1.95%
Cash 0.0% 0.00%
Total 100.0% -
Weighted average - 4.61%

Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.5%. No projection of cash flows
was used to determine the discount rate because the August 31, 2022 actuarial valuation showed that expected
contributions would pay the normal cost and amortize the unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) in 30 years
using the conservative level dollar amortization method. Because of the 30-year amortization period with the
conservative amortization method, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is expected to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments of the current active and inactive members. Therefore, the long-term expected
rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the
total pension liability.

Sensitivity Analysis of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate: The following presents the
net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 7.5%, in comparison to what the City’s net
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (6.5%) or |
percentage point higher (8.5%) than the current rate.

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
6.5% 7.5% 8.5%
Net pension liability/ (asset) B 55998 % 35,696 % 19,256

The System’s net pension liability was measured as of August 31, 2022, and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of August 31, 2022. The City’s
proportion of the net pension liability was based on the City’s contributions to the pension plan relative to the
contributions of all employers to the plan for the period September 1, 2021 through August 31, 2022.

At August 31, 2022, the City’s proportion of the collective net pension liability was 0.087% which was a decrease
of 0.003% from its proportion as of August 31, 2021.

82



CITY OF ALPINE, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

NOTE 12 — PENSION PLANS (continued)

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to TESRS: For the year ended
September 30, 2022, the City recognized pension expense of $1,099 and revenue of $1,099 for support provided
by the State.

For the City’s accounting year ending September 30, 2022, the annual pension cost for the TESRS plan for its
members was $4,422, and the actual contributions were $4,248. As of September 30, 2022, the City had deferred
inflows and outflows of resources related to the TESRS pension as follows:

Deferred Outflows  Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 1,360 § -
Changes in assumptions - 179

Net differences between projected and actual investment earnings 13,163 -
Change in proportionate share - 2,013

Contributions made subsequent to measurement date - -
$ 14523  § 2,192

As there were no deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from City contributions subsequent
to the measurement date, there will be no reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended September 30,
2023.

Amounts currently reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions, excluding contributions made
subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ended:

2023 3 2,276

2024 2,419

2025 2,683

2026 4953

Thereafter -
Total 3 12,331
Changes in Net Pension Liability
Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Reductions Balance
Net Pension Liability 3 9643 % 30998 $ {(4,945) % 35,696
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NOTE 13 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Plan Description: The City is one of 783 participating cities of the plan and provides a defined benefit group term
life insurance death benefit through the Supplemental Death Benefits Fund (SDBF) administered the by Texas
Municipal Retirement System (“TMRS”). This is a voluntary program in which participating member cities may
elect, by ordinance, to provide supplemental death benefits for their active members, with optional coverage for their
retirees. The City has elected to offer these benefits to retirees of the municipality. As the SDBF covers both active
and retiree participants with no segregation of assets, the SDBF is considered to be an unfunded OPEB plan (i.e.
no assets are accurmnulated). As such, the SDBF is considered to be a single-employer unfunded OPEB plan, with
benefit payments treated as being equal to the employer’s yearly contributions for retirees.

Benefits: Benefits payments are similar to group-term life insurance benefits, and are paid to the designated
beneficiaries upon the receipt of an approved application for payment. The death benefit for active members
provides a lump-sum payment approximately equal to the member’s annual salary {(calculated based on the
member’s actual eamings for the 12-month period preceding the month of death). The death benefit for retirees is
considered an other postemployment benefit (“OPEB™) and is a fixed amount of $7,500. The obligations of this plan
are payable only from the SDBF and are not an obligation of, or a claim against, the Pension Trust Fund. There was
no sharing of benefit-related costs with inactive employees for the plan year.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms: At the December 31, 2021 actuarial valuation and measurement date, the
following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees currently receiving benefits 25
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 5
Active employees 82

Total 112

Membership counts for inactive employees currently receiving or entitled to but not yet receiving benefits will differ
from those eligible under the TMRS pension plan as they include only those eligible for a SDBF benefit (i.e.
excludes beneficiaries, non-vested terminations due a refund, etc.).

Contributions: The City contributes to the SDBF at a contractually required rate as determined by an annual
actuarial valuation. The rate is based on the mortality and service experience of all employees covered by the benefit
and the demographics specific to the workforce of the city. There is a one-year delay between the actuarial valuation
that serves as the basis for the City’s contribution rate and the calendar year when the rate goes into effect. The
contributions to the SDBF are pooled for investment purposes with those of the Pension Trust Fund. The TMRS
Act requires the Pension Trust Fund to allocate investment income to the SDBF on an annual basis. The funding
policy of this plan is to assure that adequate resources are available to meet all death benefit payments for the
upcoming year. As such, contributions fund the covered active member and retiree deaths on a pay-as-you-go basis.

The City’s contribution rates are certified annually by the Board of Trustees which is responsible for establishing
and maintaining the funding policy. These rates are actuarially determined and are based upon the plan provisions
in effect as of April 1, 2021 and the actuarial assumptions and methodology adopted by the Board. The Board’s
current policy is that the contribution rates determined by a given actuarial valuation become effective one (1) year
after the valuation date. The City may terminate coverage under and discontinue participation in the SDBF by
adopting an ordinance before November 1 of any year to be effective the following January.
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Schedule of Contributions - (Retiree-only portion of the rate, for OPEB):

Total SDB Retiree Portion of SDB
Plan/Calendar Year Contribution Rate Contribution Rate
2021 0.23% 0.12%
2022 0.20% 0.11%

The City’s contributions to the SDBF for the year ended September 30, 2022 were $8,470.

Total OPEB Liability: The total OPEB liability (TOL) shown in this report is based on an actuarial valuation
performed as of December 31, 2021 and a measurement date of December 31, 2021; as such, no roll-forward is
required.

Actuarial Assumptions: The total OPEB liability in the December 31, 2021 actuarial valuation was determined
using the following actuarial assumptions:

Inflation 2.5% per year

Salary increases 3.5% to 11.50% including inflation

Discount rate* 1.84%

Retirees’ share of benefit-related costs $0

Administrative expenses All administrative expenses are paid through the

Pension Trust and accounted for under reporting
requirements under GASB Statement No. 68.

*The discount rate was based on the Fidelity Index’s “20-year Municipal GO AA Index" rate as of December 31,
2021

The actuarial assumptions were developed primarily from the actuarial investigation of the experience of TMRS
over the four year period from December 31, 2014 to December 31, 2018. They were adopted in 2019 and first used
in the December 31, 2019 actuarial valuation. For purposes of developing the SDBF contribution rates, no other
demographic assumptions are applicable. Mortality rates for the SDBF were the same as those used for the pension
trust fund. See the TMRS pension plan note for mortality rate information. For purposes of calculating an
employer’s actuarially determined contribution rate, the one-year term cost is used. The actuarial cost method being
used is known as the Entry Age Normal Actuarial Cost Method.

Changes in Actuarial Assumptions and Methods: Generally, changes in assumptions will only be the annual
change in the municipal bond index rate.

Investment Return and Valuation of Assets: The TMRS Act requires the Pension Trust Fund to allocate
investment income to the SDBF on an annual basis, each December 31 based on the mean balance in the SDBF
during the year. Thus, the SDBF receives a statutory interest credit of 5% allocated annually and is not dependent
on investment earnings. Assets in the SDBF are valued at fund value (or fund balance); however, since the
contribution rates are based just on the one-year term costs, assets are not included in developing the rate.
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Discount Rate: The applicable discount rate for an unfunded OPEB is based on an index of tax exempt 20-year
municipal bond rates rated as AA or higher. As of December 31, 2021, the discount rate used in the development
of the Total OPEB Liability was 1.84% compared to 2.00% as of December 31, 2020.

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability

Total OPEB Liability beginning of year 3 198,535
Change for the year:
Service Cost 16,947
Interest on Total OPEB Liability 4,096
Changes of benefit terms including TMRS plan participation -
Differences between expected and actual experience (7,660)
Changes in assumptions or other inputs 6,066
Benefit payments (4,421)
Net changes 15,028
Total OPEB Liability - end of year M 213,563

Sensitivity Analysis of the Total OPEB liability to Changes in the Discount Rate: The following presents the
total OPEB liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 1.84%, as well as what the City’s total OPEB
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (1.00%) or 1 percentage
point higher (3.00%) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
0.84% 1.84% 2.84%
Total OPEB liability 3 257,545 § 213,563 § 178,745

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to TMRS
OPEB: For the year ended September 30, 2022, the City recognized OPEB expense of $26,919. At September 30,
2022, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the
following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual economic experience  $ - $ 18,033
Changes in actuarial assumptions 36,031 2,704
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 3,046 -
Total $ 39.077 _§ 20,737
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The $3,046 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from contributions subsequent to
the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the total OPEB liability for the year ending September
30,2023. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized
in OPEB expense as follows:

Year Ending September 30,
2023 $ 3,891
2024 3,303
2025 5,752
2026 2,605
2027 (257)
Thereafter =
Total $ 15,294
Changes in Total OPEB Liability:
Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Reductions Balance
Total OPEB Liability $ 198,535 % 27,109 § (12,081} $ 213,563

NOTE 14 - HEALTHCARE COVERAGE

The City had a self-insured health plan through the Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Employee Benefits
Pool covering substantially all employees through September 30, 2020. The plan covered major medical expenses,
dental and vision. Effective October 1, 2020, the City had a fully funded health insurance plan through Blue Cross
Blue Shield. As a fully funded plan, the City no longer funds claims. In addition, the City offers Vision and Dental
insurance through Humana for employees and dependents. The City pays the premiums for the covered employees
for all three plans. The employee premiums for health, vision, and dental are $573, $5, and $31, respectively.
Employees have the option to also add their dependents to the plans. The City also contributes a portion of the health
premium for employee dependents to encourage employees to insure their family members as well. The amount the
City contributes for employee dependents and/or family is forty to fifty percent of the premium.

In addition, the City provided a Health Reimbursement Arrangement program card to employees. Each card is pre-
loaded with a prorated amount and is only available for the plan year which coincides with the fiscal year of the
City. This provides additional resources for employees to cover medical costs. Management and Council will re-
evaluate each year in order to determine whether or not to renew the program; and if renewed, how much will be
provided to the employees.
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During the year ending September 30, 2022, other revenues from various sources consisted of the following:

Total
Hotel and NonMajor Governmental
General Fund Motel Fund Funds Funds
Road repair fees 3 50,000 $ - $ - 3 50,000
Easement revenue 15,815 - - 15,815
Insurance recovery 6,607 - 6,263 12,870
Accident report fees 1,530 - - 1,530
Settlement 11,526 - - 11,526
Permit fees - 7,500 7,500
Court seized funds 9,437 - - 9,437
Other miscellaneous 17,092 - - 17,092
Total other revenue $ 112,007 §$ 7,500 % 6,263 § 125,770
NOTE 16 - FUND BALANCE REPORTING
The following schedule discloses the details of fund balance classifications at September 30, 2022:
Hotel and Non-Major
General Fund Motel Fund Funds Total
Fund Balances:
Restricted for:
Federal or State Grants 3 - $ - 3 77,967 $ 77.967
Debt services - - 104,966 104,966
Tourism activities - 1,090,990 - 1,090,990
Police Department
Abandon Vehicle Funds - - 24,471 24471
Other - - 5,264 5,264
Total restricted - 1,090,990 212,668 1,303,658
Committed:
Capital Improvements 229,813 - - 229,813
Creek Trail Reserve 198,050 - - 198,050
Fire Department 282,962 - - 282,962
Pueblo Nuevo Park - - 75,026 75,026
Total committed 710,825 - 75,026 785,851
Unassigned 2,220,051 - - 2,220,051
Total fund balances $ 2930876 % __1,090,990 $ 287694 § 4,309,56__0=

88



CITY OF ALPINE, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

NOTE 17 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

During the normal course of business, the City is subject to various legal claims. As of September 30, 2022,
management is not aware of any such claim which would have a material adverse effect on the financial statements,
and accordingly no provision has been accrued.

Federal and State Funding
The City participates in numerous state and federal grant programs which are governed by various rules and

regulations of the grantor agencies; therefore, to the extent that the City has not complied with the rules and
regulations governing the grants, refunds of any money received may be required and the collectibility of any related
receivable at September 30, 2022 may be impaired. In the opinion of administration, there are no significant
contingent liabilities relating to compliance with the rules and regulations governing the respective grants; therefore,
no provision has been recorded in the accompanying financial statements for such contingencies. Management
asserts that the City is in compliance with Texas Water Code , Chapter 16, Section 16.356 (a), and that the City has
not used any revenue received from fees collected from a water supply or sewer service constructed in whole or in
part from the economically distressed areas program account for purposes other than utility purposes.

NOTE 18 — RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and
omissions; workers compensation; environmental claims; and natural disasters. The Council maintains insurance
policies through Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool covering all structural property, automobiles,
dishonesty, legal liability errors and omissions, machinery, personal property, and general liability to mitigate the
effect of potential risks. There have been no significant reductions to insurance coverage from prior years and
settlements have not exceeded insurance coverage.

The City has joined the Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool Workers’ Compensation Joint
Insurance Fund. The interlocal agreement with the pool provides that the pool will be self-sustaining through
member premiums. The Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool publishes its own financial reports
for the year ended September 2022 which can be obtained from the Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk
Pool, Austin, Texas.

NOTE 19 - LANDFILL

Numerous state and federal laws and regulations require the City to place a final cover on its landfill site when no
longer accepting waste and to perform certain monitoring and maintenance functions at the site for thirty years after
closure. Such closure and postclosure costs will be incurred near or after the effective date that the landfill stops
accepting deposits. Consequently, the City must begin reporting a portion of these costs as an operating expense
when the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) releases final regulations. The Texas Administrative
Code requires landfill owners to demonstrate financial assurance that they will have sufficient financial resources
to satisfy closure and post-closure care expenses at such time as these become payable. The regulations provide
various means by which a municipality may demonstrate financial assurance. For the year ended September 30,
2022, the City met all of the financial tests required by the TCEQ.

89



CITY OF ALPINE, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

NOTE 19 — LANDFILL (continued)

At September 30, 2022, total closure and postclosure costs are estimated at $2,527,140. The estimated closure and
postclosure costs recorded as a liability are $850,777 and $243,417, respectively, for a total of $1,094,194. The
liability for closure and postclosure care costs is based on landfill capacity used to date. The cost components are
based on federal, state, or local laws or regulations conceming closure and post-closure care. Actual cost may be
higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in regulations. As of September 30, 2022, the City has
$80,429 to finance the estimated closure and post-closure costs.

At September 30, 2022, the City was operating 5 cells utilizing approximately 32.4 acres of the 71.5 acres in the
designated landfill area resulting in approximately 45.3% capacity used.

There are 12 cells in this landfill and the remaining estimated life is approximately 38 years.

NOTE 20 - TOP TEN TAXPAYERS

The following businesses represent the top ten taxpayers for the City:

Name Taxable Value
AEP Texas North Company ¥ 5,393,800
WTG Fuels Inc 4,875,622
C & K Partnership LLC 4,712,328
Holiday Inn Express & Suites 4,706,345
Hampton Inn Alpine, LLC 4,100,000
NGP VI Alpine TX LLC 3,508,356
Union Pacific RR Co 3,069,270
$3 Hospitality LLC 3,034,028
McCoy Corporation 2,953,689
Big Bend Regional Medical 2,880,000
3 39.233.438

NOTE 21 — RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

From time to time, the City may enter into transactions with related parties through the normal course of business.
If a council member has a conflict of interest, proper documentation is completed and he/she is required to abstain
from any discussion or voting regarding the matter. Management is not aware of any material related party
transactions that occurred during the year ending September 30, 2022.
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NOTE 22 - SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

Beginning March 2020, the COVID-19 virus was declared a global pandemic. Business continuity, including supply
chains and consumer demand across a broad range of industries and countries have been severely impacted as
governments and their citizens take significant and unprecedented measures to mitigate the consequences of the
pandemic. In March 2021, the American Rescue Plan Act was signed by the President providing additional federal
stimulus to aid public health and economic recovery from the Covid-19 Pandemic. As part of this Act, $350 billion
was set aside as Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, emergency funding for state, local, territorial
and tribal governments. The City of Alpine has been designated as a Non-Entitlement Unit of Local Government
(population under 50,000) and receives funding directly from the Texas Department of Emergency Management
(TDEM). The City has received $1,488,535 as part of the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds in
two separate tranches and is included in the unearned revenue in the General Fund as of September 30, 2022.

NOTE 23 - RESTATEMENT

As part of the City’s implementation of GASB 87, a restatement was necessary to establish the opening balances as
of October 1, 2021 for the right-to-use lease assets and the right-to-use lease liability in the amount of $14,800,
$20,669, and $16,868 for the governmental activities, Water, Sewer, and Sanitation Fund, and the Gas Fund,
respectively. Similarly, for leases with the City as lessor, opening balances had to be established for the leases
receivables and the deferred inflow of resources related to leases in the amount of $50,955 and $278,488 for the
General Fund and Airport Fund, respectively. The restatement had no impact on net position.

NOTE 24 - NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The City has not completed the process of evaluating the impact on its financial position that will result from
adopting the following Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements:

* GASB No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations, effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2021. GASB
No. 91 requires issuers to disclose information about their conduit debt obligations. Management will be
analyzing the effects of this pronouncement and plans to adopt it, if applicable, by the effective date.

* GASB No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Arrangements, effective for
periods beginning after June 15, 2022, GASB No. 94 improves financial reporting by addressing issues
related to public private and public-public partnerships arrangements (PPPs) as well as availability payment
arrangements (APAs). Management will be analyzing the effects of this pronouncement and plans to adopt
it, if applicable, by the effective date.

* GASB No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements (SBITA), effective for fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2022. GASB No. 96 defines a subscription-based information technology
arrangement, establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use subscription asset and a corresponding
subscription liability, and provides the capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscription payments.
Management will be analyzing the effects of this pronouncement and plans to adopt it, if applicable, by the
effective date.
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NOTE 24 — NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS (continued)

* GASB No. 99, Omnibus 2022, effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022 and 2023, depending
on the topic. GASB No. 99 enhances comparability in accounting and financial reporting and improves the
consistency of authoritative literature by addressing practice issues and adding guidance on accounting and
financial reporting for financial guarantees. Management will be analyzing the effects of this pronouncement
and plans to adopt it, if applicable, by the effective date.

92



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

93



CITY OF ALPINETEXAS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES ANDCHANGES INFUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND

FORTHE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2022

EXHIBIT G-1

Data Actual Variance With
Amounts Final Budget
Sl Budgsted Amounts (GAAP BASIS) Positvelor
Codes Original Final (Negative)
REVENUES:
Taxes:
5110 Property Taxes 1,992,874 § 1,992,874 § 1,808,924 § (183,950)
5120 (General Sales and Use Taxes 1,850,000 1,850,000 2,278,723 428,723
5170 Franchise Tax 100,000 100,000 86,536 (13,464)
5180  Other Taxes 32,000 32,000 26,983 {5,017
5190 Penalty and Interest on Taxes - - 37,290 37,290
5200 Licenses and Pemmits 104,500 104,500 105,323 823
5300 Intergovernmental Revenue and Grants 1,700 1,700 1,368 (332)
5400 Charges for Services 874,844 874,844 1,053,251 178,407
5510 Fines 42,400 42,400 71,241 28,841
5610 Investment Eamings 3,100 3,100 22,909 19,809
5620 Rents and Royalties 12,894 12,894 6,665 (6,229)
5640  Contributions & Donations from Private Sources 2,100 2,100 - {2,100)
5700 QOther Revenue 114,950 114,950 112,007 (2,943}
5020 Total Revenues 5,131,362 5,131,362 5,611,220 479,858
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
0100 General Government 1,708,163 1,705,313 1,406,197 299,116
6200 Public Safety 1,759,248 1,784,258 1,397,930 386,328
0300  Public Works 1,828,726 1,828,726 1,419,573 409,153
0400  Health and Welfare 379,553 367,053 305,936 61,117
0500  Culture and Recreation 437,220 437,220 361,183 76,037
Debt Service:
0710 Principal on Debt 162,150 150,65¢ 117,050 33,600
0720  Interest on Debt - - 20,707 (20,707)
6030 Total Expenditures 6,275,060 6,273,220 5,028,576 1,244,644
1100  Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) (1,143,698) (1,141,858) 582,644 1,724,502
Exnenditures

QTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES):

7912 Sale of Real and Personal Property 40,000 40,000 23,260 (16,740)
7913 Right to Use Leases - - 63,915 63,915
7915 Transfers In 1,178,698 1,178,698 - (1,178,698)
8911 Transfers Qut (Use) (75,000) (75,000) {75,000) 5
7080 Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1,143,698 1,143,698 12,175 {1,131,523)
1200 Net Change in Fund Balances - 1,840 594,819 592,979
0100 Fund Balance - October 1 (Beginning) 2,336,057 2,336,057 2,336,057 -
3000  Fund Balance - September 30 (Ending) 2,336,057 § 2,337,897 § 2,930,876 § 592,979

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statermnent,



EXHIBITG-2
CITY OF ALPINETEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES INFUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL -HOTEL AND MOTEL TAX FUND
FORTHE YEAR ENDEYSEPTEMBER 30,2022

Data Actual Variance With
Control Final Budget
Codes Budgeted Amounts GAAPBASIS Positive or
Original Final (See Note) (Negative)
REVENUES:
5150 Gross Receipts Business Tax $ 600,000 3% 675000 $ 743428 § 68,428
5300 Intergovernmental Revenue and Grants - - 1,645 1,645
5610 Investment Eamings - - 8,645 8,645
5640 Contributions & Donations from Private - - 18,194 18,194
5700 Other Revenue - - 7,500 7,500
5020 Total Revenues 600,000 675,000 779,412 104,412
EXPENDITURES:
0500 Culture and Recreation 879,859 879,859 883,347 (3,488)
Debt Service:
0710 Principal on Debt - - 1,426 (1,426)
0720 Interest on Debt - - 393 (398)
6030 Total Expenditures 879,859 879,859 885,171 {5,312)
1200 Change in Fund Balance (279,859) (204,859) (105,759) 99,100
0100 Fund Balance - October 1 (Beginning) 1,196,749 1,196,749 1,196,749 -
3000 Fund Balance - September 30 (Ending) b3 916,890 $ 991,890 $ 1,090,990 § 99,100

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF ALPINE, TEXAS

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGET

September 30, 2022

Budgeting and Budgetary Control

The City Council follows these procedures in establishing the annual budget:

Not later than forty-five (45) days prior to the close of the fiscal year, the City Manager shall submit to the City
Council a budget for the ensuing fiscal year beginning on the following October 1. The operating budget includes
proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. The budget shall provide a complete financial plan of all
City funds and activities for the ensuing fiscal year. The total of proposed expenditures shall not exceed the total
of estimated income plus any accumulated surplus. Public hearings are conducted at which all interested persons’
comments concerning the budget are heard. The budget is legally enacted by the City Council through passage of
an ordinance. The Council may adopt the budget with or without amendment. In amending the budget, it may add
or increase programs or amounts and may delete or decrease any programs or amounts, except expenditures required
by law or for debt service, provided that no amendment to the budget shall increase the authorized expenditures to
an amount greater than the total of estimated income plus any accumulated surplus. The Council shall adopt the
budget on or before the fifteenth day of the twelfth month of the fiscal year currently ending. If it fails to adopt the
budget by this date, the amounts appropriated for current operation for the current fiscal year shall be deemed adopted
for the ensuing fiscal year on a month-to-month basis, with all items in it prorated accordingly, until such time as
the Council adopts a budget for the ensuing fiscal year. Adoption of the budget shall constitute appropriations of
the amounts specified therein as expenditures from the funds indicated and shall constitute a levy of the property tax
therein proposed, provided that in no event shall such levy exceed the legal limit provided by the Jaws and
Constitution of the State of Texas.

If during the fiscal year the City Manager certifies that there are available for appropriation revenues in excess of
those estimated in the budget, the Council by ordinance may make supplemental appropriations for the year up to
the amount of the excess. At any time during the fiscal year the City Manager may transfer part or all of any
unencumbered appropriation balance among programs within a department, office, or agency, up to a limit set by
the City Council. The City Manager may make written request to the Council to transfer balances in excess of said
limit with Council Approval. No funds may be transferred to increase a salary appropriation without the approval
of the Council. Upon written request by the City Manager, the Council may by ordinance transfer part or all of any
unencumbered appropriation balance from one department, office, or agency to another.

Every appropriation, except an appropriation for a capital expenditure, shall lapse at the close of the fiscal year to
the extent that it has not been expended or encumbered. An appropriation for a capital expenditure shall continue
until the purpose of any such appropriation shall be deemed abandoned if three years pass without any disbursement
from or encumbrance of the appropriation.

Budgetary Basis of Accounting

The City’s budget is prepared on a modified accrual basis of accounting.
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CITY OF ALPINE, TEXAS

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGET (Continued)

September 30, 2022

Expenditures in Excess of Appropriations

The Budgetary Comparison Schedules, included in the required supplementary information, present a comparison
of the original and final amended budgets for the period to actual results of operations for the General Fund and the
Hotel and Motel Fund for the year ending September 30, 2022. In the General Fund, the City budgeted both the
principal and interest for debt in one line item, thus the line item for interest is not reflecting a specified budgeted
amount. However, it was budgeted as part of the principal line item and the total expended was within the total
budgeted amount for those two categories. In addition, the total expenditures for the General fund remained within
the total budgeted amounts. The Hotel and Motel Fund had a few small negative variances in expenditures due to several
factors. The principal and interest variance is related to the implementation of GASB 87 as lease payments are now being
shown as principal and interest and not rental expense. In addition, due to revenue being higher than anticipated, there
was a push at the end of the fiscal year to spend the required 50% of revenue on advertising which caused the small
negative variance in the Culture and Recreation function. Even though total expenditures for the Hotel and Motel fund
exceeded the budget, the revenue exceeded the budget as well which resulted in a positive budget variance overall for this
find.
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CITY OF ALPINE, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE CITY’S NET PENSION LIABILITY (ASSET)

AND RELATED RATIOS
Texas Municipal Retirement System
September 30, 2022
Plan Year Plan Year Plan Year
Ended Ended Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2021 2020 2019
Total Pension Liability
Service Cost 3 322,710 % 308,081 § 278,959
Interest {on the Total Pension Liability) 472,985 452,990 430,680

Changes of benefit terms - -
Difference between expected and actual
experience (57,187 (45,009) (27,277)

Changes of assumptions (10,700)
Benefit payments, including refunds of
employee contributions (462.448) (391,873) (319,517)

Net change in total pension liability 276,060 324,189 352,145

Total pension liability - beginning 7,077,053 6,752,864 6,400,719

Total pension liability - ending (a) 7,353,113 7,077,053 6,752,864
Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Contributions - employer 74,046 31,487 34,746

Contributions - employee 184,195 178,909 163,900

Net investment income 1,157,994 639,971 1,146,915

Benefit payments, including refunds of

employee contributions (462,448) (391,873) (319,517)

Administrative expense (5,367) (4,147) (6,486)

Other 37 {162) (195)

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 948,457 454,185 1,019,363

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 8,897,956 8443771 7,424,408

Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) 9,846,413 8,897,956 8,443,771
Net pension liability/(asset), ending =(a-b) $ (24933000 § (1,820,903) § (1,690,907)
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the

total pension liability 133.91% 125.73% 125.04%
Covered-employee payroll $ 3,683,899 § 3,578,180 § 3,278,009
Net pension liability {asset) as a percentage of

covered employee payroll (67.68)% (50.89)% (51.58)%

GASB 68, paragraph 46 requires that the information on this schedule be presented for the Plan’s measurement year (January 1* - December 31%) as opposed
to the City's fiscal year.

In accordance with GASB 68, paragraph 138. “The information for all periods for the 10-year schedules that are required to be presented as required

supplementary information may not be available initially. In these cases, during the transition period, that information should be presented for as many years
as arc available. The schedules should not include information that is not measured in accordance with the requirements of this Statement.”
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EXHIBIT G-3

Plan Year Ended Plan Year Ended Plan Year Ended Plan Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2018 2017 2016 2015
$ 247,620 % 246,502 § 221,124  § 199,735

418,092 400,602 397,450 391,016
(171,036) (71,671) (263,394) (163,545)

- - = 163,070

(328,205) (305,543 (336,811) (260,720)

166,471 269,890 18,369 329,556
6,234,248 5,964,358 5,945,989 5,616,433
6,400,719 6,234,248 5,964,358 5,945,989

27,865 34,856 10,493 21,546

143,798 144,045 141,810 126,735
(234,101} 967,691 454,032 10,075
(328,205) (305,543) (336,811) (260,720)

(4,527) (5,018) (5,129) (6,137)

{237) (254) (279) (300)

(395,407) 835,777 264,116 (108,801)
7,819,815 6,984,038 6,719,922 6,828,723

7.424 408 7,819,815 6,984,038 6,719,922
$ (1,023,689} % (1,585,567) % (1,019,680) § (773,933}
115.99% 125.43% 117.10% 113.02%

$ 2,875,963 § 2,869,638 % 2,610,670 § 2,534,706
(35.59)% (55.25Y% (35.06)% (30.53)%



EXHIBIT G-4
CITY OF ALPINE, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF CITY CONTRIBUTIONS

Texas Municipal Retirement System

September 30, 2022
Actual
Fiscal Year Actuarially Actual Contribution Covered- Contribution as
Ending Determined Employer Deficiency Employee a % of Covered
September 30 Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payroll Payroll
2015 $ 26,780 % 26,780 3 - 3 2,411,318 1.11%
2016 $ 12,952 % 12,952 $ - 3 2,620,637 0.49%
2017 b 25,883 % 25,883 $ - $ 3,765,608 0.69%
2018 $ 30,756 $ 30,756 $ B $ 2,972,667 1.03%
2019 b 33,230 §$ 33,230 $ - 3 3,194,571 1.04%
2020 3 30,990 3 30,990 $ - $ 3,360,556 0.92%
2021 $ 65,546 § 65,546 $ - $ 3,639,377 1.80%
2022 5 72,178 § 72,178 - $ 3,477,274 2.08%

GASB 68, paragraph 46, requires that the data in this schedule be presented as of the City’s respective fiscal year
as opposed to the measurement year (January 1 - December 31).

Per GASB 68, paragraph 138, “The information for all periods for the 10-year schedules that are required to be
presented as required supplementary information may not be available initially. In these cases, during the transition
period, that information should be presented for as many years as are available. The schedules should not include
information that is not measured in accordance with the requirements of this Statement.”
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CITY OF ALPINE, TEXAS

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Texas Municipal Retirement System for Pension

September 30, 2022

Valuation Date:

Notes:

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of

December 31 and become effective in January 13 months later.

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates:

Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method
Remaining Amortization Period
Asset Valuation Method
Inflation

Salary Increases

Investment Rate of Return

Retirement Age

Mortality

Other Information:

Entry Age Normal

Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed

N/A

10 Year smoothed marked; 12% soft corridor
2.50%

3.50% to 11.50% including inflation

6.75%

Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the City’s
plan of benefits. Last updated for the 2019 valuation pursuant
to an experience study of the period 2014 - 2018.

Post-retirement: 2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas Mortality

Tables. The rates are projected on a fully generational basis
with scale UMP.

Pre-retirement; PUB(10) mortality tables, with the Public
Safety table used for males and the General Employee table
used for females. The rates are projected on a fully
generational basis with scale UMP.

There were no benefit changes during the year.
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CITY OF ALPINE, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF THE CITY’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
Texas Emergency Services Retirement System

September 30, 2022

Plan Year Ended  Plan Year Ended  Plan Year Ended  Plan Year Ended

August 31, August 31, August 31, August 31,
2022 2021 2020 2019
City’s Proportion of the net pension
liability 0.087% 0.090% 0.118% 0.152%
City’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability $ 35,696 3 S 20749 §$ 43,085
City’s number of active members* 17 15 10 15

City’s net pension liability per active

member h 2,100 § 643 § 2975 § 2,872
Plan fiduciary net position as a

percentage of the total pension

liability 75.20% 93.10% 83.20% 80.20%

* There is no compensation for active members, so the number of active members is used instead. The members
are volunteer firefighters.

(GASB 68, paragraph 81 requires that the information on this schedule be presented for the Plan’s measurement year
{September 1 - August 31) as opposed to the City’s fiscal year.

In accordance with GASB 68, paragraph 138. “The information for all periods for the 10-year schedules that are
required to be presented as required supplementary information may not be available initially. In these cases, during
the transition period, that information should be presented for as many years as are available. The schedules should
not include information that is not measured in accordance with the requirements of this Statement.”
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EXHIBIT G-5

Plan Year Ended Plan Year Ended Plan Year Ended Plan Year Ended

August 31, August 31, August 31, August 31,
2018 2017 2016 2015
0.091% 0.188% 0.075% 0.082%
19,702 § 45,123 % 21,846 § 21,888
9 11 8 8
2,189 8§ 4,102 3§ 2,731 % 2,736
84.30% 81.40% 76.30% 76.50%
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CITY OF ALPINE, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF CITY CONTRIBUTIONS

Texas Emergency Services Retirement System

September 30, 2022
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2022 2021 2020 2019
Contractually required contribution 3 4248 § 4320 § 5508 § 6,790
Contributions in relation to the
contractually required contribution  § (4,248) § (43200 § (5,508) $ (6,790)
Contribution deficiency (excess) - - 5
Number of active members * 17 15 10 15
Contributions per active member * 3 250 % 288 % 551 % 453

* There is no compensation for active members, so the number of active members is used instead. The members are

volunteer firefighters.

GASB 68, Paragraph 81, requires that the data in this schedule be presented for the City's respective fiscal year as

opposed to measurement year (September 1 - August 31

In addition, per GASB 68 paragraph 138, “The informati

).

on for all periods for the 10-year schedules that are required

to be presented as required supplementary information may not be available initially. In these cases, during the
transition period, that information should be presented for as many years as are available. The schedules should not
include information that is not measured in accordance with the requirements of this Statement”.
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EXHIBIT G-6

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2018 2017 2016 2015
4370 % 9,108 $ 3456 § 3,888
4370) § (9,108) % (3,456) § (3,888)
9 i1 8 8
48 3 828 § 432 % 486
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CITY OF ALPINE, TEXAS
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Texas Emergency Services Retirement System for Pension

September 30, 2022

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability in the August 31, 2022 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 3.00%
Salary increases N/A
Investment rate of return 7.5%, net of pension plan investment

expense, including inflation

Mortality rates were based on the PubS-2010 (public safety) below-median income mortality tables for employees
and for retirees, projected for mortality improvement generationally using projection scale MP-2019.

The actuarial assumptions were based on the results of an actuarial experience study of the System for the six plan
years ending August 31, 2018.

Changes in Methods and Assumptions Since the August 31, 2020 Valuation:

There was only one change in the entry age actuarial cost method. The span over which each of the normal
cost components is spread was adjusted to go from entry age to the last assumed age at retirement. Previously,
the span was to the last assumed age for each benefit. This change is more consistent with GASB guidance.
This change only affected the termination and disability benefit allocations, and while the normal cost increased
somewhat, the actuarial accrued liability decreased by a small amount. Over this change decreased the number
of years of required state contributions by 0.2 of a year.

There were no changes in assumptions,
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CITY OF ALPINE, TEXAS

EXHIBIT G-7

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY
AND RELATED RATIOS

Texas Municipal Retirement System for OPEB

September 30, 2022

Plan Year Plan Year Plan Year Plan Year Plan Year
Ended Ended Ended Ended Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
Changes in the Total OPEB Liability
Total OPEB Liability - beginning of year  § 198,535 $ 164,310 § 131,308 § 142,098 § 121,618
Changes for the year
Service Cost 16,947 13,597 7,867 7,765 6,600
Interest on Total OPEB Liability 4,096 4,686 4,993 4,813 4,695
Changes of benefit terms - - - - -
Differences between expected and
actual experience (7,660) (8,052) {4,428) (13,437) -
Changes in assumptions or other
inputs * 6,067 25,424 25,880 (8,780) 10,620
Benefit payments ** (4,421) (1,430) (1,310) (1,151) (1,435)
Net changes 15,029 34,225 33,002 (10,790) 20,480
Total OPEB Liability - end of year $ 213,564 § 198535 § 164310 § 131,308 3§ 142,098
Total OPEB Liability as a Percentage
of Covered Payroll 5.80% 5.55% 5.01% 457% 4.95%
Covered payroll $ 3,683,899 § 3,578,180 $ 3,278,009 § 2,875963 §$ 2,869,638

* Changes in assumptions and other inputs reflect the effects of changes in the discount rate each period. The

following are the discount rates used as of December 31,

2021
2020
2019
2018
2017
2016

1.84%
2.00%
2.75%
3.71%
3.31%
3.78%

** Due to the SDBF being considered an unfunded OPEB plan under GASB 75, benefit payments are treated as
being equal to the employer’s yearly contributions for retirees.

GASB 75, paragraph 170 requires that the information on this schedule be presented for the Plan’s measurement
year (January 1* - December 31%) as opposed to the City’s fiscal year.

Pursuant to GASB 75, paragraph 171, no assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of

GASB 75 to pay related benefits.

Pursuant to GASB 75, this schedule should show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is

compiled, govemments should present information for those years for which information is available.
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CITY OF ALPINE, TEXAS
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Texas Municipal Retirement System for OPEB

September 30, 2022

Valuation Date:

Notes: The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2021
valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience
study for the period December 31, 2014 to December 31, 2018.

Summary of Actuarial Assumptions:

Inflation 2.5%
Salary increases 3.50% to 11.5% including inflation
Discount rate* 1.84%

Retirees’ share of benefit-related $0
costs

Administrative expenses All administrative expenses are paid through the Pension Trust
and accounted for under reporting requirements under GASB
Statement No. 68.

Mortality rates - service retirees 2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas Mortality Tables. The rates are
projected on a fully generational basis with scale UMP.

Mortality rates - disabled retirees 2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas Mortality Tables with a 4 year
set-forward for males and a 3 year set-forward for females. In
addition, a 3.5% and 3% minimum mortality rate will be applied
to reflect the impairment for younger members who become
disabled for males and females, respectively. The rates are
projected on a fully generational basis by Scale UMP to account
for future mortality improvements subject to the floor.

* The discount rate was based on the Fidelity Index’s “20-Year Municipal GO AA Index” rate as of December 31,
2021.

Changes in Actuarial Assumptions and Methods: Generally, this will only be the annual change in the municipal
bond index rate.
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CITY OF ALPINE TEXAS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30,2022

207 210 211 212
— Community Municipal PD Fed PD Abandon
Control Development Court Tech Equity Share Vehicle
Codes Fund Fund Fund Fund

ASSETS

1010 Cash and Cash Equivalents $ - 5 1816 § 14939 § 22,326

105¢ Taxes Receivable - - - -
1051 Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes (credit) - - - -
1260 Due from Other Governments - - - -

1300 Due from Other Funds 66,202 - - 3,018

1606 Total Assets s 66,202 § 1,816 § 14,939 § 25,344
LIABILITIES

2010 Accounts Payable $ - 3 - % - 3 873

2080 Due to Other Funds 5 1,782 3,174 =

2000  Total Liabilities - 1,782 3,174 873

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
2601 Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes - - . .

2600  Total Deferred Inflows of Resources - - - -

FUND BALANCES
Restricted Fund Balance:
3450 Federal or State Funds Grant Restriction 66,202 5 11,765 -

3480 Retirement of Long-Term Debt 5 = - -
3490 Qther Restricted Fund Balance - 34 - 24,471

Committed Fund Balance:
1545 Other Committed Fund Balance - - - -

3000  Total Fund Balances 66,202 34 11,765 24,471

4000 Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows & Fund Balances $ 66,202 S 1816 § 14939 § 25,344

110



EXHIBIT H-1 (Contd)

23 224 241 242 243 244 257 Total
Municipal Pueblo Local Border Homeland HIDTA Public Safety TX Office Nonmajor
Court Nuevo Security Security Grant Office of Govemor Special
Security Fund Park Program Grant Fund Justice Asst Homeland Revenue Funds
3 -3 75,026 § - 3 - % - 3 -8 - $§ 114,107
- - 39,432 72,611 21,140 9,546 56,754 199,483
5,230 - - - - - - 74,450

3 5230 §$ 75,026 § 39432 § 72,611 § 21,140 § 9,546 % 56,754 § 388,040

$ - 8 -5 -3 -8 2,745 § 1,084 $ -8 4,702
5 - 39,432 72,611 18,395 8,462 56,754 200,610

. - 39,432 72,611 21,140 9,546 56,754 205,312

= 2 g = = - . 77,967

5,230 2 - - . - » 29,735

- 75,026 - . - . - 75,026

5,230 75,026 @ = : = . 182,728

3 5,230 § 75,026 5 39432 § 72,611 § 21,140 % 9,546 § 56,754 § 383,040




Data
Control
Codes

1010
1050
1051
1260
1300

1000

2010
2080

2000

2601

2600

3250
3280
3290

3445

3000

4600

CITY OF ALPINE TEXAS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Taxes Receivable

Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes (credit)
Due from Other Govemments

Due from Other Funds

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Due to Other Funds

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

FUND BALANCES

Restricted Fund Balance:

Federal or State Funds Grant Restriction
Retirement of Long-Term Debt

Other Restricted Fund Balance
Committed Fund Balance:

Other Committed Fund Balance

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows & Fund Balances

Tot;l

575
Debt Nonmajor
Service Governmental
Fund Funds
$ 84,824 198,931
14,089 14,089
(4,758} (4,758)
- 199,483
19,317 93,767
5 113,472 501,512
b - 4,702
- 200,610
- 205,312
8,506 8,506
8,506 8,506
- 77,967
104,966 104,966
- 29,735
- 75,026
104,966 287,694
$ 113,472 501,512
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CITY OF ALPINE TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

Data
Coantrol
Codes

REVENUES:
Taxes:

5110 Property Taxes
5190 Penalty and Interest on Taxes
5300 Intergovernmental Revenue and Grants
5400 Charges for Services
5610 Investment Earnings
5700 Other Revenue

5020 Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
0100 General Government
0200 Public Safety

Debt Service:
0710 Principal on Debt
0720 Interest on Debt

6030 Total Expenditures
1100 Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
7912 Sale of Real and Personal Property
7915 Transfers In

7080 Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

1200 Net Change in Fund Balance
0100 Fund Balance - October 1 (Beginning)

3000 Fund Balance - September 30 (Ending)

207
Community
Development
Fund

66,202

5 66,202

114

210
Municipal
Court Tech

Fund

69
43

112

2,609

2,609
(2,497)

(2,497}
2,531

3 34

$

211

212

PD Fed PD Abandon
Equity Share

Fund

8,947
(2,141

(2,141)
13,906

11,765 §

Vehicle
Fund

10,333
163

10,496

14,520

14,520
(4,024)

22,250

22,250
18,226
6,245

24,471



EXHIBIT H-2 (Cont'd}

213
Municipal
Court
Security Fund

224
Pueblo
Nuevo

Park

241
Local Border
Secunty
Program

242
Homeland
Security
Grant

-8

129,410

243 244 257 Total
HIDTA Public Safety TX Office Nonmajor
Grant Office of Governor Special
Fund Justice Asst Homeland Revenue Funds

-8 -3 -8 .

210,690 13,259 56,754 456,065
- - - 10,474
- - - 289
- - - 6,263

129,410

210,690 13,259 56,754 473,091

129,410

- - - 2,609
210,690 13,259 56,754 479,046

129,410

210,690 13,259 56,754 481,655

26

- - : (8,564)

75,000

= - - 22,250
- - S 75,000

75,000

. = - 97,250

72
5,158

75,026

i . . 88,686
. - . 94,042

b3 5,230

75,026

=i = 8 - § 182,728
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CITY OF ALPINE TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

Data
Control
Codes

REVENUES:
Taxes:

5110 Property Taxes
5190 Penalty and Interest on Taxes
5300 Intergovernmental Revenue and Grants
5400 Charges for Services
5610 Investment Eamings
5700 Other Revenue

5020 Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
0100 General Government
0200 Public Safety

Debt Service:
0710 Principal on Debt
0720 Interest on Debt

6030 Total Expenditures
1100 Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
7912 Sale of Real and Personal Property
7915 Transfers In

7080 Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

1200 Net Change in Fund Balance
0100 Fund Balance - October 1 (Beginning)

3000 Fund Balance - September 30 (Ending)

575 Total

Debt Nonmajor
Service Governmentat

Fund Funds

$ 154031 $ 154,031
4,256 4,256

- 456,065

- 10,474

654 943

- 6,263

158,941 632,032

- 2,609

- 479,046

123,600 123,600
25,158 25,158
148,758 630,413
10,183 1,619

. 22,250

- 75,000

- 97,250

10,183 98,869
94,783 188,825

$ 104966 $ 287,694
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Alpine, Texas

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Alpine, Texas, as of and for the year
ended September 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City
of Alpine, Texas’ basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January 31, 2024.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Alpine, Texas® internal
control over financial reporting {internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Alpine, Texas’ internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Alpine, Texas’ internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a2 material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given
these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in intemal contro] that we consider to be
material weaknesses. We identified certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule
of findings and responses as item 2022-001 that we consider to be a significant deficiency.
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Alpine, Texas’ financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial
statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit,
and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of owr tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

City of Alpine, Texas’ Response to Finding

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the City of Alpine, Texas®
response to the finding identified in our audit and described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses.
The City of Alpine, Texas’ response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

Miksort Ruddsek Padttinacn L
Gibson Ruddock Patterson LLC

El Paso, Texas
January 31, 2024

19



CITY OF ALPINE, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements
Type of Auditor’s report issued on whether the financial statements
audited were prepared in accordance with GAAP: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:
. Were significant deficiencies in internal control disclosed? Yes, see Finding 2022-001
. Were material weaknesses in internal control disclosed? No

Was any noncompliance disclosed that is material to the financial
statement of the auditee, which would be required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards? No
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CITY OF ALPINE, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

Financial Statement Findings

2022-001 - Internal Control Over Financial Reporting - Utility Accounts Receivable Reconciliations
(Significant Deficiency)

Criteria: The City is required to maintain internal controls over financial reporting to provide a high
level of assurance that the financial transactions are recorded properly, and that related financial reports
are presented accurately. Periodic timely reconciliations of the accounts receivable for utilities is an
example of an internal control over financial reporting.

Condition Found: The City has a utility billing system that is separate from the general ledger
accounting system. Monthly entries are made to the general ledger to record the activity from the utility
billing system and monthly reconciliations of the utility system reports and general ledger should be
completed to ensure the amounts reported in the general ledger agree to the utility system reports. During
the fiscal year under audit, the City’s reconciliation process of the accounts receivable and other system
reports was not implemented. Consequently, when the balances were being reconciled at year end, there
were unreconciled differences

Cause: The City has had ongoing software issues and has not adopted procedures to systematically
reconcile the billing system reports and data to the general ledger.

Effect: Failure to reconcile general ledger accounts to the utility system generated reports in a timely
manner increases the risk of misappropriation of assets and potential misreporting of financial statement
amounts due to error or fraud.

Recommendation: To safeguard the assets of the City and to improve the accuracy of the general ledger
balances throughout the year, we recommend that the monthly system accounts receivable reports,
customer deposit reports, and adjustment reports be generated and the balances from those reports be
reconciled to what is recorded in the general ledger. Any discrepancies between the balances should be
researched and reconciled and any necessary adjustments be posted to the general ledger in a timely
manner. We also recommend obtaining clarification on how the billing system is accounting for the
adjustment debits and credits to ensure the appropriate general ledger adjustments are made to either the
accounts receivable and/or revenue accounts if applicable.

Repeat Finding: No
View of Responsible Officials: See Corrective Action Plan
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City Manager Mayor

Megan Antrim Catherine Eaves

City Secretary City Attorney
Geoffirey R. Calderon Bojorquez Law Firm, PC

100 North 13th Street Phone 432-837-3301 Fax 432-837-2044

“Ts prouide guality sorvice to the cltigons of Alpine”

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

2022-001 - Internal Control Over Financial Reporting — Utility Accounts Receivable Reconciliations
(Significant Deficiency)

Corrective Action Plan:
1. Utility Billing Customer Service Clerks will work with billing software company to obtain
and understand repoart processes for:
a. Customer deposit reports
b. Adjustment reports
¢. Accounts receivable reports
2. Utility Billing Customer Service Clerks will work with billing software to address all possible
software issues; including
a. Posting date errors
b. Double payment postings
¢. Adjustment Errors
d. Systematic adjustment postings
3. Finance Director will work with the Utility Billing Customer Service clerks to
a. Assist with adjustments made to accounts
b. Research and reconcile accounts - if necessary
4. Management will work to adopt procedures to reconcile both billing system reports and
financial general ledger reports.

Responsible Party:
1. Utility Billing Customer Service Clerks
2. Director of Finance
3. City Manager

Estimated Date of Completion: 09/30/2024

COUNCILWOMAN WARD [ COUNCILWOMAN WARD 2 COUNCILMAN WARD 3 COUNCILMAN WARD 4 COUNCILMAN WARD 5
JUDY STOKES CHRIS RODRIGUEZ DARIN NANCE MARTIN SANDATE RICK STEPHENS
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CITY OF ALPINE, TEXAS
AUDITOR SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findings

Financial Statement Findings

There were no prior year financial statement findings.
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W GRP-CPA.COM certified public accountants
January 31, 2024

To the Honorable Mayor Catherine Eaves,
Members of City Council, and Management of
City of Alpine, Texas

100 North 13* Street

Alpine, Texas 79830

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Alpine, Texas, (the City) for the
year ended September 30, 2022. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about
our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, as
well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated
such information in our letter to you dated August 10, 2022. Professional standards also require that we
communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Matters

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the City are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. As described in
Note 1, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, which requires recognition of certain assets
and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases. We noted no transactions
entered into by the City during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.
All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based
on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future
events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial
statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from
those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the City’s financial statements were:

1. Management’s estimate of the depreciation is based on estimated usefiil lives of the related assets.

2. Management’s estimate of the allowance for uncollectible accounts receivables is based on historical
collection rates and management’s analysis of the collectability of the accounts.

3. Management’s estimate of the allowance for uncollectible taxes is based on historical collection rates
and management’s analysis of the collectability of the accounts.



City of Alpine, Texas
Page 2
January 31, 2024

4. Management’s estimate of the accumulated compensated absences is based upon eligibility
requirements, current salaries, and the number of days accrued.

5. Management's estimate of the landfill closure costs is based upon a) the prior year's total estimated
closure costs with application of an inflation factor provided by TCEQ and b) the total tons disposed
during the year divided by a compaction rate.

6. Management’s estimates for deferred outflows related to the Texas Municipal Retirement System
(TMRS), the City’s share of net pension asset, and deferred inflows related to TMRS are based upon
estimates provided by TMRS.

7. Management’s estimates for deferred outflows related to the Texas Emergency Services Retirement
System (TESRS), the City’s share of net pension liability, and deferred inflows related to TESRS are
based upon estimates provided by TESRS.

8. Management’s estimates for deferred outflows related to the Texas Municipal Retirement System
Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) and the City’s share of total OPEB liability are based upon
estimates provided by TMRS.

9. Management’s estimate of the right-to-use lease assets and related liability is based on a present value
calculation of the future payments. Amortization of the right-to-use lease assets is based upon the
shorter of the lease term or the useful life of the underlying assets.

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop these estimates in determining that they are
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the
audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. The attached schedule, Passed Adjustments, summarizes uncorrected misstatements of the
financial statements. Management has determined that their effects are immaterial, both individually and
in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. The uncorrected misstatements or the matters
underlying them could potentially cause future period financial statements to be materially misstated, even
though, in our judgment, such uncorrected misstatements are immaterial to the financial statements under
audit. During the audit process, year-end adjustments were recorded as deemed necessary by management
and are available for review.
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Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or
the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our
audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated January 31, 2024.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application
of an accounting principle to the City’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s
opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting
accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge,
there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior 1o retention as the City’s auditors. However, these discussions
occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to
our retention.

During our audit, we became aware of several matters that are opportunities for strengthening internal
controls and operating efficiency. We previously reported on the City’s internal controls in our report dated
January 31, 2024. These comments do not affect our report dated January 31, 2024, on the financial
statements of the City. As part of our audit, we also review prior year’s comments and provide a status
based upon our testing as well as inquiry of management. Please see the attached schedule for the status of
prior year comments as well as the current year comments.

Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to Management's Discussion and Analysis, the Budget and Actual
Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance for the General Fund and Hotel and
Motel Fund, the Texas Municipal Retirement System and Texas Emergency Services Retirement System
Pension Schedules, and the Texas Municipal Retirement System Other Post-Employment Benefit
Schedules, which are required supplementary information (RSI) that supplement the basic financial
statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries,
the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RS1.
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We were engaged to report on the combining fund financial statements, which accompany the financial
statements but are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of
management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that
the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and
complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the
supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or
to the financial statements themselves.

Restriction on Use

This information is intended solely for the information and use of the members of City Council and
management of the City of Alpine, Texas, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone
other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

Gibson Ruddock Patterson, LLC
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Status of Prior Year Comments

Procurement:

1.

Observation: In our prior year review of the procurement compliance and procedures, we noted
that the City did not maintain all the required documentation related to the formal solicitation
process, specifically, evidence of compliance with advertisernent requirements, documenting the
date and time the proposals were received, documenting the evaluations of proposals received, and
documenting in the minutes of Council for each project when the City decides to not require the
performance and payment bond. We recommended management ensure that all required
documentation is maintained to show evidence of compliance with procurement statutes and that
significant decisions, such as not requiring performance and payment bonds, be documented in the
minutes of the City Council meetings.

Status: Similar instances were noted in the current year. See current year comment.

Observation: We noted that the City did not have formal written policies related to solicitation
and procurement of goods and services that satisfy the requirements presented in Local Government
Code, Chapter 252. We recommended the City adopt formal written policies governing solicitation
and procurement procedures to ensure compliance with Government Code 252. This should
include procedures to ensure that all vendors with which the City is planning to spend $50,000 or
more are properly procured.

Status: Council approved the Grants Policies and Procedures manual which includes procurement
guidelines that address the requirements of the Government Code 252.

Observation: We noted that the City expended over $50,000 for two separate vendors and did not
follow one of the approved procurement methods. For the first vendor, the City expended
approximately $57,000 and for the second vendor the City expended approximately $61,000. We
recommended the City utilize formal solicitations or cooperatives when spending over the $50,000
procurement threshold in order to be in compliance with regulations and to help ensure the best
quality, value, and cost-savings for the City.

Status: Management has taken steps to ensure procurement thresholds are in compliance by
properly notifying City Council of emergency purchases, notifying Directors and Department
Heads of vendor expenditures and thresholds, as well as working on formal written procurement
policies. No similar instances were noted during our current year testwork.

Journal Entries:

4,

Observation: In our prior year review of journal entries, we noted that not all journal entries were
approved by someone other than the individual entering the journal entry. In addition, we noted
not all of the supporting documentation was always attached and several entries were not posted
properly. To strengthen controls, we recommended that each entry be reviewed and approved by a
separate authorized individual from the individual that is requesting and entering the entry. In
addition, we recommended that the appropriate approved form and all necessary documentation be
attached prior to the journal entry being recorded in the accounting software to help ensure proper
documentation and accurate posting. All documentation supporting the purpose for the entry
including emails or memos, should be included and maintained as supporting documentation.
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Status of Prior Year Comments

When an entry is reversing a prior entry, we recommended that the original entry be included as
supporting documentation as well as a written narrative explaining why a reversal is needed which
will help ensure that the current entry is properly posted.

Status: Similar instances were noted in the current year. See current year comment.

Accounting and General Ledger:

5.

Observation: It was noted that the general ledger balances for accounts receivable and customer
deposits in the Gas fund and the Water, Sewer, and Sanitation fund are not being reconciled and
adjusted monthly to the totals generated from the billing system. In addition, the adjustment credits
that were being applied to customers’ accounts in the billing system were also not being recorded
in the general ledger in a timely manner. To improve the accuracy of the general ledger balances
throughout the year, we recommended that any adjustment credits applied to customers’ accounts
be recorded in the general ledger and that the monthly accounts receivable and customer deposit
reports from the billing system be generated and reconciled to the amounts in the general ledger.
Any discrepancies between the balances should be researched and reconciled and any necessary
adjustments be posted to the general ledger in a timely manner.

Status: This situation still exists. See current year comment.

Observation: Based on our review of the receivable balances for the Community Development
fund and discussions with management, it appeared there were several old outstanding resident
loans and grants with balances whose status was unknown. We recommended management
perform a detailed review of all outstanding resident loans and grant balances and take the
appropriate action to collect any valid receivables.

Status: This situation still exists. See current year comment.

Observation: In reviewing the Billing Aging reports for the Water, Sewer, and Sanitation fund
and the Gas Utility Fund, we noted that there were unapplied payments and a significant number
of old receivable balances. We recommended management review the unapplied payments and old
balances to determine if the unapplied payments are accurate and should be applied toward
customer balances and take the appropriate action to collect the old cutstanding balances.

Status: This situation still exists. See current year comment.

Observation: In reviewing the City’s bank reconciliations, we noted that there were unreconciled
differences that management needed to research for the operating accounts of the General Fund
and the Water, Sewer, and Sanitation fund. In addition, there were several bank reconciliations
that had outstanding checks that were several years old. We recommended management research
and make all necessary corrections to properly account for these unreconciled differences. We also
recommended that reconciliations be performed on a timely basis and any discrepancies be
researched promptly to safeguard the City’s funds. We also recommended that old outstanding
checks be researched and either reissued or escheated.

Status: Similar instances were noted in the current year. See current year comment.



City of Alpine, Texas

Page 7

January 31, 2024

9.

10.

Status of Prior Year Comments

Observation: We noted a few processes with the accounting software that needed to be reviewed
in order to better streamline the accruals and close out at the end of the fiscal year. There appeared
to still be some issues on how the system was set up when handling accruals and voided checks.
We recommended management consult with the accounting software company on how the system
was set up to automatically charge back items that crossed fiscal years such as receivables and
accruals and also voided checks. We recommended that receipts be set up to accrue through a
receivable account and not the same account as liabilities are accrued in. In addition, when a check
is voided in a different fiscal year than it was issued, it should not post back to that fiscal year since
that will cause a discrepancy in the bank reconciliations.

Status: This situation still exists. See current year comment,

Observation: During our review of the allowance for uncollectible property tax, we noted that the
City has been using a flat 35% rate to calculate the allowance for uncollectible accounts. We
recommended City Management re-evaluate their allowance percentage and do a historical analysis
in order to determine if this is still the most appropriate percentage to apply.

Status: This situation stifl exists. See current year comment.

Cash Disbursements:

11.

12.

Observation: While testing nonpayroll disbursements we noted several instances in which a
purchase order was not prepared. In addition, we also noted several purchase orders that were
completed or approved after the invoice was received. We recommended management provide
training to the various departments on the purchase order process and be more diligent about
following purchase order procedures. We also recommended that the City establish formal written
detailed policies and procedures related to the purchasing of goods and services. These policies
and procedures should include a description of the types of supporting documentation that is
required for purchases and which purchases require purchase orders, along with the necessary
approvals. For items not requiring a purchase order, the written policies and procedures should
include what documentation is required. In addition, we recommended the purpose of the purchase
also be included on the purchase order in order to help with more accurate coding and accounting.

Status: Similar instances were noted in the current year. See current year comment.

Observation: While testing nonpayroll disbursements, we noted instances where there was no
evidence of review or approval of the invoices prior to processing for payment. To strengthen
controls, we recommended management document the review and approval of all invoices that are
processed for payment to ensure the appropriate amounts are paid and no duplicate payments are
made. In addition, we recommended any procedures implemented be clearly documented in the
policy manual and adhered to by all employees.

Status: Similar instances were noted in the current year. See current year comment.
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Status of Prior Year Comments

Capital Assets:

13.

14.

Observation: The accounting principles for an enterprise fund are similar to those followed by a
business. One principle that is different from governmental fund principles is the treatment of the
purchase of capital assets. For enterprise funds, capital assets are recorded as assets instead of
expenditures. However, we noted that capital assets for the enterprise funds of the City (Water,
Sewer and, Sanitation fund, the Gas Utility fund, and the Airport fund) were being recorded as
expenses and depreciation expense was not being recorded during the year. We recommended
management record capital assets in the appropriate asset account in the general ledger verses an
expense account and record the related depreciation expense on a monthly basis.

Status: This situation still exists. See current year comment.

Observation: While performing our review of capital assets, we noted that not all the assets
purchased during the year were added to the capital asset listing in a timely manner, and some of
the assets added did not always include or exclude the appropriate ancillary charges. We
recommended management adopt procedures to add capital asset purchases to the capital asset
system in a timely manner so that the listing is properly maintained throughout the year and reflects
all assets owned by the City. In addition, we recommended management ensure the cost used for
the capital asset listing is accurate.

Status: Similar instances were noted in the current year., See current year comment.

Water, Sewer, and Sanitation Billings:

15.

16.

17.

Observation: While conducting our test of controls over the Water, Sewer, and Sanitation billings
and cash receipts, we noted four commercial customers who were charged the minimum residential
rate for a water meter ($6.00) rather than the minimum commercial rate for a water meter ($7.00)
as reflected on the City of Alpine website. We recommended management ensure the amounts
charged to customers agreed with what was documented in the City Ordinances as approved by
Council and agree with what was published on the City’s website.

Status: Similar instances were noted in the current year. See current year comment.

Observation: While conducting our test of controls over the Water, Sewer, and Sanitation billings
and cash receipts, we noted one commercial customer outside of the city limits who was not charged
1.5 times the in-city rate for sewer per City Ordinance 98-123c and Ordinance 2021-04-04. We
recommended that management ensure the amounts charged to customers agree with what is
documented in the City Ordinances as approved by Council.

Status: Similar instances were noted in the current year. See current year comment.

Observation: While conducting our test of controls over the Water, Sewer, and Sanitation billings
and cash receipts, we noted two residential customers outside the city limits who were incorrectly
charged as inside the city limits for water usage. We recommended that the 2018 map utilized by
the billing department to determine which customers are inside the city limits versus which are
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outside the city limits be updated more frequently to help reduce errors in this area and help ensure
accounts are billed properly.

Status: Similar instances were noted in the current year. See current year comment.

18. Observation: While conducting our test of controls over the Water, Sewer, and Sanitation billings
and cash receipts, we noted one residential customer who was not billed sales tax on his garbage
service. We recommended that the billing department implement, review and monitor procedures
to ensure all customers are billed the proper rates.

Status: Similar instances were noted in the current year. See current year comment.

19. Observation: While conducting our test of controls over the Water, Sewer, and Sanitation billings
and cash receipts, we noted one residential customer was incorrectly charged a pro-rated sewer rate
for their first month's billing rather than the flat rate. We recommended that the billing department
implement, review and monitor procedures to ensure all new customers are charged the proper
sewer rates upon account set up, including having a second person review new accounts to ensure
they are set up properly before the first billing goes out.

Status: Similar instances were noted in the current year. See current year comment.
Accrued Liabilities:

20. Observation: In two instances, we noted expenditures incurred before year-end were not properly
accrued as of September 30, 2021. In addition, we noted expenditures for items that arrived to the
City subsequent to year-end were accrued as of September 30, 2021. We recommended that
management use the date goods and service are received in order to accrue the related expenditures
based upon when the goods or services are provided to the City rather than by the date of the
invoice.

Status: Similar instances were noted in the current year. See current year comment.

Inventory:

21. Observation: A complete count of the supply inventory for the Water, Sewer, and Sanitation fund
was performed in September 2021; however, the department had to estimate values of some of the
items since data and records were unavailable to properly document the original cost. We
recommended that a complete count of all inventory items continue to be performed annually for
all funds with inventory on hand, and we recommended the Water, Sewer, and Sanitation
department implement a method of tracking the cost of the items in inventory in order to accurately
adjust and report the value of the inventory.

Status: This situation still exists. See current year comment.
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Grant Reconciliations and Requests:

22

Observation: While performing our review of grant reconciliations, we noted that the general
ledger is not being reconciled to the grant reports on a monthly basis which would allow for the
timely filing of requests for reimbursement. We recommended management maintain
reconciliations throughout the year for each grant which details the expenditures that are requested
for reimbursement from the grantor and reconciles to what is recorded on the general ledger for
that grant in order to help complete requests for reimbursement and receive payment in a timely
manner.

Status: This situation still exists. See current year comment.

Payroll:

23,

24,

Debt:

Observation: While conducting our prior year test over payroll transactions, we noted one instance
where the cost center coding of an employee's longevity pay did not follow his base pay. We
recommended that management implement a verification procedure to ensure all types of employee
pay are properly updated when any change to an employee's coding is made.

Status: Additional procedures were implemented to ensure accurate coding of employee payroll.
No similar instances were noted in current year payroll testwork.

Observation: While conducting our test over payroll transactions, we noted three employees who
were paid differential pay that was not supported by documentation in their personnel file. We
recommended that proper approval and supporting documentation be maintained in each personnel
file for base pay and any additional pay that is given to employees for certifications or licenses. In
addition, we recommended management perform a detailed review of all differential pay to ensure
proper supporting documentation, i.e., certifications, training evidence, efc., is obtained and
maintained in the personnel files.

Status: Similar instances were noted in the current year. See current year comment.

25. Observation: While performing our review of the debt service coverage for the water and sewer

bonds, we noted that the current ratio calculated by management of .71, which uses a best practices
approach calculation, showed a decrease from the prior year and was less than the 1.10 ratio noted
in the 2005 and 2012 bond documents. This calculation is a useful tool in determining if there is
sufficient coverage and helpful in monitoring when it is necessary to make adjustments to the rates
charged to customers and also to make necessary adjustments to spending. We recommended
management perform an analysis to determine if the current rates charged to customers are
sufficient to cover the cost of operations and debt repayment. In addition, we recommended
management monitor revenue and expenses in the Water, Sewer, and Sanitation fund in order to
make any necessary changes to spending to ensure an adequate debt service coverage ratio is met.

Status: The required debt service coverage ratio was met for the year ending 9-30-2022.
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Procurement:
1. Observation: In performing our review of the procurement compliance and procedures, we noted

that the City’s five-year depository contract expired on December 31, 2021. City Council approved
a resolution to extend the contract for one additional year. However, based on Local Government
Code 107.017, the contract should not exceed five years.

Recommendation: We recommend that management ensure that the depository contract term
adheres to State law.

Management Response: A request for Bank Depository Services, Security Clearance, and
Safekeeping Services was released November 8, 2022. West Texas National Bank was awarded
contract by City Council December 6, 2022 with the appropriate term limit defined in contract.

Observation: We noted that the Tourism Director's contract extension in 2020 consisted of
modifications to the original contract, but the contract term was unclear as the Term paragraph
reflected only the original contract term.

Recommendation: We recommend that a standard form or amendment is used for contract
extensions instead of modifying the original contract.

Management Response: Management agrees and is working with legal counsel.

. Observation: For one bid solicitation, we were not able to verify the receipt date for three of the

four bids to ensure they were received prior to the deadline because the evidence of the date and
time received was not maintained or available for review.

Recommendation: We recommend that management maintain all documentation related to
solicitations in order to ensure compliance with federal and state requirements.

Management Response: Management agrees and is keeping all receptacles the bids are received
in to ensure compliance.

Observation: We noted that the Request for Proposal included a performance bond requirement
in the amount of 100% of the annual value of the contract. However, the requirement was not
included in the contract, and the vendor has indicated that a performance bond will not be issued.

Recommendation: We recommend that management ensure that the awarded vendor includes all
the proposal requirements in their proposal and contract in order to be in compliance with the
applicable statutes.

Management Response: Management agrees with auditor’s recommendation.

Journal Entries:

5.

Observation: While conducting our review of journal entries, we noted that not all journal entries
are approved by someone other than the individual entering the journal entry. In addition, we noted
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not all of the supporting documentation was always attached in support for the amount or the
purpose of the entry and several entries were not posted properly for the interfund transactions and
transfers. Any time money is transferred to a new account that is for another fund, it should be
shown as a transfer in to one fund and a transfer out to the other fund. Transfers within the same
fund would not affect the income statement and would only reflect in the cash accounts.

Recommendation: To strengthen controls, we recommend that each entry be reviewed and
approved by a separate authorized individual other than the individual that is requesting and
entering the entry. In addition, we recommend that the appropriate approved form and all necessary
documentation that helps support the amounts and purpose of the journal entries including, bank
statements, the original entry if correcting entry is made, calculations or any other document that
supports the amounts or purpose of the entry be attached prior to the journal entry being recorded
in the accounting software to help ensure proper documentation and accurate posting. We also
recommend that management ensure the description and support for the journal entry agree with
the actual purpose of the journal entry.

Management Response: Management agrees with auditor’s recommendation and notes that the
finance department for fiscal year 2021-2022 had limited staff with knowledge and experience to
review and authorize the various journal entries prepared and entered.

Observation: While conducting our review of journal entries, we noted that the Social Security,
Medicare, retirement and insurance were not reclassified with the salary for an employee whose
salary was reclassified from one department to another.

Recommendation: We recommend management ensure that when salaries are reclassified for an
employee all related expenses to the salary are also reclassified.

Management Response: Management agrees with auditor’s recommendation.

Observation: While conducting our review of journal entries, we noted there were payroll related
transactions posted as GL entries instead of payroll transactions.

Recommendation: We recommend that management or staff ensure that the payroll items are
categorized properly in the software system.

Management Response: Management agrees with auditor’s recommendation.

Accounting and General Ledger:

Observation: It was noted that the general ledger balances for accounts receivable and customer
deposits in the Gas fund and the Water, Sewer, and Sanitation fund are not being reconciled and
adjusted monthly to the totals generated from the billing system. In addition, the adjustment credits
that are being applied to customers’ accounts in the billing system are also not being recorded in
the general ledger in a timely manner, and it appears that the adjustment debits are not being
recorded properly.
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Recommendation: To improve the accuracy of the general ledger balances throughout the year,
we recommend that any adjustment credits applied to customers’ accounts be recorded in the
general ledger and that the monthly accounts receivable and customer deposit reports from the
billing system be generated. Any discrepancies between the balances should be researched and
reconciled and any necessary adjustments be posted to the general ledger in a timely manner. We
also recommend obtaining clarification on how the billing system is accounting for the adjustment
debits and credits to ensure the appropriate general ledger adjustments are made to either the
accounts receivable and/or revenue accounts if applicable.

Management Response: Management agrees with auditor’s recommendation and is working with
the software company to obtain additional clarification and training on the system.

Observation: Based on our review of the receivable balances in the Community Development
fund and discussions with management, it appears there are several old outstanding resident loans
and grants with balances whose current status is unknown.

Recommendation: We recommend management perform a detailed review of all outstanding
resident loans and grant balances and take the appropriate action to collect any valid receivables.

Management Response: Management will work with legal counsel to determine validity and next
steps.

Observation: In reviewing the Billing Aging reports for the Water, Sewer, and Sanitation fund
and the Gas Utility Fund, we noted that there are unapplied payments and a significant number of
old receivable balances.

Recommendation: We recommend management review the unapplied payments and old balances
to determine if the unapplied payments are accurate and should be applied toward customer
balances and take the appropriate action to collect the old outstanding balances.

Management Response: Management agrees with auditor’s recommendation and will review
these old balances with utility customer service staff, legal counsel, and City Council.

Observation: In reviewing the City’s bank reconciliations, we noted that there are unreconciled
differences that management needs to research and correct for multiple bank accounts. In some
instances, the difference is unknown, and in others the difference is known, but the comrections have
not been made. There are differences in the following bank accounts: the General Fund operating,
HOT, the Water, Sewer, and Sanitation operating and customer deposits, Airport, and the Gas
operating and customer deposit accounts. In addition, there are several bank reconciliations that
have outstanding checks that are several years old.

Recommendation: We recommend management research and make all necessary corrections to
properly account for these unreconciled differences. We also recommend that reconciliations be
performed on a timely basis and any discrepancies be researched promptly to safeguard the City’s
funds. We also recommend that old outstanding checks be researched and either reissued or
escheated to the state.
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Management Response: Management determined part of the unreconciled differences are due to
posting dates and is working with the financial software company to address.

Observation: It appears that there are still a few processes with the accounting software that need
to be reviewed in order to more accurately account for items that cross fiscal years such as accruals
and voided checks, as well as the accruals and close out at the end of the fiscal year.

Recommendation: We recommend management consult with the accounting software company
on how the system was set up to automatically charge back items that crossed fiscal years such as
receivables and accruals and also voided checks. We recommend that receipts be set up to accrue
through a receivable account and not the same account as liabilities are accrued in. In addition,
when a check is voided in a different fiscal year than it was issued, it should not post back to the
original fiscal year since that will cause a discrepancy in the bank reconciliations and fund balance.

Management Response: Management continues to work with the financial software company to
address these concemns.

Observation: During our review of the allowance for uncollectible property tax, we noted that the
City has been using a flat 35% rate to calculate the allowance for uncollectible accounts.

Recommendation: We recommend City Management re-evaluate their allowance percentage and
do a historical analysis in order to determine if this is still the most appropriate percentage to apply.

Management Response: Management agrees and will review the uncollectible property tax and
make necessary recommendations.

Observation: While conducting our search for unrecorded liabilities, we noted four instances
where expenditures for the month of September, which were paid subsequent to year end, were not
properly accrued.

Recommendation: We recommend management implement procedures that would ensure
expenditures are posted in the correct accounting period.

Management Response: Management agrees with auditor’s recommendation and will implement
additional procedures to ensure expenditures are posted correctly.

Observation: During our review of civic center rental deposits and events security deposits, we
noted that the refunds and/or recognition of the revenue is not always being properly recorded or
reclassified after the event has occurred.

Recommendation: We recommend that once the event has transpired, the civic center rental
deposits either be refunded and offset the liability or recorded as revenue if appropriate. In addition,
we recommend the expense related to event security be charged against the deposit paid by the
event host. This will allow for proper accounting and record keeping of all the rental and security
deposits.
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Management Response: Administration and Finance are working together to property record
process civic center deposits and refunds.

16. Observation: During our review of the ground leases, we noted one lease where it appears the
lease agreement allows for potential annual rent increases; however, no rent increases have
occurred. It appears this has just been an oversight.

Recommendation: We recommend Airport management review the lease agreements and
implement the allowable rent increases in accordance with the signed contract.

Management Response: Airport management agrees and will review lease agreements.
Cash Disbursements:

17. Observation: While testing nonpayroll disbursements we noted several instances in which the
purchase orders were completed or approved after the invoice was received. We also noted a check
that was for a capital asset, but was coded to an expense account instead of the proper asset account.

Recommendation: We recommend management remind the various departments about the proper
purchase order process and be more diligent about following the approved procedures. In addition,
we recommend the purpose of the purchase also be included on the purchase order in order to help
with more accurate coding and accounting.

Management Response: Management continues to work with departments and remind them about
proper purchasing procedures and documentation.

18. Observation: While testing nonpayroll disbursements, we noted instances where there was no
evidence of review or approval of the invoices or other documentation prior to processing for
payment. In addition, we noted payments between funds for road repairs that did not have support
for how the charge was determined or calculated.

Recommendation: To strengthen controls, we recommend management document the review and
approval of all invoices that are processed for payment to ensure the appropriate amounts are paid.
In addition, we recommend that charges between funds have detailed support indicating how the
charges were calculated and determined.

Management Response: Nonpayroll disbursements are all reviewed prior to payment by a
member of the finance department. Vendor information, account numbers, invoice amounts, and
checking account information are reviewed for accuracy.

Water, Sewer, and Sanitation Billings:

19. Observation: While conducting our test of controls over the Water, Sewer, and Sanitation billings
and cash receipts, we noted four commercial customers who were charged the minimum residential
rate for a water meter ($6.00) rather than the minimum commercial rate for a water meter ($7.00)
as reflected on the City of Alpine website. In another instance, we noted one commercial customer
was charged the residential rate for garbage and related sales tax.
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Recommendation: We recommend management ensure the amounts charged to customers agree
with the rate schedules documented in the City Ordinances as approved by Council and agree with
what is published on the City’s website. In addition, we recommend that the billing department
implement, review and monitor procedures to ensure all customers are billed the proper rates.

Management Response: Management continues to work with staff on updating the City’s website
and ordinance in order to be consistent and accurate. Additional training has been provided to
billing department to review and monitor customer accounts.

Observation: While conducting our test of controls over the Water, Sewer, and Sanitation billings
and cash receipts, we noted one commercial customer outside of the city limits who was charged
for garbage and sales tax although this service was not provided to them by the City. In addition,
this customer was billed for water at inside city limit rates rather than outside city limits rates.

Recommendation: We recommend that the billing department implement, review and monitor
procedures to ensure all customers are billed the proper rates and confirm they are being billed for
the appropriate services.

Management Response: Additional training has been provided to billing department to review
and monitor customer accounts.

Observation: While conducting our test of controls over the Water, Sewer, and Sanitation billings
and cash receipts, we noted one residential customer who was not billed sales tax on her garbage
service. In another instance, we noted a residential customer who was charged the incorrect rate
for three months of garbage in fiscal year 2022, Prior to our audit the City made an adjustment to
the customer's account, but the adjustment made resulted in the customer being undercharged by
$14.

Recommendation: We recommend that the billing department implement, review and monitor
procedures to ensure all customers are billed the proper rates. We also recommend that when
adjustments are made to customer accounts, a thorough review of the calculations be made and
verified before posting.

Management Response: Additional training has been provided to billing department to review
and monitor customer accounts.

Observation: While conducting our test of controls over the Water, Sewer, and Sanitation billings
and cash receipts, we noted one residential customer was incorrectly charged a pro-rated sewer rate
for their first month's billing rather than the flat rate.

Recommendation: We recommend that the billing department review and monitor procedures to
ensure all new customers are charged the proper sewer rates upon account set up, including having
a second person review new accounts to ensure they are set up properly before the first billing goes
out.

Management Response: Additional training has been provided to the billing department to review
and monitor customer accounts.
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Inventory:

23.

Observation: The supply inventory for the Water, Sewer, and Sanitation fund appears to have
been completed in fiscal year 2022; however, the department has not finalized verifying the
purchase price for the individual inventory items and some are based upon estimates of current
pricing.

Recommendation: We recommend that a complete count of all inventory items continue to be
performed annually for all funds with inventory on hand, and we recommend the Water, Sewer,
and Sanitation department implement a method of tracking the cost of the items in inventory in
order to accurately adjust and report the value of the inventory.

Management Response: Management agrees with auditor’s recommendation and will work with
the department to properly track cost of items in inventory.

Grant Reconciliations and Requests:

24,

Observation: While performing our review of grant reconciliations, we noted that the general
ledger is not being reconciled to the grant reports on a monthly basis for all City grants.

Recommendation: We recommend management maintain reconciliations throughout the year for
each grant which details the expenditures that are requested for reimbursement from the grantor
and reconciles to what is recorded on the general ledger.

Management Response: Grant reconciliations will be implemented to allow for additional review
of expenditures and reimbursements.

Payroll:

25.

26.

Observation: While conducting our test over payroll transactions, we noted two employees who
were paid differential pay that was not supported by documentation in their personnel file.

Recommendation; We recommend that proper approval and supporting documentation be
maintained in each personnel file for base pay and any additional pay that is given to employees
for certifications or licenses. In addition, we recommend management performn a detailed review
of all differential pay to ensure proper supporting documentation, i.e., certifications, training
evidence, etc., is obtained and maintained in the personne] files.

Management Response: Management agrees with the auditor’s recommendation and will work
towards ensuring all proper supporting documentation is provided.

Observation: While conducting our test over payroll transactions, we noted one instance of an
employee who was not paid the total amount of overtime he was due.

Recommendation: We recommend that management implement a review procedure to ensure all
employee hours, including overtime, are appropriately calculated and paid.
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Management Response: Management agrees with the auditor’s recommendation in implementing
additional review procedures.

Observation: While conducting our test over payroll transactions, we noted one instance of a City
Council Member who received compensation for her attendance of the January 2022 City Council
meetings. Although we were able to confirm her attendance, we were unable to substantiate the
amount she received with any authorized documentation.

Recommendation: We recommend Council approve the compensation for City Council members
and include it in the City Ordinances or employee handbook.

Management Response: Management agrees with the auditor’s recommendation.

Observation: It was noted that the budget for debt payments are not broken out by principal and
interest.

Recommendation: For more accurate reporting we recommend the budgeted line items be broken
out separately for the principal and interest payments that are made on long term debt.

Management Response: Management will work with the finance department to make
improvements to budgeted line-items and proper utilization.

Observation: It was noted that the budget for the Hotel and Motel fund was not amended to
account for the increased advertising expenditures that were incurred in order to remain in
compliance with the requirements from Hotel Tax Code 351.

Recommendation: We recommend management implement procedures to monitor expenditures
throughout the year and make the necessary budget amendments to ensure adequate funds are
available before incurring the expenditures.

Management Response: The City is required to expend over fifty percent of revenue collected
towards advertising causing larger expenditures towards the end of the fiscal year in order to stay
compliant. Revenues received towards the end of the fiscal year can cause the need for budget
amendments or adjustments, as well as the need for additional expenses.
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CITY COUNCIL
MEETING AGENDA ITEM COVER MEMO
MARCH 5, 2024

To: Honorable Mayor and City Council

Agenda Item: Action Item 2 — Ordinance 2024-03-01
Agenda Sponsor: M. Antrim, City Manager

Memo Prepared By: G. Calderon, City Secretary

SYNOPSIS

Approve the first reading of Ordinance 2024-03-01, an ordinance amending Chapter 70 - Offenses
and Miscellaneous Provisions, Article II - Minors to the Alpine Code of Ordinances; Repealing
Division II - Curfew; Providing Findings of Fact, Repealer, Severability, Effective Date, Proper
Notice, and Hearing Clauses. (M. Antrim, City Manager)

BACKGROUND

e HB 1819 was passed in the 88" Legislative Session, which prohibits local governments
from enacting curfew ordinances for minors.

¢ As of September 1, 2023, state law preempts this ordinance. Ordinance 2024-03-01 was
drafted to repeal the preempted curfew ordinance to better align with state law.

¢ This ordinance would be repealing the curfew section of the code and leave the section
reserved for future development.

SUPPORTING MATERIALS

1. Ordinance 2024-03-01

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

APPROVE.




STATE OF TEXAS CITY OF ALPINE
COUNTY OF BREWSTER
ORDINANCE 2024-03-01

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALPINE, TEXAS
AMENDING CHAPTER 70 - OFFENSES AND MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS,
ARTICLE I1I — MINORS TO THE ALPINE CODE OF ORDINANCES; REPEALING
DIVISION 1II - CURFEW; PROVIDING FINDINGS OF FACT, REPEALER,
SEVERABILITY, EFFECTIVE DATE, PROPER NOTICE, AND HEARING CLAUSES.

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Alpine has cause in its legislative pursuit to
modify rules, regulations, and ordinances that benefit the City; and

WHEREAS, House Bill 1819 passed in the 88" Legislative Session, and prohibits local
governments from imposing curfew requirements for minors in Texas; and

WHEREAS, the bill became effective on September 1, 2023, which preempted the local
curfew ordinance in Alpine; and

WHEREAS, the City Council deems it to be in the public interest to officially repeal the
Jjuvenile curfew ordinance to better align with state requirements.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
ALPINE, TEXAS THAT:

SECTION 1
FINDINGS OF FACT

Chapter 70 — Offenses and Miscellaneous Provisions, Article II — Minors, to the Alpine Code of
Ordinances is hereby amended to reflect the updates attached hereto as Exhibit “A.” The premises
attached as Exhibit “A” are hereby found to be true and correct legislative and factual findings of
the City Council of the City of Alpine and are hereby approved and incorporated herein as findings
of fact.

SECTION I
INCLUSION IN THE CODE OF ORDINANCES

The provisions of this ordinance shall become and be made a part of the Code of Ordinances of
Alpine, Texas. The sections of the ordinance may be renumbered or re-lettered to accomplish such,
and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section,” “article,” or any other appropriate word.
The codifier of the city is empowered to make amendments to match the style of the existing code.

SECTION III
CUMULATIVE CLAUSE

This ordinance shall be cumulative of all provisions of the City of Alpine, Texas, except where the
provisions of this ordinance are in direct conflict with the provisions of such ordinance, in which
event the conflicting provisions of such ordinance are hereby repealed.
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SECTION IV
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE

It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council of the City of Alpine that the phrases,
clauses, sentences, paragraphs, and sections of this ordinance are severable, and if any phrase,
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared unconstitutional by the
valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality shall not
affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences paragraphs or sections of the ordinances,
since the same would have been enacted by the City Council without incorporation in this
ordinance of any such unconstitutional phrases, clause, sentence, paragraph or section.

SECTION V
PROPER NOTICE AND MEETING

It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this ordinance was adopted
was open to the public and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was
given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.

SECTION VI
PUBLIC HEARING

A public hearing was held on March 19, 2024, where interested parties had the opportunity to
make public comments on this ordinance prior to approval. Notice of the date and time of the
hearing and notice of how to obtain copies of the proposed ordinance was published in the Alpine
Avalanche, the official newspaper of the City of Alpine on March 14, 2024,

SECTION VII
EFFECTIVE DATE
This ordinance shall be effective upon passage and publication as required by State and Local law.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 19" DAY OF MARCH 2024 BY THE CITY COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF ALPINE, TEXAS.

INTRODUCTION AND FIRST READING SECOND AND FINAL READING
MARCH 5, 2024 MARCH 19, 2024

APPROVED: ATTEST:

Catherine Eaves, Mayor Geoffrey R. Calderon, City Secretary
APPROVED AS TO FORM:

City Attorney
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EDITOR’S NOTE:

Additions are Underlined.

Omisonsappearti-Hed-Seihethrossh Tast,

*** Indicates that there are no changes in a
particular section and all the text within the current
ordinance will remain unchanged.

EXHIBIT “A”
Chapter 70 OFFENSES AND MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

ARTICLE I. IN GENERAL

¥k

70-6—70-35. Reserved.

ARTICLE II. MINORS
DIVISION 1. GENERALLY

Sec. 70-36. Display of sexually explicit material.

(a) Inthis section, the term "display” means to locate an item in such manner that it is available to the general
public for handling and inspection, or that the cover or outside packaging on an item is visible to members of
the general public, without obtaining assistance from an employee of a business establishment.

(b) A person commits an offense if, in a business establishment open to persons under the age of 17 years, he
displays a book, pamphlet, newspaper, magazine, film or videotape with the knowledge that it depicts:

(1) Human sexual intercourse, masturbation or sedomy;

(2) Fondling or other erotic touching of human genitals, pubic region, buttocks or female breasts;

(3) Less than completely and opaquely covered human genitals, buttocks or that portion of the female breast
below the top of the areola; or

(4) Human male genitals in a discemibly turgid state, whether covered or uncovered;

in a manner calculated to arouse a sexual lust or passion for commercial gain or to exploit sexual lust or perversion
for commercial gain.

(Code 1978, § 18-10)

Secs. 70-37—70-60. Reserved.

DIVISION 2. RESERVED
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Secs, 70-61—70-69. Reserved.
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CITY COUNCIL
MEETING AGENDA ITEM COVER MEMO
MARCH 5, 2024

To: Honorable Mayor and City Council

Agenda Item: Action Item 3 — Resolution 2024-03-01 — FY2025 Operation Lonestar
Agenda Sponsor: M. Antrim, City Manager

Memo Submitted By: Marci Tuck, Grant Writer

SYNOPSIS

Approve Resolution 2024-03-01, a resolution authorizing the City's Police Department to participate in
the Office of the Governor's Public Safety Office, Homeland Security Grants Division, Operation
Lonestar (OLS) Program for FY 2025. (M. Antrim, City Manager)

BACKGROUND

* The Office of the Govemor, Public Safety Office, has been a valuable partner for Alpine
Police Department in providing grant funds for officer overtime efforts as well as
necessary equipment in the past.

® These funds are granted at 100% reimbursement of awarded amount, meaning there is
minimal expenses required by the City of Alpine if awarded.

® The FY25 Operation Lonestar Program (OLS) grant application request includes $19,522
for a projected 600 hours of officer overtime as well as $87,746 for two (2) trailered,
stand-alone License Plate Readers, for a total request of $107,268.

* Conditions of Funding in this grant include the following recent requirements:

(A full list of Conditions is attached)
o Letter from County Attorney to prosecute criminal charges resulting from OLS
efforts;
o Declaration of Border Crisis affects in the community;
o Clearly defined City/APD Overtime Policies;
o OT must be worked to secure border security operations.

SUPPORTING MATERIALS

Resolution 2024-03-01

FY 2025 Grant Announcement

OLS FY25 Program-Specific Guidelines (Conditions of Funding)

Previous Declaration of Local State of Disaster due to Intemational Border Crisis (approved
10//21/2021)
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| STAFF RECOMMENDATION

APPROVE: City Staff supports approval of this ordinance.




STATE OF TEXAS
CITY OF ALPINE
COUNTY OF BREWSTER

RESOLUTION 2024-03-01

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALPINE, TEXAS
AUTHORIZING THE CITY’S POLICE DEPARTMENT TO PARTICIPATE IN THE
OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR’S, PUBLIC SAFETY OFFICE, HOMELAND SECURITY
GRANTS DIVISION, OPERATION LONE STAR (OLS) PROGRAM FOR FY2025.

WHEREAS, the City of Alpine is committed to provide for the safety and welfare of its citizens;
and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Alpine finds it in the best interest of the citizens of
Alpine that the City participate on the Office of the Governor, Public Safety Office, Operation
Lone Star Program (OLS) for FY2025; and

WHEREAS, the City of Alpine agrees to provide applicable matching funds for the OOG
Grant#5061101, a funding request for officer overtime hours as well as two License Plate
Readers, as required by the OLS application; and

WHEREAS, the City of Alpine agrees that in the event of loss or misuse of the Office of the
Governor funds, the City of Alpine assures that the funds will be returned to the Office of the
Governor in full; and

WHEREAS, the City of Alpine designates the City Manager as the grantee’s authorized official,
with the power to apply for, accept, reject, alter, or terminate the grant on behalf of the applicant
agency.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
ALPINE, TEXAS THAT:

SECTION 1. The City Council hereby authorizes submission of the grant application for the
Office of the Governor, Public Safety Office, Homeland Security Grants Division, Operation Lone
Star Program to provide funds for overtime operations and two License Plate Readers for the
Alpine Police Department.

SECTION II. The City Council authorizes any additional or matching funds needed as defined
by the OLS application.

SECTION III. This resolution is effective immediately upon its passage.

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED BY A MAJORITY VOTE OF THE CITY
COUNCIL ON THIS THE 5" DAY OF MARCH 2024 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF ALPINE, TEXAS.
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Catherine Eaves, Mayor

ATTEST:

Geoffrey R. Calderon, City Secretary
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Funding Opportunities

N ) .
ame Available

Operation Lone 01/15/2024
Star Grant

Program (OLS), Due Date
FY2025

Purpose:

The Public Safety Office (PS0) is soliciting grant applications for
local projects that support Operation Lone Star.

The purpose of the program is to enhance interagency border
security operations supporting Operation Lone Star including the
facilitation of directed actions to deter and interdict criminal activity.
Program participants shall assist in the execution of coordinated
border security operations to:

Law Enforcement

*» Increase the effectiveness and impact of Operation Lone Star.

» Reduce border-related criminal activity in Texas.

» Implement and increase the effectiveness of operational
methods, measures, and techniques for outbound/southbound
operations.




* Decrease the supply of drugs smuggled into and through Texas
from Mexico.

» Disrupt and deter operations of gang and cartel criminal
organizations.

* Decrease specifically targeted tactics (such as conveyance
methods) for drugs in the Texas border region.

* Decrease use of specific areas for crime as targeted in directed
action missions.

* Increase the effectiveness of directed action missions based
upon intelligence and analysis to ensure they target the most
serious threats and are conducted in high pay-off areas.

* Increase the number and quality of analytical intelligence
products developed at the Unified Command and state levels.

* |ncrease coordination between local and state law enforcement
agencies in planning, execution, and analysis of border security
operations.

Jail Operations

* Increase capacity for detention operations and other supporting
functions associated with increased criminal activity due to
surges in illegal migration.

Human Remains Processing

» Support county medical examiner offices in the humane
processing of the remains of undocumented migrants.

Court Administration

* Increase capacity and expediency in case preparation,
magistration, pre/post-adjudication proceedings, and criminal
trials of OLS defendants.

Fire/EMS Operations
* Increase capacity for fire/EMS operations in direct support of
OLs.

Available Funding:

State funds for these projects are authorized under the Texas
General Appropriations Act, Article |, for Trusteed Programs within

- - -




appropriated funds and any modifications or additional requirements
that may be imposed by law.

Eligible Organizations:

1. Units of local government; and

2. Federally Recognized Native American tribes.

3. Eligible applicants must be a county, or a municipality located in a
county that has issued a disaster declaration relating to border
security.

4. Preference will be given to eligible applicants within or providing
support services to a County that is:

« adjacent to or a portion of which are located within 20 miles of
an international border;

« adjacent to two counties located on an international border with
a population of more than 5,000 and less than 7,500 according
to the most recent federal decennial census; or

+ adjacent to the Gulf Intracoastal Waterway, as defined by
Section 51.002, Transportation Code;

5. Jurisdictions not physically located within a county described in
item 4. above (border county), but applying to provide support
services to a jurisdiction that is physically located within a border
county must submit a letter of support, memorandum of
understanding or other similar documentation from the border
county(ies) requesting their supportive services.

Application Process:

Applicants must access the Office of the Governor's eGrants grant
management website at https://eGrants.gov.texas.gov to register
and apply for funding.




Funding Announcement 01/15/2024

Release

Online System Opening Date 01/15/2024

Final Date to Submit and 03/14/2024 at 5:00PM CST
Certify an Application

Earliest Project Start Date 09/01/2024

Project Period:

Projects must begin on or after 09/01/2024 and may not exceed
08/31/2025.

Funding Levels

Minimum: $20,000
Maximum: $5,000,000

Match Requirement: None

Standards

Grantees must comply with standards applicable to this fund source
cited in the Texas Grant Management Standards (TxGMS), Federal
Uniform Grant Guidance, and all statutes, requirements, and
guidelines applicable to this funding.

Eligible Activities and Costs

Funding may be used to provide additional personnel, equipment,
supplies, contractual support, travel, and training in support of
Operation Lone Star activities, including for any one or more of the
following activities.

Operation Lone Star - Law Enforcement. Activities related to law
enforcement operations in support of OLS:

LAW ENFORCEMENT PERSONNEL - OVERTIME




« Overtime for increased patrol, search and rescue, recovery
operations, and/or investigative capacity for certified peace
officers.

* Overtime for law enforcement support personnel. These costs
may include overtime for personnel necessary to support
officers that are on patrol and participating in Operation Lone
Star, such as Communications Officer/Dispatcher overtime
necessary to maintain a safe Officer to Dispatcher ratio.

* Overtime for non-exempt administrative personnel supporting
Operation Lone Star.

» Overtime backfill costs for non-border county agencies directly
supporting OLS. Agencies must upload a letter of support from
the border county for which the non-border county intends to
provide law enforcement personnel.

LAW ENFORCEMENT PERSONNEL - REGULAR or STRAIGHT-TIME
& TEMPORARY POSITIONS

» Augmentees: Personnel costs for law enforcement personnel
who are not regular employees of a funded agency, but are
brought on as needed to specifically cover border security
operations so that there can be a force multiplier during
Operation Lone Star.

¢ Regular time for law enforcement personnel working border
operations. Grant funds must be used to supplement existing
funds and not supplant funds that have been budgeted for the
same purpose.

¢ Part-time to Full-Time: Personnel costs for part-time law
enforcement personnel in order to bring them to temporary full-
time status.

« Regular time for administrative personnel supporting OLS law
enforcement activities.

» Hiring or contracting temporary staff to support OLS law
enforcement activities.

» Personnel backfill costs for non-border county agencies directly
supporting OLS. Agencies must upload a letter of support from
the border county for which the non-border county intends to
provide law enforcement personnel.

LAW ENFORCEMENT - EQUIPMENT & TECHNOLOGY




 Costs for equipment, technology, or the rental of equipment,
which will benefit the border security mission and will be
routinely utilized during Operation Lone Star.

LAW ENFORCEMENT - SUPPLIES and DIRECT OPERATING
EXPENSE

» General office supplies and program supplies related to OLS law
enforcement activities. Operational costs are also allowable,
such as vehicle operating costs or costs for minor emergency
repairs as described below, or for other services pre-approved
by the PSO that are critical to success of the program. Examples
include:

o The cost of fuel, lubricants, and minor emergency repairs or
maintenance for vehicles, and similar equipment used
during the hours in which grant-funded staff are working.

o Only actual expenses supported by invoiced gas, oil, and
repair or maintenance receipts may be reimbursed under
this grant.

o Maintenance costs must be prorated to show the usage of
vehicles or equipment for regular law enforcement duties
as compared to usage while officers are working grant-paid
patrols.

LAW ENFORCEMENT - TRAVEL & TRAINING

* Travel, per diem, and lodging costs associated with personnel,
augmentees, or contractors engaged in OLS activities.

Operation Lone Star - Human Remains Processing. Activities related
to the humane processing of the remains of undocumented
migrants:

MEDICAL EXAMINER PERSONNEL - OVERTIME

* Overtime for OLS death investigations conducted by a medical
examiner, deputy examiner, trained technician, or a forensic
pathologist as authorized under Article 49.25 of the Code of
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* Overtime for non-exempt administrative personnel supporting a
County Medical Examiner’s Office.

MEDICAL EXAMINER PERSONNEL - REGULAR or STRAIGHT-TIME
& TEMPORARY POSITIONS

¢ Regular time for county medical examiner personnel conducting
OLS death investigations. Grant funds must be used to
supplement existing funds and not supplant funds that have
been budgeted for the same purpose.

+ Part-time to Full-Time: Personnel costs for part-time county
medical examiner personnel to bring them to temporary full-time
status.

* Regular time for administrative personnel supporting a County
Medical Examiner’s Office.

» Hiring or contracting temporary staff to assist or conduct OLS
death investigations.

MEDICAL EXAMINER - EQUIPMENT & TECHNOLOGY

» Costs for equipment, technology, or the rental of equipment
related to the processing of OLS death investigations, temporary
morgues, and/or additional body storage capacity.

MEDICAL EXAMINER - SUPPLIES and DIRECT OPERATING
EXPENSE

» Costs for supplies and direct operating expenses related to
conducting OLS death investigations.

MEDICAL EXAMINER - CONTRACTUAL

» Costs associated with the outsourcing of OLS death
investigations, temporary body storage, and other contractual
costs incurred by a county medical examiner’s office related to
the humane processing of the remains of undocumented
migrants.

Operation Lone Star — Jail Operations. Activities related to the
intake, processing, and holding of OLS inmates in local detention
facilities.




JAIL OPERATIONS PERSONNEL - OVERTIME

» Overtime for jailers and support staff related to the intake,
processing, and holding of OLS inmates.

* Overtime for non-exempt administrative personnel supporting a
local detention facility.

» Overtime backfill costs for non-border county agencies directly
supporting OLS. Agencies must upload a letter of support from
the border county for which the non-border county intends to
provide jailers.

JAIL OPERATIONS PERSONNEL - REGULAR or STRAIGHT-TIME &
TEMPORARY POSITIONS

» Augmentees: Personnel costs for jailers who are not regular
employees of a funded agency, but are brought on as needed to
specifically assist in the intake, processing, and holding of OLS
inmates.

» Regular time for jailers. Grant funds must be used to
supplement existing funds and not supplant funds that have
been budgeted for the same purpose.

¢ Part-time to Full-Time: Personnel costs for part-time jailers to
bring them to temporary full-time status.

 Regular time for administrative personnel supporting OLS
corrections activities.

« Hiring or contracting temporary jail staff to support OLS
corrections activities.

« Personnel backfill costs for non-border county agencies directly
supporting OLS. Agencies must upload a letter of support from
the border county for which the non-border county intends to
provide jailers.

JAIL OPERATIONS - EQUIPMENT & TECHNOLOGY

 Costs for equipment, technology, or the rental of equipment
related to the intake, processing, and holding of OLS inmates.

JAIL OPERATIONS - SUPPLIES and DIRECT OPERATING EXPENSE

» Costs for office supplies, program supplies, and other direct




holding of OLS inmates. Examples include: Inmate
transportation to court proceedings or state custody.

JAIL OPERATIONS - CONTRACTUAL

» Costs associated with outsourcing OLS inmates to other county
jail facilities and/or other contractual costs incurred by a county
jail facility related to the intake, processing, and holding of OLS
inmates.

JAIL OPERATIONS - TRAVEL & TRAINING

¢ Travel, per diem, and lodging costs associated with jail
personnel, augmentees, or contractors engaged in OLS
corrections activities.

Operation Lone Star — Court Administration. Activities related to the
case preparation, magistration, pre/post-adjudication proceedings,
and criminal trials of OLS defendants.

COURT ADMINISTRATION PERSONNEL — OVERTIME

* Qvertime for courtroom staff, court coordinators, and clerks
supporting court operations, including but not limited to, case
preparation, magistration, pre/post-adjudication proceedings,
and criminal trials for OLS defendants.

COURT ADMINISTRATION PERSONNEL - REGULAR or STRAIGHT-
TIME & TEMPORARY POSITIONS

* Regular time for courtroom staff, court coordinators, and clerks.
Grant funds must be used to supplement existing funds and not
supplant funds that have been budgeted for the same purpose.

¢ Part-time to Full-Time: Personnel costs for part-time courtroom
staff, court coordinators, and clerks to bring them to temporary
full-time status.

» Hiring or contracting temporary courtroom staff, court
coordinators, and clerks to support OLS courts activities.

AT ARLGAILIIATM ATTIALMY FAlliRLAFLIT 8 TrEMAl IklmAal Asnyg




» Costs for equipment and technology to support court
operations, including but not limited to, case preparation,
magistration, pre/post-adjudication proceedings, and criminal
trials for OLS defendants.

COURT ADMINISTRATION - SUPPLIES and DIRECT OPERATING
EXPENSE

» Costs for office supplies, program supplies, and other direct
operating expenses to support court operations, including but
not limited to, magistration, pre/post-adjudication proceedings,
and criminal trials for OLS defendants.

COURT ADMINISTRATION - CONTRACTUAL

» Costs associated with contractual costs incurred to support
court operations, including but not limited to, magistration,
pre/post-adjudication proceedings, and criminal trials for OLS
defendants.

Operation Lone Star - Fire/EMS Operations. Activities related to
emergency response efforts provided by locally operated Fire/EMS
agencies.

FIRE/EMS OPERATIONS (RESCUE) — OVERTIME

» Overtime for increased rescue call volume, search and rescue,
and/or recovery operations.

» Overtime for rescue support personnel. These costs may
include overtime for personnel necessary to support rescue
personnel that are operating on incident scenes and
participating in Operation Lone Star, such as
telecommunications professional overtime necessary to
maintain a safe responder to dispatcher ratio.

» Overtime for non-exempt administrative personnel supporting
Operation Lone Star.

FIRE/EMS OPERATIONS (RESCUE) — REGULAR or STRAIGHT-TIME
& TEMPORARY POSITIONS




* Part-time to Full-time: Personnel costs for part-time rescue
personnel in order to bring them to temporary full-time status.

* Hiring or contracting temporary staff to support OLS rescue
activities.

FIRE/EMS OPERATIONS - EQUIPMENT & TECHNOLOGY

* Costs for equipment, technology, or the rental of equipment,
which will benefit the border security mission and will be
routinely utilized during Operation Lone Star.

FIRE/EMS OPERATIONS (RESCUE) — SUPPLIES and DIRECT
OPERATING EXPENSE

» General office supplies and program supplies related to OLS
rescue activities. Operational costs are also allowable, such as
vehicle operating costs or costs for minor emergency repairs as
described below, or for other services pre-approved by the PSO
that are critical to success of the program. Examples include:

o Costs associated with fuel, lubricants, and minor
emergency repairs or maintenance for vehicles, and similar
equipment used during the hours in which grant-funded
staff are working.

o Only actual expenses supported by invoiced gas, oil, and
repair or maintenance receipts may be reimbursed under
this grant.

o Maintenance costs must be prorated to show the usage of
vehicles or equipment for regular rescue duties as
compared to usage while first responders are working
grant-funded rescue operations.

FIRE/EMS OPERATIONS - TRAVEL & TRAINING
» Travel, per diem, and lodging costs associated with personnel,
augmentees, or contractors engaged in OLS activities.

Program-Specific Requirements

1. Eligible applicants, as applicable, assure to continue and/or renew
a local disaster declaration relating to border security for the entirety
of the project period. The expiration or dissolution of a local disaster
declaration may result in the early termination of the grant
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2. Eligible applicants in a border county, as described in the Eligible
Organizations section, must upload a letter from the county attorney
expressing their office’s active participation in prosecuting
misdemeanor offenses, as appropriate, in support of Operation Lone

Star.

3. Eligible applicants performing law enfarcement functions must
agree to perform the following activities:

Participate in operational planning and coordination meetings,
information/intelligence sharing meetings, and After Action
Reviews (AARs) established by the Texas Department of Public
Safety’s (DPS) Joint Operations and Intelligence Centers
(JOICs).

Participate weekly on the JOIC Unified Command conference
calls or meetings as required by the JOIC.

Report significant border-related events that occur during each
24-hour period.

Conduct enhanced law enforcement patrolling activities if
funded for those activities through this grant.

Submit information on incidents using the Border Incident
Assessment Report (BIAR).

o The grantee shall report all border-related incidents to the
appropriate JOIC using the BIAR. BIAR reporting shall
include events that occur during Enhanced Operation
activities AND events that occur during Steady State
activities. Enhanced (Surge) Operations originate out of the
use of Lone Star funds when the local agency chooses to
increase the hours of patrol or investigations. Steady State
activities are defined as normal patrol or investigative
duties that do not use grant funds, but directly impact the
overall Lone Star mission, such as organized crime arrests,
terroristic activities, weapons trafficking arrests,
kidnappings, human trafficking, human smuggling, home
invasions with a border or organized crime nexus, illegal
immigration, border-related murders, gang-related murders,
vehicle thefts, or drua trafficking.




o The BIAR is the primary incident and information-reporting
tool for the grantee in local border security operations. The
grantee shall ensure all BIARs conform to the respective
standards outlined by the JOIC and are submitted within 24
hours of the end of shift and/or the timeframes established
by the JOIC.

4. Coordinate planning and execution of border security and
supporting operations with the DPS South Texas or West Texas, if
requested by those regions.

5. Applicants performing overtime activities must provide a copy of
the local overtime policy as approved by its governing board. This
policy will be considered the official policy for grant purposes and
must be used throughout the grant period. The policy must:

Clearly describe how overtime will be calculated;

Be consistent with the agency’s local overtime policy;

Treat overtime for grant-paid personnel the same as non-grant
paid personnel.

6. Project Overtime (OT) shall be reimbursed following the grantee’s
overtime policy and the requirements as stated below:

OT is time actually worked that exceeds the required number of
hours during an employee’s designated work period, as per
grantee’s policies and procedures.

OT must be worked to support border security operations.

The project OT rate shall be no more than one-and-one-half (1.5)
times the employee’s regular pay rate.

Exempt salaried employees working border security operations
may be reimbursed for overtime only if the grantee’s overtime
policy specifically allows for this.

PSO will only reimburse the grantee for OT that does not exceed
a total of 16 hours worked (regular plus OT) during any 24-hour
period.




1. Local units of governments must comply with the Cybersecurity
Training requirements described in Section 772.012 and Section
2054.5191 of the Texas Government Code. Local governments
determined to not be in compliance with the cybersecurity
requirements required by Section 2054.5191 of the Texas
Government Code are ineligible for 00G grant funds until the second
anniversary of the date the local government is determined ineligible.
Government entities must annually certify their compliance with the
training requirements using the Cybersecurity Training Certification
for State and Local Governments. A copy of the Training Certification
must be uploaded to your eGrants application. For more information
or to access available training programs, visit the Texas Department
of Information Resources Statewide Cybersecurity Awareness
[raining page.

2. Entities receiving funds from PSO must be located in a county that
has an average of 90% or above on both adult and juvenile
dispositions entered into the computerized criminal history database
maintained by the Texas Department of Public Safety (DPS) as
directed in the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure, Chapter 66. The
disposition completeness percentage is defined as the percentage
of arrest charges a county reports to DPS for which a disposition has
been subsequently reported and entered into the computerized
criminal history system.

Counties applying for grant awards from the Office of the Governor
must commit that the county will report at least 90 percent of
convictions within five business days to the Criminal Justice
Information System at the Department of Public Safety.

3. Eligible applicants operating a law enforcement agency must be
current on reporting complete UCR data and the Texas specific
reporting mandated by 411.042 TGC, to the Texas Department of
Public Safety (DPS) for inclusion in the annual Crime in Texas (CIT)
publication. To be considered eligible for funding, applicants must
have submitted a full twelve months of accurate data to DPS for the
most recent calendar year by the deadline(s) established by DPS.




submit complete and accurate UCR data, as well as the Texas-
mandated reporting, on a no less than monthly basis and respond
promptly to requests from DPS related to the data submitted.

4. In accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 420.034, any
facility or entity that collects evidence for sexual assault or other sex
offenses or investigates or prosecutes a sexual assault or other sex
offense for which evidence has been collected, must participate in
the statewide electronic tracking system developed and
implemented by the Texas Department of Public Safety. Visit DPS's
Sexual Assault Evidence Tracking Program website for more
information or to set up an account to begin participating.
Additionally, per Section 420.042 "A law enforcement agency that
receives evidence of a sexual assault or other sex offense...shall
submit that evidence to a public accredited crime laboratory for
analysis no later than the 30th day after the date on which that
evidence was received." A law enforcement agency in possession of
a significant number of Sexual Assault Evidence Kits (SAEK) where
the 30-day window has passed may be considered noncompliant.

5. Local units of government, including cities, counties and other
general purpose political subdivisions, as appropriate, and
institutions of higher education that operate a law enforcement
agency, must comply with all aspects of the programs and
procedures utilized by the U.S. Department of Homeland Security
("DHS") to: (1) notify DHS of all information requested by DHS
related to illegal aliens in Agency’s custody; and (2) detain such
illegal aliens in accordance with requests by DHS. Additionally,
counties and municipalities may NOT have in effect, purport to have
in effect, or make themselves subject to or bound by, any law, rule,
policy, or practice (written or unwritten) that would: (1) require or
authorize the public disclosure of federal law enforcement
information in order to conceal, harbor, or shield from detection
fugitives from justice or aliens illegally in the United States; or (2)
impede federal officers from exercising authority under 8 U.S.C. §
1226(a), § 1226(c), § 1231(a), § 1357(a), § 1366(1), or § 1366(3).
Lastly, eliaible applicants must comply with all provisions. policies,




and penalties found in Chapter 752, Subchapter C of the Texas
Government Code.

Each local unit of government, and institution of higher education
that operates a law enforcement agency, must download, complete
and then upload into eGrants the CEQ/Law Enforcement
Certifications and Assurances Form certifying compliance with
federal and state immigration enforcement requirements. This Form
is required for each application submitted to O0G and is active until
August 31, 2025 or the end of the grant period, whichever is later.

6. Eligible applicants must be registered in the federal System for
Award Management (SAM) database and have an UEI (Unique Entity
ID) number assigned to its agency (to get registered in the SAM
database and request an UEI number, go to https:/sam.gov/)

Failure to comply with program eligibility requirements may cause
funds to be withheld and/or suspension or termination of grant
funds.

Prohibitions

Grant funds may not be used to support the unallowable costs listed
in the Guide to Grants or any of the following unallowable costs:
1. Inherently religious activities such as prayer, worship, religious
instruction, or proselytization;
2. Lobbying;
3. Any portion of the salary of, or any other compensation for, an
elected or appointed government official;
4. Vehicles or equipment for government agencies that are for
general agency use;
5. Weapons, ammunition, tasers, or explosives;
6. Admission fees or tickets to any amusement park, recreational
activity or sporting event;
7. Promotional gifts;
8. Food, meals, beverages, or other refreshments, except for
eligible per diem associated with grant-related travel;
9. Membership dues for individuals;
10. Any expense or service that is readily available at no cost to the




11. Any use of grant funds to replace (supplant) funds that have
been budgeted for the same purpose through non-grant
sources;

12. Fundraising;

13. Salary Stipends;

14. Aircraft (including sUAS, drones, unmanned aerial aircraft);

15. Fire Engines;

16. Ambulances (types 1, 2, & 3);

17. Any other prohibition imposed by federal, state, or local law.

Selection Process

Application Screening: PSO will screen all applications to ensure
that they meet the requirements included in the funding
announcement.

Peer/Merit Review: Applications will be reviewed by PSO staff in
consultation with subject matter experts appointed by the PSO
Executive Director. Funding decisions will be based on eligibility and
operational content, which includes, but is not limited to, the
following:

1. Compliance - Past compliance with grant requirements,
reporting, and information sharing.

2. Performance — Impact and effectiveness of the Applicant's
participation in previous border security operations or activities,
and effectiveness in using grant funds awarded for border
security.

3. Risk — The Applicant’s need as indicated by data available on
border-related criminal activity, population, and other factors.

4. Other Funding - The Applicant’s history of applying for,
receiving, and/or effectively utilizing other sources of funding
available to support border security activities (e.g. Operation
Stonegarden).

Final Decisions: The Office of the Governor will consider rankings
along with other factors and make all final funding decisions. Other
factors may include reasonableness, cost effectiveness, overall
funds availability, geographic distribution, or other relevant factors.




The Office of the Governor may not fund all applications or may only
award part of the amount requested. In the event that funding
requests exceed available funds, the Office of the Governor may
revise projects to address a more limited focus.

Contact Information

For more information, contact the eGrants help desk at
eGrants@gov.texas.gov or (512) 463-1919.

Total Funds

S$TBD




FIRE/EMS OPERATIONS - TRAVEL & TRAINING
e Travel, per diem, and lodging costs associated with personnel, augmentees, or contractors
engaged in OLS activities.

Program-Specific Requirements

1. Eligible applicants, as applicable, assure to continue and/or renew a local disaster declaration
relating to border security for the entirety of the project period. The expiration or dissolution of
a local disaster declaration may result in the early termination of the grant agreement.

2. Eligible applicants in a border county, as described in the Eligible Organizations section, must
upload a letter from the county attorney expressing their office’s active participation in
prosecuting misdemeanor offenses, as appropriate, in support of Operation Lone Star.

3. Eligible applicants performing law enforcement functions must agree to perform the
following activities:

e Participate in operational planning and coordination meetings, information/intelligence
sharing meetings, and After Action Reviews (AARs) established by the Texas Department of
Public Safety’s (DPS) Joint Operations and Intelligence Centers (JOICs).

¢ Participate weekly on the JOIC Unified Command conference calls or meetings as required
by the JOIC.

e Report significant border-related events that occur during each 24-hour period.

e Conduct enhanced law enforcement patrolling activities if funded for those activities
through this grant.

¢ Submit information on incidents using the Border Incident Assessment Report (BIAR).

o The grantee shall report all border-related incidents to the appropriate JOIC using the
BIAR. BIAR reporting shall include events that occur during Enhanced Operation
activities AND events that occur during Steady State activities. Enhanced (Surge)
Operations originate out of the use of Lone Star funds when the local agency chooses
to increase the hours of patrol or investigations. Steady State activities are defined as
normal patrol or investigative duties that do not use grant funds, but directly impact
the overall Lone Star mission, such as organized crime arrests, terroristic activities,
weapons trafficking arrests, kidnappings, human trafficking, human smuggling, home
invasions with a border or organized crime nexus, illegal immigration, border-related
murders, gang-related murders, vehicle thefts, or drug trafficking.

o The BIAR is the primary incident and information-reporting tool for the grantee in local
border security operations. The grantee shall ensure all BIARs conform to the
respective standards outlined by the JOIC and are submitted within 24 hours of the
end of shift and/or the timeframes established by the JOIC.



4, Coordinate planning and execution of border security and supporting operations with the
DPS South Texas or West Texas, if requested by those regions.

5. Applicants performing overtime activities must provide a copy of the local overtime policy as
approved by its governing board. This policy will be considered the official policy for grant
purposes and must be used throughout the grant period. The policy must:

e Clearly describe how overtime will be calculated;

¢ Be consistent with the agency's local overtime policy;

¢ Treat overtime for grant-paid personnel the same as non-grant paid personnel.

6. Project Overtime (OT) shall be reimbursed following the grantee’s overtime policy and the
requirements as stated below:
e OT is time actually worked that exceeds the required number of hours during an
employee’s designated work period, as per grantee’s policies and procedures.
e OT must be worked to support border security operations.
e The project OT rate shall be no more than one-and-one-haif (1.5) times the employee’s
regular pay rate.
¢ Exempt salaried employees working border security operations may be reimbursed for
overtime only if the grantee’s overtime policy specifically allows for this.
e PSO will only reimburse the grantee for OT that does not exceed a total of 16 hours worked
(regular plus OT) during any 24-hour period.



STATE OF TEXAS
CITY OF ALPINE
COUNTY OF BREWSTER

RESOLUTION 2021-10-01

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALPINE, TEXAS
AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF ALPINE TO PARTICIPATE IN THE STATE
HOMELAND SECURITY -~ FY 2022 OPERATION LONE STAR GRANT PROGRAM.

WHEREAS, the City of Alpine is committed to provide for the safety and welfare of its citizens;
and

WHEREAS, the City of Alpine finds it to be in the best interest of the citizens of Alpine that the
City participate in the Office of the Governor, Public Safety Office, Homeland Security Grants
Division, Operation Lone Star Grant Program for FY 2022; and

WHEREAS, the City of Alpine agrees to provide any matching funds and reporting
requirements as required by the Homeland Security - Operation Lone Star Grant Program (HS-
OLSGP); and

WHEREAS, the City of Alpine agrees that in the event of loss or misuse of the HS-OLSGP
funds, the City of Alpine assures that the funds wili be returned to the Office of the Governor in

full; and

WHEREAS, the City of Alpine designates the City Manager as the authorized official of the
grantee. The authorized official is given the power to apply for, reject, alter, or terminate the
grant on behalf of the applicant agency.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
ALPINE, TEXAS THAT:

The City of Alpine supports submission of the grant application for the Homeland Security -
Operation Lone Star Grant Program to provide funds to acquire essential equipment and necessary
overtime hours for the Alpine Police Department.

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED BY A MAORITY VOTE OF THE CITY
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALPINE TEXAS ON THE 12™ PAY OF OCTOBER 2021.

Lo (=

Andres *Andy” Ramos, Mayor

ATTEST:

&l-‘——\__/
GeoffrexyCalderon, City Secretary

Page 1 of 1



DECLARATION OF LOCAL STATE OF
DISASTER DUE TO INTERNATIONAL BORDER
CRISIS

WHEREAS, the safety, health and well-being of our residents is
the primary goal of the City Council of City of Alpine, Texas; and

WHEREAS, Texas counties along the United States” border with
Mexico are experiencing a security, humanitarian and public health
crisis as thousands of migrants and refugees cross the border
illegally into the United States, with instances of individuals being
apprehended within City of Alpine limits; and

WHEREAS, local law enforcement authorities report virtually all
individuals apprehended in City of Alpine limits and Brewster
County are not refugees seeking asylum, but are instead adult men
migrants who are increasingly putting themselves and the public at
risk while attempting to avoid capture; and

WHEREAS, this border crisis has created an unacceptable burden
on our law enforcement personnel who are placed on the front
lines of this crisis without proper support and resources; and

WHEREAS, the global COVID-19 pandemic transforms this
humanitarian and security crisis into a public health emergency as
the City of Alpine cannot perform the necessary procedures to
identify and address COVID-19 virus and variants in accordance to
guidelines set forth by the Centers for Disease Control, thus
creating a local public health risk to our entire community; and

WHEREAS, the City Councilmembers of City of Alpine, Texas,
has determined that extraordinary measures must be taken to
ensure the protection of the health, safety, and welfare of county
residents.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED BY THE CITY
COUNCIL OF CITY OF ALPINE, TEXAS:

1. That a local state of disaster is hereby declared for City of Alpine,
Texas, pursuant to Section 418.108(a) of the Texas Government Code.

2. Pursuant to Section 418.108(b) of the Texas Government Code, the
state of disaster shall continue for a period of not more than seven days
from the date of this declaration without consent of the City Council of
City of Alpine, Texas.



3. Pursuant to Section 418.108(c) of the Texas Government Code, this
declaration of a local state of disaster shall be given prompt and general
publicity and shall be filed promptly with the City Secretary of the City
of Alpine, Texas.

4. Pursuant to Section 362.003(a) of the Texas Local Government Code,
this local state of disaster is intended to authorize, and does hereby
declare, that a state of civil emergency exists in City of Alpine, Texas,
and requests the assistance of additional state resources to uphold the
sovereignty and territorial integrity of the city.

5. That this declaration hereby authorizes the use of all lawfully available
resources and authority granted under both the Constitution of Texas
and the Constitution of the United States.

6. That this declaration shall take effect immediately from and after its
issuance and, upon approval by the City Council of City of Alpine,
Texas, and shall continue in effect until terminated by the Council.
Pursuant to this declaration, additional directives may be issued by the
City Council at any time deemed necessary.

DECLARED this 12th day of October 2021 by
Majority Vote of the City Council of the City of
Alpine, Texas.

L B o —

Andres “Andy” Ramos, Mayor

ATTEST:

E}coff:rey.ﬁ-! Calderon, City Secretary




CITY COUNCIL
MEETING AGENDA ITEM COVER MEMO
MARCH 5, 2024

To: Honorable Mayor and City Council

Agenda Item: Action Item 4 — Special Use Permit 2024-01-02
Agenda Sponsor: M. Antrim, City Manager

Memo Prepared By: G. Calderon, City Secretary

SYNOPSIS

Approve Special Use Permit 2024-01-02, a special use permit application allowing the applicant,
Tehra Vaughn, to establish a one-chair beauty salon in an R-2 Two-Family District zone. The
property in question is located at 401 W. Sul Ross and is legally described as the East 18.89 feet
of Lots 8, 9, 10, all of Lots 1, 2, and 3, and that portion of the platted alley lying between said lots,
all out of Block 28, Original Townsite of Alpine, envelope 184, plat records of Brewster County,
Texas. The property ID of the subject property is 35650. The record property owners are Thomas
Robinson and Karen Chapman. The current zoning of the property is R-2 Two-Family District.
The zoning classification if the special use permit is approved will remain R-2 Two-Family
District. The Planning & Zoning Commission has recommended approval of this special use
permit. (M. Antrim, City Manager)

BACKGROUND

o This applicant applied for a zoning change from R-2 to C-2 on September 7, 2023. Three
surrounding property owners protested the zoning change. The Planning & Zoning
Commission (hereafter referred to as P&Z) considered the application on October 23, 2023,
and voted to recommend denial of the application to the City Council.

¢ A more suitable zoning designation was found, C-0 Office Services District, and City
Administration consulted with the City Attorney regarding options for the alternate zoning
designation. The City Attorney confirmed that the City could pursue the less intensive
zoning designation if the Council chose to do so.

e On November 7, 2023, the City Council considered the denial recommendation from P&Z
and chose to send the application back to P&Z for consideration to determine if the C-0
Office Services District would be a more appropriate zone for the subject property.

e OnNovember 27,2023, P&Z considered the zoning change application with consideration
of more appropriate C-0 zone. Three surrounding property owners protested the zoning
change. P&Z unanimously recommended denial of the zoning change from R-2 to C-0.




* On November 27, 2023, P&Z recommended an ordinance amendment that would amend
the city’s zoning ordinance to allow a beauty salon/barber shop to be established in a
residential area by Special Use Permit (SUP).

e  On December 5, 2023, the City Council considered the recommendation of denial of C-0
zoning change from P&Z. The council voted to deny the zoning change application 3 to 2.

* On December 5, 2023, the City Council considered the recommendation from P&Z to
amend the city’s zoning ordinance to allow a beauty salon/barber shop to be established in
a residential area by Special Use Permit (SUP). The council voted to approve the
amendment. On January 2, 2024, the City Council approved the final reading of the
ordinance.

¢ The original applicant, Tehra Vaughn, submitted the SUP request to establish a beauty
salon at the subject property after the amendments was approved. Based on the P&Z
schedule, the earliest that P&Z could consider the SUP was February 26, 2024.

o 21 letters were sent to surrounding property owners advising them of the public hearings
scheduled for February 26 (P&Z) and March 5 (Council). None were returned as
undeliverable. Notice of the hearings was posted in the Alpine Avalanche in the February
1*t edition. No feedback has been received regarding this application by the packet
deadline.

e OnFebruary 26, 2024, P&Z considered the special use permit application and unanimously
recommended approval of the application.

SUPPORTING MATERIALS

1. Special Use Permit 2024-01-02

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

APPROVE.




BUILDING SERVICES FOR STAFF USE ONLY

pERMIT#_2 4003308

TOTAL FEE: $350.00 {non-refundable)
pate,_ 01} 0524

309 W SUL ROSS AVE

ALPINE, TX 79830

(432) 837-3281

CONDITIONAL/SPECIAL USE PERMIT

i Name of applicant/agent/company/contact:
I4

| Street address of applicant/agent:

S0U & Wt E
 City/State/Zip Code of applicant / agent:

. 0
| Telephone number of applicant/agents: Fax number of applicant/agents:
| Efnail ga’dr_'ess of applicant /agent: | Mobile ﬁhdne of applicant/agent. ~

PART 2. PROPERTY I'NIIORMATION
| Street address of public property:

DI W. Sl Ko3s

Legal descnptmu of subject property (metes and bounds must be described on 8 % x 11 paper

| Lot | Biock: | Addition:

Size of subject property:

o] Square footage: AR . E)O/o Acres:

Present zoning classification: Proposed use of the property:
-2 B ooty A_Emu

Zoning ordinance provision requiring a conditional use (descrifffon & hours of operation):

PART 3. PROPERTY OWNER INFORMATION _
Name of current property owner:

/3477)»\,@@,&{)0

Street address of proplerty owner:

Hol . .3ul Kot My

City/State/Zip code of property owner:

7X 79820

| Teleghone =+mhor of nronerty owner: Fax number of property owner:

L -




Submit a letter describing the proposed conditional use and note the request on the

site plan document

[:' In the same letter:
1. Describe or show on the site plan, and conditional requzrements or

conditions imposed upon the conditional use by applicable district
regulations (example: buffer yards, distance between users).

2. Describe whether the proposed conditional use will, or will not cause
substantial harm to the value, use, or enjoyment of the other property in the

neighborhood.
3. Describe how the proposed conditional use will add to the value, use or

enjoyment of other property in the neighborhood.

SIGNITURE TO AUTHORIZE CONDITIONAL USE REQUEST AND LACE A CONDITIONAL USE
REQUEST SIGN ON THE SUBJECT PROPERTY

Applicant Signature

Print Applicants Name J

The State of _

County Of_ ¢ ﬁﬁ_
Before Me ML\W @ on this day personally appeared % Mﬂ% /)

( applicant }

(notary}

Known to me {or proved to me on the oath of card or other document) fo be the person whose name is subscnbed to the foregoing instrument and
acknowledged o me that he executed the same for th and consideration therein expressed.
Given under my hand and seal of office this 4‘ g

".!l..‘..'....0.0i00'0..0||.'.'..i...
(Se:p ) ‘,;w JUDY L STOKES .

n d Notary Fubbe :

. ", -'_ : t_ STATE OF TEXAS +

5 ) _." My Commeaion E xpetes 04722/2095

: "'Ec; 8124181152

J o P 7 A T Ay

St -!’A'= v.I-A- -4 -'-'Aﬂ "‘.‘!“‘

Property Owners Signature

Print Property Owpafs Name | y
The State Of County Of ,/%&Wj

on this day personally appeared

Before Me
(Notary) ( Applicant )

Known to me (or proved to me on the oath of card or other document) to be the persorﬁwhose namg' ﬁg&b&d to the foregoing ingffument and

acknowledged to me that the same for the purposes and c(:ﬁlﬁn therein expressed.
day of

.CS!&I)‘Gmunder.uw.llapd and seal of office this

-No for S ['["s "'“un
AT A tor S

H a .
H o STATE OF -
%k «’? My Commason ¢ TE.,.XASMWI :
*

» e
...'-..".......‘-.....:2“:0."6'?
..Il....‘.

LAY XY



ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

All conditional Use and Special Use Applications are assumed to be complete when filed and
will be placed on the agenda for public hearing at the discretion of the staff.

Based on the size of the agenda, your application may be scheduled to a later date.

All public hearings will be opened, and testimony given by the applicants and interested
citizenry. Public hearings may be continued to the next public hearing. Public hearings will not
be tabled.

Any changes to a site plan (no matter how minor or major) approved with a conditional use or
special use permit can only be approved by city council through the public hearing process.

Any application for a change in zoning or for an amendment to the zoning ordinance shall have,
from the date of submittal, a period of four months to request and be scheduled on an agenda
before the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council, If after said period of four
months an application has not been scheduled before the commission and city council said
application, along with the required filing fee may be resubmitted any time thereafter for
reconsideration, Delays in scheduling applications before the Planning and Zoning. Commission
and City Council created by city staff shall not be considered a part of the four month period.

APPROVAL DOES NOT AUTHORIZE ANY WORK IN CONFLICT WITH ANY CODES OR ORDINANCES

I have read and understand all the requirements as set forth by the application for conditional use or special use permit and
acknowledge that alf requirements of this application have been met at the time of submittal,

i
Owner/Agent Print %_ 2 LA [Date: | [ 4, 24

Owner/Agent Signature ,7 //[M M
A b/ /, U




ILLUMINATION PLAN

An ilhummination plan to include a site photomeftric (including iHluminated signs) and all fixture details shall be
submitied as part of the site plan review process.

Applications will not be accepted without this requirement.

Chapter 18 - BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS | Code of Ordinances | Alpine, TX |
Municode Library "Outdoor Lighting Ordinance.”

I hereby acknowledge that an iffumination plan has been included as part of this submittal

Owner/Agent Print j:”[m e Lu_'_ |Date:| [.4. L"’

Applicant Signature ('L)ﬂm

PLATTING VERIFICATION

This verification statement must be signed prior to the submittal of this conditional use Application.

L1t has been determined that the property described below does require platting or replatting
and the applicant has been instructed on this procedure.

[ It has been determined that the property described below is currently platted or does not
require platting or replatting at this time. ]

Address of subject property:

Legal description of subject property:




STAFF USE ONLY:

Building Services Department Signature:

-

This form is signed by the building services department and submitted along with a completed application to

| Date

|

the planning and zoning department of building services.

Mavor Signature:

[ X | Date
City Secretary Signature.
| X | Date

CASE NAME:

CASE NUMBER:

LOCATION:




Dear City of Alpine,

My name is Tehra Vaughn and | am planning on
opening a one chair salon at 410 W Sul Ross Ave. It
will be operating Tuesday through Saturday from 10
to 6. I’'m not changing anything on the outside of
the building. A sign will be attached to the existing
fence and | will be painting my logo and address on
the front entrance to the salon. | have attached
mockups of what | will be doing.

Along with this, the operation will be low traffic and
a peaceful establishment. | do not believe it will
impact the surrounding neighborhood, considering
that more high trafficked operations exist in this
neighborhood already.

Best,
Tehra Vaughn
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CITY COUNCIL
MEETING AGENDA ITEM COVER MEMO
MARCH §, 2024

To: Honorable Mayor and City Council

Agenda Item: Action Item 5 - Certification of Unopposed Candidates
Agenda Sponsor: G. Calderon, City Secretary

Memo Prepared By: G. Calderon, City Secretary

SYNOPSIS

Approve Order 2024-03-01, an order approving the Certification of Unopposed Candidates for the
May 4, 2024 General Election. (G. Calderon, City Secretary)

BACKGROUND

o The authority responsible for having the official ballot prepared shall certify in writing that
a candidate is unopposed for election to an office, Sec. 2.052, Texas Election Code.

¢ The certification shall be delivered to the governing body of the political subdivision as
soon as possible after the filing deadlines for placement on the ballot and on the list of
write-in candidates.

e Both the Mayoral race and the Ward 2 race are unopposed and the candidates may be
certified as unopposed.

SUPPORTING MATERIALS

1. Order 2024-03-01.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

APPROVE.




13-1

Prescribed by Secretary of State

Section 2.051 —2.053, Texas Election Code
9/2023

ORDER 2024-03-01
ORDEN 2024-03-01

CERTIFICATION OF UNOPPOSED CANDIDATES FOR
OTHER POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS
CERTIFICACION DE CANDIDATOS UNICOS
PARA OTRAS SUBDIVISIONES POLITICAS (NO EL CONDADO)

To: Catherine Eaves, Presiding Officer of the Governing Body
A: Catherine Eaves, Presidente de la Entidad Gobernante

As the authority responsible for having the official ballot prepared, I hereby certify that the following
candidates are unopposed for election to office for the election scheduled to be held on May 4, 2024,

Como autoridad a cargo de la preparacion de la boleta de votacion oficial, por la presente
certifico que los siguientes candidatos son candidatos inicos para eleccion para un cargo en la
eleccion que se llevard a cabo el 4 de mayo.

List offices and names of candidates:
Lista de cargos y nombres de los candidatos:

Office(s) Cargo(s) Candidate(s) Candidato(s)

City Council Member Ward 2 Eva Olivas
Miembro del Consejo de la Ciudad Distrito 2

Mayor Catherine Eaves
Alcaldesa

O Casl N

Geoffrey K, Q_g,lieron, City Secretary
Secretario de la civdad

FEBguLARy 2, 2024
Date of si ghing {Fecha de firma)

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED BY A MAJORITY VOTE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF ALPINE, TEXAS ON MARCH 5, 2024.

APROBADO Y ADOPTADO POR MAYORIA DE VOTOS DEL CONCEJO MUNICIPAL DE LA CIUDAD
DE ALPINE, TEXAS EL 5 DE MARZO DEL 2024.

APPROVED (4PROBADO): ATTEST (DAR FE):

Catherine Eaves, Mayor Geoffrey R. Calderon, City Secretary
Alcaldesa Secretario de la ciudad



CITY COUNCIL
MEETING AGENDA ITEM COVER MEMO
MARCH 5, 2024

To: Honorable Mayor and City Council

Agenda Item: Action Item 6 — Cancellation of Unopposed Races
Agenda Sponsor: G. Calderon, City Secretary

Memo Prepared By: G. Calderon, City Secretary

SYNOPSIS

Approve Order 2024-03-02, an order of cancellation for the unopposed Ward 2 and Maj;oral races
for the May 4, 2024 General Election. (G. Calderon, City Secretary)

BACKGROUND

e On receipt of the certification of unopposed candidates, the governing body by order or
ordinance must declare each unopposed candidate elected to the office, Sec. 2.053, Texas
Election Code.

e A copy of the approved order or ordinance must be posted at each polling place that would
have been used during the election.

e Although the candidates will be declared elected, the candidates must wait until the official
canvass to be issued the certificate of election and to assume the duties of office. The
tentative date for the canvass is May 14, 2024, at 5:30 p.m.

SUPPORTING MATERIALS

1. Order 2024-03-02.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

APPROVE.




13-2

Prescribed by Secretary of State

Section 2.051 — 2.053. Texas Election Code
970023

ORDER 2024-03-02
ORDEN 2023-03-02

ORDER OF CANCELLATION
ORDEN DE CANCELACION

The City of Alpine hereby cancels the Ward 2 and the Mayoral election scheduled to be held
on May 4, 2024 in accordance with Section 2.053(a) of the Texas Election Code. The following
candidates have been certified as unopposed and are hereby elected as follows:

La Ciudad de Alpine por la presente cancela la eleccién que, de lo contrario, se hubiera
celebrado el 4 de mayo de 2024 de conformidad, con la Seccién 2.053(a) del Cédigo de
Elecciones de Texas. Los siguientes candidatos han sido certificados como candidatos unicos y
por la presente quedan elegidos como se haya indicado a continuacion:

Candidate (Candidato) Office Sought (Cargo al que presenta candidatura)
Eva L. Olivas City Council Member Ward 2

Miembro del consejo de la ciudad distrito 2
Catherine Eaves Mayor

Alcaldesa

A copy of this order will be posted on Election Day at each polling place that would have been
used in the election.

El Dia de las Elecciones se exhibird una copia de esta orden en todas las mesas electorales que se
hubieran utilizado en la eleccidn.

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED BY A MAJORITY VOTE OF THE CITY
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALPINE, TEXAS ON MARCH 5, 2024.

APROBADO Y ADOPTADO POR MAYORIA DE VOTOS DEL CONCEJO MUNICIPAL DE LA
CIUDAD DE ALPINE, TEXAS EL 5 DE MARZO DE 2024.

Catherine Eaves, Mayor

Alcaldesa
(seal) (sello)

Geoffrey R. Calderon, City Secretary
Secretario de la ciudad

Date of adoption (Fecha de adopcion)



—

CONCLUSION OVERVIEW

‘ 10. City Council Member Comments — No discussion or action may take place.

NOTICE: The City Council reserves the right to reconvene, recess, realign, change the order of
business, or adjourn into Executive Session at any time during the course of the meeting prior to
adjournment, to discuss any item listed above, as authorized by Texas Government Code Sections
551.071 (Consultation with Attorney), 551.072 (Deliberations about Real Property), 551.073
(Deliberations about Gifts and Donations), 551.074 (Personnel Matters), 551.076 {Deliberations
‘ about Security Devices), and 551.087 (development).

11. Executive Session — None.

12. Action — Executive Session — None.

‘ Adjourn.




